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INTRODUCTORY NOTE

Unless the context otherwise indicates or requiassjsed in this Annual Report on FormK.@er the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015 refesmnio:
(i) “we,” “us,” “our” or our “company” refer to Boo z Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation, its consoliéd subsidiaries and predecessors; (ii) “Booz
Allen Holdin¢” refers to Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporati@xclusive of its subsidiaries; (iii) “Booz Allenestor” refers to Booz Allen Hamilton
Investor Corporation, a whol-owned subsidiary of Booz Allen Holding; (iv) “BoAlten Hamilton” refers to Booz Allen Hamilton Inour primary
operating company and a wholly-owned subsidiafgafz Allen Holding; and (v) “fiscal,” when usediieference to any twelve-month period ended
March 31, refers to our fiscal years ended March Bfless otherwise indicated, information contaimrethis Annual Report is as of March 31, 2015.
have made rounding adjustments to reach some digtines included in this Annual Report and, unleerwise indicated, percentages presented in this
Annual Report are approximat

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statemens

Certain statements contained or incorporated sAhinual Report include forward-looking statemehissome cases, you can identify forward-
looking statements by terminology such as “may,illii‘could,” “should,” “forecasts,” “expects,” ‘ntends,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “projects,” “outh,”
“believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potential,’continue,” “preliminary,” or the negative of thetsgms or other comparable terminology. Although we
believe that the expectations reflected in the &dalooking statements are reasonable, we canygiveno assurance these expectations will provave h
been correct. These forward-looking statementserétafuture events or our future financial perfarmoe and involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may causactual results, levels of activity, performanceachievements to differ materially from any futoesults,
levels of activity, performance, or achievementgressed or implied by these forward-looking stat&ieT hese risks and other factors include:

" u "o ” o " ou

"o ” o ” o

e cost cutting and efficiency initiatives, budgetiuctions, Congressionally mandated automaticdipgrecuts, and other efforts to reduce U.S.
government spending, including automatic sequéstraequired by the Budget Control Act of 2011 gasended by the American Taxpayer Relief
Act of 2012 and the Consolidated Appropriations, 2€&t14), which have reduced and delayed contraatdswand funding for orders for services
especially in the current political environmenitinerwise negatively affect our ability to genenateenue under contract awards, including as a
result of reduced staffing and hours of operatiod.&. government clients;

« delayed funding of our contracts due to uncetyaielating to and a possible failure of Congresal efforts to craft a long-term agreement on the
U.S. governmens$ ability to incur indebtedness in excess of itgent limits, or changes in the pattern or timidgovernment funding and spend
(including those resulting from or related to cagsociated with sequestration or other budgetas/roade in lieu of sequestration);

e current and continued uncertainty around thénggextent, nature, and effect of ongoing Condogss and other U.S. government action to address
budgetary constraints, including, but not limiteduncertainty around the outcome of Congressieffaits to craft a long-term agreement on the
U.S. government’s ability to incur indebtednessxuess of its current limits and the U.S. deficit;

e U.S. government facility closures due to weattedaited events that limit our ability to providergices to our clients, which will negatively impac
our ability to generate revenue under our contracts

e any issue that compromises our relationshipb thié U.S. government or damages our professiepaitation, including negative publicity
concerning government contractors in general on psirticular;

» changes in U.S. government spending, includingrdinuation of efforts by the U.S. governmentiézrease spending for management support
service contracts, and mission priorities thattshipenditures away from agencies or programswhatupport;

« the size of our addressable markets and the anedlth. government spending on private contrac

e failure to comply with numerous laws and regulasi

e our ability to compete effectively in the comifige bidding process and delays or losses of embtawards caused by competitors’ protests of major
contract awards received by us;

e the loss of General Services Administration gt Award schedule contracts, or GSA schedulespoiposition as prime contractor on
government-wide acquisition contract vehicles, 9YACs;

« changes in the mix of our contracts and our abiitaccurately estimate or otherwise recover exggrtsne, and resources for our contri

e our ability to generate revenue under certain ofoountracts

e our ability to realize the full value of and repkmour backlog and the timing of our receipt ofeneue under contracts included in back

e changes in estimates used in recognizing rev

e aninability to attract, train, or retain employedgth the requisite skills, experience, and seguwi¢arance:

« an inability to hire, assimilate, and deploy enoegiployees to serve our clients under existingrectd
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e aninability to timely and effectively utilize oemployees

« failure by us or our employees to obtain and maimacessary security clearan

e the loss of members of senior management or faitudevelop new leade

e misconduct or other improper activities from eanployees or subcontractors, including the impraoige or release of our clients’ sensitive or
classified information;

* increased insourcing by various U.S. governrageicies due to changes in the definition of “iehdy governmental” work, including proposals to
limit contractor access to sensitive or classifiddrmation and work assignments;

* increased competition from other companies in ndustry

» failure to maintain strong relationships with otleentractors

« inherent uncertainties and potential adverseldgwments in legal or regulatory proceedings, idiclg litigation, audits, reviews, and investigaspn
which may result in materially adverse judgmengtlements, withheld payments, penalties, or atinémvorable outcomes including debarment, as
well as disputes over the availability of insurancéndemnification;

» continued efforts to change how the U.S. govemimeimburses compensation related and other sgpan otherwise limit such reimbursements,
including recent rules that expand the scope dtiexj reimbursement limitations, such as a redadticallowable annual employee compensation to
certain contractors as a result of the Bipartisaddggt Act of 2013, and an increased risk of comgims being deemed unallowable or payments
being withheld as a result of U.S. government awelitiew or investigation;

e internal system or service failures and secumigaches, including, but not limited to, thosaultiasy from external cyber attacks on our netwank a
internal systems or employee misconduct;

« risks related to changes to our operating airectcapabilities, or strategy intended to addcésat needs, grow our business or respond to rarke
developments;

e risks associated with new relationships, clierdapabilities, and service offerings in our U.S. amdrnational business:

- failure to comply with special U.S. government laaval regulations relating to our international egiens

» risks related to our indebtedness and credit faslwhich contain financial and operating coves;

« the adoption by the U.S. government of new lawlgsiiand regulations, such as those relating targzgtional conflicts of interest issues or lin

< risks related to completed and future acquisitiamduding our ability to realize the expected Hgadrom such acquisition

e an inability to utilize existing or future taxebefits, including those related to our stock-bas®dpensation expense, for any reason, including a
change in law;

< variable purchasing patterns under U.S. govemi@&A schedules, blanket purchase agreementsdafinite delivery, indefinite quantity, or
ID/1Q, contracts; and

e other risks and factors listed under “Item 1AskFactors’and elsewhere in this Annual Rep

In light of these risks, uncertainties, and ottaatdrs, the forward-looking statements might noprto be accurate and you should not place undue
reliance upon them. All forward-looking statemespieak only as of the date made and we undertakéligation to update or revise publicly any forward
looking statements, whether as a result of newrinétion, future events, or otherwise.




PART |

Item 1. Business
Overview

Booz Allen Hamilton is a leading provider of managst consulting, technology, and engineering sesvio the U.S. government in the defense,
intelligence, and civil markets. Additionally, wegeide management and technology consulting ses\twenajor corporations, institutions, not-for-grof
organizations, and international clients.

We have been listening to our clients for more th@@ years, standing alongside them to solve méthetr toughest challenges. It is through these
opportunities, as well as the quality of our chtgaand the strength of our talent base of appratéiy 22,500 people, that we continue to redefime o
ability to meet and exceed client expectations aittexpanding set of capabilities in a rapidly cfiag world.

At the dawn of our second century, we continueuitdbon our legacy of innovative client serviceihyesting in new and different ways to solve
many of our clients' toughest problems. This effeduided by “Vision 2020,” our comprehensive &gy to position Booz Allen for sustainable quality
growth. Under Vision 2020, in the face of a comipatigovernment contracting market, we have cortihio manage our business to ensure our ability to
invest in future growth. Under Vision 2020, we areesting in advanced capabilities that expandcayacity to deliver innovative, integrated solutida
clients and building new platforms to serve goveentrand commercial clients domestically and abrdadse investments include innovation occurring in
our Strategic Innovation Group (SIG) and throughbetfirm as well as continued pursuit of acquisitopportunities that align with our strategic adgenn
parallel, we are building distinctive business prdple models to support those growth platforms.

Our business continues to benefit from the capggliiieadth, client access, and financial stabiligt comes with a diverse base of clients and aot
vehicles. Our diverse client base includes subisingll of the cabinet-level departments of th&SUgovernment, clients in selected commercial etark
and international clients. Major government cligntdude the Department of Defense, all branchebhef).S. military, the U.S. Intelligence Community
and civil agencies such as the Department of Hamde&ecurity, the Department of Health and HumaniSes, and the Department of the Treasury. We
support these clients in addressing complex anssprg challenges such as combating global terroiiaproving cyber capabilities, transforming the
healthcare system, improving efficiency and manggimange within the government. In the commeraetar, we serve U.S. clients primarily in the
financial services, healthcare, energy, retail, amwdmotive markets. Our international clientsgimarily in the Middle East, as well as in soutiseAsia
following the recent opening of our office in Sipgae.

Booz Allen's approach has long been to ensurentbdtave prime or subcontractor positions on a wagge of contracts that allow clients maximum
opportunity to access our services. Our diverséraohbase provides stability to our business. @hisrsity is seen in the fact that over 78% of mwenue
for fiscal 2015 was derived from over 3,300 actask orders under indefinite delivery, indefinitgaqtity (ID/IQ) contract vehicles. Our top ID/IQruoact
vehicle, which had approximately 130 task orde¥presented approximately 12% of our revenue irfiscal year 2015. Our largest task order under an
ID/1Q contract vehicle accounted for approximatel§% of our revenue in our fiscal year 2015. Owgdat definite contract represented approximately
2.6% of our revenue in our fiscal year 2015.

Through the execution of our Vision 2020 strategitatives, we are well positioned to operatehat intersection of management consulting,
technology, and mission expertise. It is in thigisection that we have created service offeringséas such as predictive intelligence, emerging
technology, and advanced engineering. The combimafi our service offerings with deep mission usthierding uniquely positions us to help a broad &
of clients solve many of their toughest challengegsponse to today's complex and dynamic enviesninThe depth and breadth of our capabilities - as
standalone offerings and in combination with onetlaer - together with our client-focused culturatimue to form the core of our value propositioritte
market.

History and Corporate Structure

We were founded in 1914 by Edwin Booz, one of lemg@ers of management consulting. In 1940, we begaring the U.S. government by advising
the Secretary of the Navy in preparation for WaNer 1l. As the needs of our clients have grown memeplex, we have expanded beyond our manage
consulting foundation to develop deep expertighénfields of technology, engineering, cyber segudand data science.

We are organized and operate as a corporationu§auof the term “partnership” reflects our collaie culture, and our use of the term “partner”
refers to our Chief Executive Officer and our Serind Executive Vice Presidents. The use of thagépartnership” and “partner” is not meant to teea
any implication that we operate our company afame any intention to create a legal entity thad igartnership.
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Booz Allen Holding was incorporated in DelawareMay 2008 to serve as the top-level holding comganyhe consolidated Booz Allen Hamilton
U.S. government consulting business. On July 3@82Booz Allen Hamilton completed the separatioitof).S. government consulting business from its
legacy commercial and international consulting besss, the spin off of the commercial and intermatidousiness, and the sale of 100% of its outstandi
common stock to Booz Allen Holding, which was majoowned by The Carlyle Group and certain of ffdiated investment funds, or Carlyle. Our
company is a corporation that is the successdragovernment business of Booz Allen Hamilton felleg the separation. The aforementioned transagtion
are referred to in this Annual Report as the adtipiis

Our Institution and Operating Model

We attribute the strength of our client relatiopshithe commitment of our people, and our strongrftial position to our management
consulting heritage and collaborative culture, Whitstills a relentless focus on delivering valme @nduring results to our clients. Over the pastury of
serving clients and the 75 years that we have bepporting the U.S. government, we have cultivagdationships of trust with our clients. These
relationships provide a deep understanding of bentts needs and mission requirements. Our apprtmathe market combines this domain expertiséén t
defense, intelligence, and civil government markatsl commercial and international markets, withsitong functional capabilities and enables us to
provide our clients with differentiated insightsdaio anticipate, identify, and address their speciéeds.

Across all sectors, our clients are facing everararallenging issues. We address their complexeaal¥ing needs by deploying teams of staff with
deep mission understanding, market-leading funatioapabilities, consulting talent, and true techhand engineering expertise. These staff andifurad
capabilities are housed within market-facing teamd our cross-market Strategic Innovation GroupleAdeing connected and developed through a strong
network of internal communities. We have an interagaource management function that deploys staffss the entire firm to balance staffing needs and
provide career advancement opportunities. Thisagmbr enables us to quickly assemble, deploy, ateptey when necessary, multi-faceted client-facing
teams comprised of people with the right skills argdertise needed to address specific client aigdie This ability is central to the differentiatedue
proposition of Booz Allen. We believe that our sfgrant win rates on new and re-competed contrat&5% and 88% , respectively, demonstrate the
strength of this approach.

We operate our business as a single profit cenégreincourages the efficient allocation of our peagross markets, clients, and opportunities. Our
operating model is based on a partnership-stylei@ibnd compensation system that focuses on tleessi of the institution over the success of the
individual and encourages our leadership and siafbllaborate internally and compete externallyisTmakes us more responsive to the market anerbett
able to bring all the resources of the companyetar in support of specific client needs. We beligaggt we serve our clients best when we go to nmake
whole firm rather than as a collection of indivitibasiness units or profit centers. A commitmente@mmwork is deeply ingrained in our company, amd o
partnership-style culture is critical to maintaigitiis feature of our operating model.

Our People

Our success is highly dependent upon the quatitggrity, and dedication of our people. We havégalii educated talent base of approximately
22,500 people: as of March 31, 2015 , approxingat@e held bachelor degrees, approximately 35% imalsters degrees, and approximately 3% held
doctoral degrees. In addition, many of the U.S egoment contracts for which we compete requireraattrs to have high-level security clearances, and
our large pool of cleared employees allows us tetrtieese needs. As of March 31, 2015 , 72% of eople held government security clearances, which
include Secret, Top Secret, Top Secret/Sensitivagaotmented Information and Sensitive Compartmehttmation. High-level security clearances
generally afford a person access to data thattaffetional security, counterterrorism or countetligence, or other highly sensitive data. Througkrnal
referrals, internships and external recruiting éfowe are able to successfully renew and growdiuarse talent base, and we believe that ourtaldi
attract top level talent is significantly enhandgdour commitment to professional development,pmsition as a leader in our markets, the high guefi
our work and people, and the appeal of our culture.

To encourage career development and progressioptavale our people with the opportunity to workiorportant and complex problems, support
and acknowledge contributions of people at all lewé seniority, and encourage broad, inclusivel iasightful leadership. In furtherance of thesalgpwe
have introduced a new career progression and pdepkdopment model designed to recognize and reelinat-facing employees based on differentiated
roles within two tracks: our traditional managemewnsulting track and an engineering and technolagpk. The move to two tracks allows us to rethan
core of our people model while supporting the insiegly broad skills, interests, and career aspiratof our employee base. We continue to leveaage
assessment process that helps promote and erifiercensistency of our collaborative culture, caigs, and ethics.
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We also encourage our people to continue develdpieig substantive skills through continuing edigratind provide funding for tuition assistance
and technical certifications. Our learning programisich have consistently been recognized as bedass in the industry, include partnerships with
universities, vendors, and online content provid€hese programs offer convenient, cost-effectiumlity educational opportunities that are alignsith
our core capabilities.

We believe that one of the key components of oocess is our focus on ethics and core values. @enalues are: client service, diversity,
excellence, entrepreneurship, teamwork, profesi@nafairness, integrity, respect, and trust. @dlv hires receive extensive training that emphagize
core values, facilitates their integration into collaborative, client-oriented culture, and hdlpgnsure the delivery of consistent and excepticlient
service. As of March 31, 2015, 100% of our empésyparticipated in internal training including mataty annual ethics training for all employeeswad
as additional specialized ethics and compliandgitrg based on job requirements.

The emphasis that we place on our people contirmueceive external recognition. External awards mecognition include being named to the “Best
Companies” to work for lists published by WorkingpMer, Gl Jobs, CareerBliss, Alliance for Workpl&oceellence, and a number of other publications
and associations. Additionally, the company wasetfor each of the past four years as one of Feriagazine’s “The World's Most Admired
Companies,” a list based on quality and brand ejmut.

Our Functional Capabilities

The breadth and depth of our capabilities and té&g w which our collaborative model allows us tarséessly combine and integrate these capabi
to address the challenges faced by our clientsigue. The combination of our 100 year managemamswting heritage, deep functional and technical
expertise in traditional as well as new innovatigiplines, and a thorough understanding of dentd’ core missions, has helped position Boozritle
an increasingly essential partner to our cliente.afé constantly reevaluating our clients' needsrtber optimize our functional offerings. Our fitional
capabilities include:

Acquisition, Program Management, and Logisti

Our Acquisition, Program Management, and Logistigabilities help clients imagine, implement, aptiveér a wide range of operational programs
including those related to acquisition and congastipplier, and budget management. Services detiveclude strategy development, policy support,
logistics management, staff development and depdoynmodeling and simulation, testing and validatioformation assurance, and data management.

Cyber Security

Our Cyber Security capabilities are rooted in degpnical, analytic, and cyber mission experienwtlzlp clients anticipate threats to their network
and their data, ensure their cyber posture is sterdi with established best practices, and resfmagber events. We have a significant Cyber Sacuri
business based on our military and intelligencekwath the federal government and we have investetle development of capabilities needed to addres
the dynamic environment of cyber security.

As of March 31, 2015, over 3,700 employees hold @y@00 certifications representing a variety ahtaical disciplines, including DoD 8570
specified certifications, from various certifyingdies, such as SANS, Comp TIA, EC Council, and1S@&dditionally, to continue to position us as adet
across the broad and growing range of areas raguisiber-related services, we are focused on hirevg employees with related expertise and cross
training existing employees through our Cyber Ursitg program.

Cloud Analytics and Data Science

Our Cloud Analytics and Data Science capabilitielp ltlients design cloud architecture solutionedhe data that is most applicable to storage in
the cloud, develop analytical solutions to gairugale insights from large data sets and then gty use that knowledge to drive mission succease
money, and improve effectiveness. Our data scieapabilities apply advanced analytic techniques siscdata mining, text mining, statistical analyaisd
predictive modeling, to extract meaning from d&tee also create analytic tools that support endsusgproviding access to data, analytic outputd, an
visualizations.

Decision Analytics

Our Decision Analytics capabilities help clientskeanformed choices to maximize performance atgpr@priate cost, while delivering on schedule
and minimizing risks. We leverage a wide rangerobfem-solving techniques including simulation, heahatical optimization, queuing theory, and
machine learning to improve decision making anttiefficy.




Engineering

Our engineering capabilities offer Rapid PrototgpiReverse Engineering, Systems Engineering & ratem, and Applied Engineering disciplines.
We use design and manufacturing techniques to cofuretional requirements into useable prototyihes can be deployed to test and confirm the

printing, and product assembly. We also provideaaded engineering services such as electronicstitatesystem technical exploitation.
Human Capital and Learning

Our Human Capital and Learning capabilities off@ride range of strategy and transformation expettishelp clients address workforce and
leadership challenges in a resource constraineidoemvent. We design, develop, and deliver instorzl classroom and on-line learning programs for al
levels within a client's organization. We offer exipntial leadership and team development progrémaigjng, as well as individual assessment and
coaching. Our HC&L capabilities also include wonkfe planning, management of learning programs taedt management expertise designed to help
clients address the full range of human capitatieexd their organizations.

Management Consulting

Our Management Consulting capabilities are forgeelxperience gained over our 100 year consultistphi and include expertise in strategy
development, organizational design, efficiencynsfarmation, and a range of other consulting affgsi Management Consulting professionals helptslien
define their strategic goals and objectives as agthe people, processes, costs, and technoleghedéo realize them. We don't stop at strategg also
leverage our expertise in the areas of processowvepnent, change management, and transformatiamsto@ clients achieve their intended results.

Networks and IT Infrastructure

Our Networks & Information Technology InfrastruauiNITI) capabilities include expertise in the aod@nterprise operations, network services and
communications, data center operations, and datage. We apply our NITI expertise to physicaliuatized, cloud, and hybrid form factors networks.
Network enabled services involve active directaigntity management, radio frequency, mobile demie@agement, and unified communications soluti
We provide the services and oversight clients megfor IT infrastructure transformation, implemeida, and operations. We offer network engineeend
design expertise to optimize client network and gamications performance.

Sciences

Our Sciences capabilities offer scientific reseansti the development and management of technoldgyhave a number of facilities and laboratories
that are developing new methods of detection, désigand conducting research, and helping clietitsesss mission challenges using a broad range of
scientific disciplines. For example, our chemitadlogical, radiological, nuclear, and explosivaperts perform forensics, crisis response, pathogen
detection, and threat assessment using data afadtt@rfrom items such as improvised explosive devi Our Intelligence, Surveillance, and Reconaais
experts perform hyper-temporal optical and radégfiency sensing and tagging to detect anomalieglantfy items of interest (such as electrical
signatures of vehicles passing through check points

Software Development and Architectu

Our Software Development & Architecture capabisitisclude development of small and large scalerinétion technology applications, embedded
systems, and mobile applications. We deliver eigeegcross an extensive list of programming langsiagpplicable to traditional, cloud, mobile, and
embedded applications. We rely on quality standaugd as the variants of ISO9000 and the CarnegitoMMaturity model (CMM) at various levels
depending on the project. We employ traditional agite development methods depending on the apiolica

Our Long Term Growth Strategy

We began crafting our long term growth strateg20i1 when we saw the potential for market challsiigeeome as a result of public debate abot
impact of government spending on the national daelltpotential changes to the U.S. defense andigetete posture. In fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2012, we
performed an assessment of our business portfotiadentified future challenges and opportunitied angaged a broad range of stakeholders to define
Vision 2020, a strategy designed to fundamentalhape and grow our business over time while asidigetkely near-term pressures on our business.

Vision 2020 is driving our investments in innovati@dvanced capabilities, and commercial and iatanal markets. In support of Vision 2020, we
see opportunities to acquire capabilities usingeiplined strategy focused on businesses thatteastegically aligned with our growth platformsasé our
values, and are priced appropriately.




Acquisitions that will be most attractive to usheitid to our capabilities and will help drive orgagrowth across areas of our business portfolio by
leveraging access to our client service profestsoaad their extensive client base.

Our growth platforms are:

Innovation. Our Innovation Growth Platform is anchored in ousivh 2020 strategy and is focused on creating ¢égalership positions in the mar
and supporting growth across our client portfolibthe start of our fiscal year 2014, we establistie Strategic Innovation Group (SIG). Now entgiits
third year, the SIG is driving growth through adjatand transformative innovation, integrating dsliges and building horizontal businesses to il
solutions that solve our clients’ most complex peais. Our focused innovation agenda includes highemgin areas such as NextGen Analytics, Predictive
Intelligence, and Digital. The SIG is leveraging aacess to an extensive client base as both arsesisvork and a delivery mechanism. Internally,are
establishing a culture of innovation through the akcollaborative platforms that bring together diverse staff to focus on solving client challeagin
addition to building expertise to deliver to clienExternally, we are building a network of relaships with Industry, Statps/Incubators/Accelerators, ¢
Academia to optimize complementary capabilitieggnate new ideas within our expanding ecosystachceeate value that we can deliver in new and
different ways for our clients. We are confident ounovation agenda will drive growth through thevdlopment of new solutions to our clients’ complex
problems.

Engineering.We are creating a coherent vision, comprehensiagegly, and clear roadmap to be a provider of kjgdlity engineering services,
solutions, and products well matched to missionkarsiness imperatives of our clients in areas ssadBommand, Control, Communications, Computers,
Intelligence, Surveillance and Reconnaissance (RAGS/ber, Navigation, RF Engineering, NetworkinggtBtyping, and Systems Engineering &
Integration. Through this effort, we are integrgtour engineering business elements and resoumrasacross the company to leverage a critical rohss
engineering professionals to expand our businesagimeering services, solutions, and productssacath markets.

Systems Delivey . We are working to sustain and enhance the presegswls, environments, intellectual capital asekts leveraged by the systems
delivery resources across the company to delivehtphest quality systems to our clients, while timgeindustry recognized process maturity and guali
standards and benchmarks. Through this work, westeblishing the foundation for a branded syst@efisery business with robust past performance
qualifications and the credibility in the marketato compete for large scale systems work.

Cyber.Our Cyber capabilities extend across our intellggebusiness and portions of our defense, civil,roengial, and international businesses. As a
result of its scale, the cyber growth platformriegominately self-funding and while not a signifitkeneficiary of the company's strategic investsiemne
believe our differentiated cyber capability provdde avenue for growth in both the U.S. governmearket as well as the commercial and international
markets.

Commercial.We are building a sustainable commercial businéstap quality clients by offering differentiategrvice offerings in vertical markets,
including in the financial services, health, enemgyail, and manufacturing markets, and by empiagicross-cutting offerings in the cyber, analytiand
compliance markets. These service offerings drawwrdemonstrated expertise in the U.S. governmmamket, which are translated into a unique set of
capabilities that are tailored to the needs ofcthramercial market.

International. We are leveraging our successful Middle East/Naftica (MENA) business started in fiscal 2012 tala sustainable, long term
model for international expansion, capable of dfigthe full breadth of our service offerings amhgrating significant direct commercial sales.
Specifically, by combining various technical andlgtical capabilities, such as cyber security aystesms delivery, with general management consulting
capabilities to form a major differentiated stratégour MENA business, Booz Allen has become agmesal partner to our clients in the region, pdavj
strategic and technical solutions across the emgexgglifecycle. In fiscal 2015, we expanded theseaad leadership team in our MENA business by ax
core leaders from the region who manage a divers®hstaff expertise based in the US and a loedlizlient staff delivering direct commercial saesos:
both the public and private market sectors.

Our Clients

We believe that the U.S. government is the wotldgest consumer of management and technology kimgsservices. The U.S. government's but
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014 wesedb $3.8 trillion, excluding authorizations fr@nerseas Contingency Operations and supplemental
funding for the Department of Defense. Of this antpapproximately $1.2 trillion was for discretiopdudget authority, including $618 billion for the
Department of Defense and Intelligence Community $824 billion for civil agencies. Based on datanirthe Federal Procurement Data System,
approximately $442 billion of the U.S. governmefigsal year 2014 discretionary outlays were ndefligence agency funding-related products and
services procured from private contractors. Werest that $100 billion of the spending directedamig private contractors in U.S. government figealr
2014 was for management and




technology consulting services, with $56 billioreapby the Department of Defense and $43 billieenspy civil agencies. The agencies of the U.S.
Intelligence Community that we serve representdatitanal market. These numbers also exclude &ladgiressable market for our services and
capabilities in the commercial and internationatke#s where we have a small but growing footprint.

Across all of our markets, our century-long dedaato client service has built unusually strongtomer relationships. Through our commitment to
helping clients succeed, we have built a tracknetod results and trust among our client base, Wwhicurn, provides a robust sales channel thrauigich
we can engage our current and prospective clienttglaliver our services.

We have strong and longstanding relationships witliverse group of clients at all levels of the L§&ernment. During fiscal 2015 , we deri\@&%o
of our revenue from services under more than 5eé@racts and task orders. The revenue was geddrate contracts where the end client was an agency
or department of the U.S. government, includingtiaats where Booz Allen performed in either a prionsubcontract position, and regardless of the
geographic location in which the work was performEae single largest entity that we served in fig€d5 was the U.S. Army, which represented
approximately 16% of our revenue in that period. 8&gved 91% of our revenue in fiscal 2015 fromagements for which we acted as the prime
contractor. Also during fiscal 2015 , we achievadaerall win rate of 55% on new contracts and taslers for which we competed and a win rate of 88%
on re-competed contracts and task orders for agisti related business. As of March 31, 2015 total backlog, including funded, unfunded, and ¢uic
options, was $9.4 billion , a decrease of 5% ialtbacklog with an approximate 18% increase in &ahbacklog over March 31, 2014 .

Selected Long-Term Client Relationships

Relationship

Length
Client (1) (Years)
U.S. Navy 75+
U.S. Army 65+
U.S. Air Force 35+
Department of Energy 35+
National Security Agency 30+
Department of Homeland Security 30+
Federal Bureau of Investigation 20+
National Reconnaissance Office 20+
A U.S. intelligence agency 20+
Internal Revenue Service 20+

(1) Includes predecessor organizatit
Defense Client

Our reputation and track record in serving the thifitary and defense agencies spans more thae&®yover which time we have provided a bi
range of capabilities to our defense clients. @uenue generated from defense clients was $2i6rhibr approximately 48.4% of our revenue in flsca
2015 as compared to $2.7 billion, or approxima#&lyi% of our revenue in fiscal 2014 . Our key dséedients include:

e U.S. Air Force. The U.S. Air Force provides Global Vigilance, GibReach, and Global Power in support of Natiohgéctives. Their missions
include delivery of Air and Space Superiority, Ifigeence Surveillance and Reconnaissance (ISR)idRalwbal Mobility, Global Strike, and
Command and Control. Specific clients include Heguditprs and the AF Commands - Air Combat, Spacéeriés Air Mobility, Cyber, Global
Strike, and Pacific Air Forces. Across this speaifient set, our skilled strategists, scientistgjineers, analysts, and technicians bring a reot
of essential services including assignments rel@edeapon systems analysis, capability-based plgnand aircraft systems engineering. These
services are aimed at increasing Air Force miseftiniency and effectiveness.

« U.S. Army. The Army’s mission is to fight and win our Natisnvars by providing prompt, sustained land domagaacross the full range of
military operations and spectrum of conflict in popt of combatant commanders. Booz Allen proviaésgrated teams of engineers, analysts and
technical experts to support all Army Components @ommands -- Army Headquarters, Army Materiel Ca@anch(AMC), Forces Command
(FORSCOM), Training and Doctrine Command (TRADOg)gecial Operations Command, and Army Cyber

8




Command and Cyber Center of Excellence. By progidiiverse services including enhancement of fietelligence systems; Counter-Improvised
Explosive Device (C-IED) training for soldiers; aterated capability development and C4ISR modetinizaand infusion of lifecycle sustainment
capabilities across the enterprise, Booz Allen attasts are helping the Army provide America’s vigtrfers with the decisive edge needed to
“Win in a Complex World.”

Joint Staff and Combatant Comman The combined efforts of the Office of the SecrgtfrDefense, the Joint Staff, and the Unified Catabt
Commands provide mission critical support and smhstto the warfighter across the whole of the Depent of Defense and protecting the
security of the country. Our services and solutisugport the full spectrum of business operationsvearfighter missions, providing strategy and
technology expertise to clients in systems engingeacross the supply chain, extending to cybersgnnel and readiness, research and
development, countering weapons of mass destryctimhintegrated intelligence, surveillance, armbn@aissance to space and global strike
operations. We provide analytical services forliiggence activities, performing the full spectrurimnovation from strategic planning through
execution. Our clients include the major organ@aiwithin the Office of the Secretary of Defensd all Department of Defense Agencies, as
as the U.S. Pacific Command, Northern Command,r@e@bmmand, Southern Command, the Defense Infeam&ystems Agency, European
Command, U.S. Strategic Command, Special Opera@onsmand, and Transportation Command.

U.S. Navy and Marine CorpsThe mission of the U.S. Navy is to maintain, tr@ind equip combat-ready naval forces capable mfiwg wars,
deterring aggression and maintaining freedom ob#®s. Through global reach and persistent presgrforwardstationed and rotational forces
secure the nation from direct attack, and assLulmgt operational access and global freedom obacthe Navy, together with their primary Joint
partner the U.S. Marine Corps, continue to evolw they will operate and fight as expeditionary faee partners. Since 1940, we have partnered
with the U.S. Navy and Marine Corps to effectivacomplish strategic objectives and mission outsoi@eir clients include the Office of the
Secretary of the Navy; Headquarters Navy; the @ffitNaval Intelligence; the Commandant of the MeuCorps; U.S. Navy/Marine Corps
operating commands and systems commands (inclidtirgl Air Systems Command, Naval Seas Systems CoohnthS. Marine Corps Systems
Command, and Space and Naval Warfare Systems Cod)j@awell as joint and individual Program ExeeaitDffices. By combining
professional, experienced staff along with innoxasolutions, we are able to deliver material tsslated to mission readiness, integration and
interoperability, engineering, systems developmand, cyber security. Collectively, we partner watlr clients to help them remain ready to meet
current challenges and build a relevant and cagdahlee force.

Infrastructure & Military Health.We support clients in defense agencies responf@iblailitary and veterans' health as well as tl@sportation,
energy, and environment sectors which have cootret our national infrastructure. We support oigrdk' efforts to maintain and build
infrastructure that is efficient, effective, and&inable. Our services span all functional capiaslincluding management consulting, technology,
engineering, and mission operations. Our clientkige the Departments of Defense, Energy, Tranapont and Interior and their component
agencies; the Environmental Protection Agency;taedDepartment of Defense Military Health System.

Intelligence Client:

We have provided the government agencies and @aféons that carry out national security and ifrgelhce activities for the U.S. government wi

wide range of services and capabilities for ovey@&rs. This critical business area requires slisethexpertise and higlevel security clearances. Reve
generated from intelligence clients was $1.3 hillior approximately 24.9% of our revenue in fi2@15 as compared to $1.4 billion, or approximately
25.5% of our revenue in fiscal 2014 . Our majoeliigence clients include:

U.S. Intelligence AgenciesVe provide thought leadership and serve as aetiustegrator of enterprise solutions and techrieigve enable U.S.
intelligence agencies to excel at their missioDsir services in space and ground systems, missiwites, and corporate integration include
strategic planning and business operations; systagimeering, integration and acquisition; user gegant and operations support; and
information and cyber technologies. We reshapéeBys Engineering and Integration efforts to meetwang needs; implementing innovative
agile development and extensive support in cybmicss, policy, standards, tradecraft, and commugrigagement and planning and executing
agency modernizations and transformations. Weigeawission critical systems and services for thstndemanding intelligence requirements in
the world. Our clients include the National SequAgency, the National Geospatial-Intelligence Agerthe National Reconnaissance Office, and
other classified clients.




« Military Intelligence. We are at the forefront of supporting warfight@mljcymakers, and acquisition communities of thiétdy Intelligence
organizations, the Defense Intelligence Agencyyigerintelligence Centers, operational IntelligeSeeveillance Reconnaissance units, and
Combatant Command. By bringing a unique mix of eigneed people, high-quality processes, and addaeainologies, we help our clients
address many of their toughest challenges throgijityaprecision, and efficiency. We provide inrative approaches and superior program
management with capabilities such as intelligemadysis and training, mission engineering, orgaional change and strategy, and technology to
support client missions at all levels. Our experissin instructional design and delivery, workganning, all-source intelligence analysis,
counterintelligence and human intelligence experiistelligence Surveillance Reconnaissance planaimd operations, simulation and gaming
based training, targeting support, systems deliged/engineering, multi-source collections managensad knowledge management.

Civil Clients

We provide support to the wide ranging missionswfU.S. government civilian agency clients. Revegenerated from civilian clients in the U.S.
government was $1.2 billion, or approximately 23.6P6ur revenue in fiscal 2015 as compared to Billidn, or approximately 22.5% of our revenue in
fiscal 2014 . Our civil government clients include:

e Health. Our clients include the Department of Veterantaibé (VA) and the Department of Health and Humanviges (HHS) and its agencies,
including the U.S. Food and Drug Administration tidaal Institutes of Health, Centers for Diseas@t@a and Prevention, and the Centers for
Medicare and Medicaid Services. Their missionsidelprotecting public health, strengthening andenaiding the nation's health care system to
provide high quality care at a lower cost, andviling healthcare and benefits to our nations'raete Health Reform and advances in technology
have driven a significant amount of change in obiSHand VA client environments. Through a deep ustdeding of our clients' missions and our
ability to deliver a broad set of innovation satuts, we have extensive experience solving compidxmulti-disciplinary challenges in the areas of
payment reform, care delivery transformation, beselelivery optimization, and development of ndatforms for sharing and analyzing data in
the research, public health, and regulatory enwiremts. Our scientists, data analysts, health ingesperts, and technologists are helping our
clients bring rapid resolution to some of the toeggthealthcare challenges facing the nation andithiel today.

e Security, Law Enforcement, and Justi€ur clients include the Department of Homelandu@igec(DHS), the Department of Justice (DOJ), ame
Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI). The missiohthese agencies and their component departrfams on protecting and defending the
United States against foreign and domestic thr@isy are responsible for enhancing national sgcwmnforcing laws, protecting our borders,
preventing terrorism, securing cyberspace, andramggsdisaster resilience. Based on our clear utaieding of these missions, and our longstar
relationships with these agencies, Booz Allen sugpgbese clients by delivering management comspukikpertise to define mission objectives and
manage change, technology expertise in the arddsagpplication development and network engineerarglytics, data science and scientific
expertise to identify current and anticipate futimeats; and engineering design and prototypipglgitities to protect against rapidly evolving
threats found in both the physical and cyber space.

« Finance and Economic Developme Our clients include the Internal Revenue Sentioe,Department of Labor, General Services Admiafitn,
and the National Science Foundation. We providéda wange of technology, analytics, and digitaliohs to federal agencies that establish
regulatory and economic policy (i.e., Federal Res&ystem, Federal Deposit Insurance Corporatiepafiment of Labor); that provide core
services to other Federal agencies (i.e., Depattofédbommerce, Department of State, Office of PengbManagement, General Services
Administration); that are charged with the collentimanagement, and protection of the nation'sifilsh system (i.e., Internal Revenue Service,
Treasury Bureaus), and that administers grants KNational Science Foundation, Department of Adrize). Our developers, programmers,
business analysts and project managers are e$gamtizers to our clients in defending and protegthe institutional systems that process our
nation's financial needs. For example, the InteR®lenue Service (IRS) utilizes our applicationedepment and analytics capability in support of
tax collection, fraud identification, and the pregieon of the tax systems to address complex clegimgax law.

< Energy, Environment, Transportation and SpOur clients include the Department of Energy (DQE®, Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA), the Department of Transportation (DOT), &melNational Aeronautics and Space AdministratdASA). Working with the DOE, our
capabilities in techno-economic analysis, orgaropai transformation, and R&D program managemeathailping to develop game-changing
energy technologies and enabling DOE to manadelitsatories and facilities such as the StrategicdReum Reserve and Y-12/Pantex more
efficiently. For the EPA, we provide systems depet@ent and program management
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across a wide range of agency offices. At the D@4 provide engineering, technology, analytics,tegig, program management, and technical
services across the breadth of the DOT componenirgstrations including supporting the nation's trexdvanced and innovative transportation
initiatives, including the development and deploptnef the Next Generation Air Transportation Systéme Intelligent Transportation Systems
Connected Vehicle Program, and the High-SpeeddityedPassenger Rail Program. At NASA, we are sufippspace programs with engineering,
systems integration, and configuration management.

Commercial and International Clients

Our revenue generated with commercial and intesnaticlients, which includes work for private seattients inside and outside of the U.S., foreign
government entities, foreign military sales to hb. government clients, and work performed outeiddie U.S. for the U.S. Agency for International
Development, was $167.2 million, or approximate898 of our revenue in fiscal 20B5 compared to $141.8 million, or approximately2 & our revenu
in fiscal 2014 .

Commercial Clientdn the U.S. commercial market, we are leveragingoyber expertise developed over decades of wottk WiS. intelligence
community clients, and core competencies in advaacalytics, regulatory compliance, and IT infrasture to anticipate threats, analyze massive ataoun
of data, comply with governing laws, and improveigtions. We serve clients in industries in whiofre is a strong intersection between governmeht an
commercial interests and where clients are exparigrgreater cyber threats. These industries ircfirdincial services, healthcare, energy, retad, a
automotive. Our client base includes major pharmigca manufacturers, health care providers, l@gamercial and investment banks, utilities, oil gad
companies, major retailers, and auto manufacturers.

International ClientsOur primary international activities are in the Mie East and North Africa region, where we curseatle strong demand for ¢
services, including data analytics, cyber defenagrabstics, mission assurance and risk manageteehtjology, strategy transformation, and program
management. Our primary client base is in the dnfteb Emirates, Saudi Arabia, Qatar, Oman, and &uw/e have expanded our offices into Abu
Dhabi, United Arab Emirates and Qatar and see ¢ropwportunities in Saudi Arabia, Bahrain, and Tyrk&dditionally, we have recently expanded our
international footprint to Singapore as an inipiakitioning to serve clients in select Asian masket

Contracts

Our portfolio of contracts is highly diversifiedmgisting of a range of contract vehicles througlictviour clients may contract for our services, with
no single definite contract accounting for morentBz6% of our revenue, and no single task ordeeuady ID/IQ contract accounting for more than 1 &%
our revenue for fiscal 2015 . Note that statisticsuded in this Contracts section do not includatracts, orders, or revenue associated with legsi
contracts since information under those contractdassified. Revenue associated with classifiedraots is included in total firm wide revenue ugethe
denominator for percentage calculations.

There are two predominant contracting methods bigintine U.S. government procures services: defootgracts and indefinite contract vehicles.
Each of these is described below:

»  Definite contracts call for the performance pésified services or the delivery of specified prad. The U.S. government procures services and
solutions through single award, definite contraletg specify the scope of services that will bévéeéd and identify the contractor that will prog
the specified services. When an agency recogninega for services or products, it develops aniaitigun plan, which details the means by which
it will procure those services or products. Durihg acquisition process, the agency may releasguest for information to determine if qualified
bidders exist, a draft request for a proposalltmathe industry to comment on the scope of wortt acquisition strategy, and finally a formal
request for a proposal. Following the evaluatiosudmitted proposals, the agency will award theragnto the winning bidder.

< Indefinite contract vehicles provide for theuiaace by the client of orders for services or potslunder the terms of the contract. Indefinite
contracts are formally known as ID/IQ contracts areloften referred to as contract vehicles orrimdecontracts. ID/IQ contracts may be awarded
to one contractor (single award) or several cotdradmultiple award). Under a multiple award ID&Qntract, there is no guarantee of work as
contract holders must compete for individual wor#tess. ID/IQ contracts will often include pre-edisiied labor categories and rates, and the
ordering process is streamlined (usually taking tean a month from recognition of a need to aabdished order with a contractor). ID/IQ
contracts often have multi-year terms and unfuragiéhg amounts, thereby enabling but not comngttime U.S. government to purchase
substantial amounts of products and services freenas more contractors in a streamlined procureertess.

¢ GWACs and GSA Schedules are ID/IQ contractsdahatopen to all U.S. government agencies. Conti@diers compete for individual task
orders under both types of ID/IQ contract vehicRrices (labor rates) are pre-established under &&#%dules, while prices under GWACs
may be pre-established or determined
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by task order proposal. Agencies may solicit congmdirectly under GSA Schedules and, under GWA@st work through the agency that
operates the GWAC or receive a delegation of aityhtar use the GWAC. GSA Schedules are administbyethe GSA and support a wide
range of products and services. GWACs are usetbtiupe IT products and services and are administeyehe agency soliciting the services
or products, with permission from the Office of Maement and Budget.

Listed below are our top definite contract, our fiep definite contracts and our top ten definibaizacts for fiscal 201&nd revenue recognized uni
these contracts in fiscal 2015 .

% of

Fiscal Total Expiration
2015 Revenue Date
(in millions)
Top Definite Contract $ 137.¢ 3% 12/31/202(
Top Five Definite Contracts 317.¢ 6%
Top Ten Definite Contracts 426.2 8%

Listed below are our top ID/IQ contract, our togefiD/IQ contracts and our top ten ID/IQ contrdatsfiscal 2015 , in each case excluding revenue
associated with GSA Schedules and GWACS, and thbauof active task orders under these contraaté Blsrch 31, 2015 .

Number of
% of Task Orders
Fiscal Total as of Expiration
2015 Revenue March 31, 2015 Date
(in millions)
Top ID/IQ Contract? $ 641.¢ 12% 12¢ 7/8/201¢
Top Five ID/IQ Contracts 1,236.t 23% 24%
Top Ten ID/IQ Contracts 1,637.¢ 31% 297

(1) While the contract end date is 7/8/2015, ttaeeeseveral task orders that extend beyond theamrend date with the longest duration task order
end date on 9/30/2016.

As of March 31, 2015, there were a total of 32 G®Mleral Supply schedules with over 19,000 schethlters. In government fiscal year 2014
(ended September 30, 2014), sales on GSA Schedtddsd more than $32.8 billion. During the goveemtifiscal year 2014, we were the number two
provider under the GSA Federal Supply Schedulerprag

GSA has been examining ways to improve its profesdiservice Schedule offerings as part of thete@ary Management initiative. As a result of
their examination, GSA has determined that crosstfanal solutions would be more accessible to govent clients if the Schedule program were
consolidated. GSA is, therefore, consolidatingdt@epe of the eight professional service Schedntesone professional service Schedule contractdage
procurement complexity and increase agency use.

Booz Allen has submitted its migration request ®4Gnd anticipates the new vehicle to be awardear @bout June 30, 2015. Once awarded, the
company will begin using this Schedule for all neark. The individual Schedules included in GSA&solidation will remain in place through the erid o
the current option to prevent the interruptionefvices. The revenue generated under these indivischedules will begin to decrease during tlaisditior
period. The decrease in revenue on the indivisdatdules will be offset by commensurate growtheatick new professional service Schedule. GSA has
been listening to industry’s concerns and implelingnthanges when appropriate to reduce risk tdiegisvork. As a result, we anticipate this traiosit
will have negligible impact on future revenues, mgntion the consolidation as it will cause chartgeke list of top GSA Schedules and GWACs as the
transition takes place.

Listed below are our top three GSA Schedules andAG®Mn fiscal 2015 and revenue for each of fis€Hl2, fiscal 2014 , and fiscal 2013 , the
number of active task orders as of March 31, 20ideueach of our top three GSA Schedules and GWak@san aggregation of all other GSA Schedules
and GWACs. These contract vehicles are availabdd 10.S. government agencies and the revenuedsiatbe result of individually competed task osder
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Number of

% of % of % of Task Orders
Fiscal Total Fiscal Total Fiscal Total as of Expiration
2015 Revenue 2014 Revenue 2013 (1) Revenue 31-Mar-15 Date

(Revenue in millions)

Mission Oriented Business
Integrated Services

(MOBIS) — #874 $ 229t 1% $ 274.¢ 5% $ 354.( 6% 561 9/30/2017
Booz Allen Alliant 181.¢ 3% 119.¢ 2% 63.5 1% 27 4/30/2019
Information Technology

(IT) — #70 177.¢ 3% 199.1 4% 186.¢ 3% 311 3/22/2019
All Others 449.¢ 1C% 567.¢ 1C% 522.( 9% 68C

Total $ 1,038! 2% $ 1,161 21% $ 1,126. 19% 1,57¢

(1) Fiscal 2013 revenue was updated to includessimg group of orders under the MOBIS contractalehi

We derived approximately 78% of our revenue fardi2015 from over 3,300 active task orders unBéQ contracts (inclusive of GSA Schedules
and GWACSs). Listed below for each specified revelpaied is the number of, revenue derived from, aredaage duration of our task orders as of March 31,
2015 . The table includes revenue earned durieglf015 under all task orders that were activinduiscal 2015 under these ID/IQ contracts and the
number of active task orders on which this revemag earned. Average duration reflected in the thblew is calculated based on the inception datheof
task order, which may be prior to the beginnindisifal 2015 , and the completion date which mayehaeen prior or subsequent to March 31, 2015 . As a
result, the actual average remaining durationdsk brders included in this table may be less tharaverage duration shown in the table, and teddrs
included in the table may have been complete orcMat, 2015 .

% of Total

Number of Task Fiscal Average

Orders Active During Fiscal 2015 Revenue (in 2015 Duration

Segmentation of Task Order by Revenue Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2015 millions) Revenue (Years)
Less than $1 million 2521 % 631.¢ 12% 1.7
Between $1 million and $3 million 46( 788.: 15% 2.3
Between $3 million and $5 million 15E 595.¢ 11% 2.6
Between $5 million and $10 million 11z 780.¢ 15% 2.8
Greater than $10 million 72 1,341.¢ 25% 2.€
Total 3,321 % 4,138.: 78% 1.8

For fiscal 2015, we used a revised methodologydésgnt the segmentation of task orders by reveaneé.The change in methodology includes
Active task orders are defined as orders with @ dtgte that is prior to the last day of the fispahr (March 31) and an end date that is on or #feefirst
day of the fiscal year (April 1), and 2) We revised the average duration to irchitiperiods (base and options) on the active dadirs. As such, we
present a revised table below for fiscal 2014 whédtects the same methodology used for the fi204b table.

% of Total

Number of Task Fiscal Average

Orders Active During Fiscal 2014 Revenue (in 2014 Duration

Segmentation of Task Order by Revenue Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2014 millions) Revenue (Years)
Less than $1 million 250¢ $ 632. 11% 1.7
Between $1 million and $3 million 50¢ 874.: 16% 2.4
Between $3 million and $5 million 14¢€ 549.( 10% 2.6
Between $5 million and $10 million 13€ 949.¢ 17% 2.8
Greater than $10 million 78 1,407.: 25% 2.8
Total 337t % 4,412, 79% 1.€
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Backlog
We define backlog to include the following threemgmnents:

. Funded BacklogFunded backlog represents the revenue value ofofdeservices under existing contracts for wHiatding is appropriated or
otherwise authorized less revenue previously reizedron these contracts.

. Unfunded BacklodJnfunded backlog represents the revenue valuedgfrsifor services under existing contracts for Wiiimding has not been
appropriated or otherwise authorized.

. Priced OptionsPriced contract options represent 100% of the newealue of all future contract option periods uneldsting contracts that may
be exercised at our clients’ option and for whighding has not been appropriated or otherwise aatith

Backlog does not include any task orders undeiQRintracts, including GWACs and GSA schedulesgpito the extent that task orders have been
awarded to us under those contracts.

The following table summarizes the value of ourtcaxt backlog as of the respective dates presented:

As of March 31,

2015 2014

(In millions)
Funded $ 2,691 $ 2,29(
Unfunded (1) 2,121 2,34z
Priced options 4,54¢ 5,20¢
Total backlog $ 9,36( % 9,83¢

(1) Reflects a reduction by management to themeeealue of orders for services under one exisingle award ID/IQ contracts the Company has had
for several years, based on an established pattéumding under this contract by the U.S. governtne

We may never realize all of the revenue that ituthed in our total backlog, and there is a highegrde of risk in this regard with respect to unfeohd
backlog and priced options. See “Item 7. Managem&iscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiomd&esults of Operations — Factors Affecting Our
Results of Operations — Sources of Revenue — CarBacklog” for additional disclosure regarding demacklog. See also “ltem 1A. Risk FactorsRisks
Related to Our Business — We may not realize thevdlue of our backlog, which may result in lovthan expected revenue.”

Competition

The government services market is highly fragmeateti competition within the government professi@ealices industry has intensified due to
market pressure. In addition to professional seregmmpanies like ours that focus principally onghgvision of services to the U.S. government, othe
companies active in our markets include large defantractors; diversified consulting, technolagyd outsourcing service providers; and small
businesses. Changing government policies and mdyketmics are also helping to reshape the competindscape. Some large prime contractors are
beginning to divest their professional servicesrmss units due to the U.S. government’s increaseaditivity to organizational conflicts of interestd
these divested companies will be free to competie wa without their former organizational conflicfsinterest constraints. The formal adoption @ th
Federal Acquisition Regulation, or FAR, organizatibconflicts of interest rules, or additional moestrictive rules by U.S. government agenciesaoul
cause further such divestitures which could furtherease competition in our markets. At the othed of the spectrum, small businesses are growitiggi
government services industry due in large partpash by both the Obama and Bush administratiobsli&ier the economy by helping small business
owners. Finally, due to the foregoing factors amldrive in our markets to quickly build competesdin growth areas and achieve economies of sgale,
believe that consolidation activity among marketipgants will increase.

In the course of doing business, we compete andmhte with companies of all types and sizes stkiee to maintain positive and productive
relationships with these organizations. Some afith@e us as a subcontractor, and we hire sonteeaf to work with us as our subcontractors. Our majo
competitors include: (i) contractors focused piiadlly on the provision of services to the U.S. goweent; such as CACI International, Inc., L-3
Communications Holdings, Inc., ManTech Internatiddarp., SRA International, Inc., Vencore, and Hing(ii) large defense contractors which provide
both products and services to the U.S. governnseiah) as General Dynamics Corp., Lockheed MartipCdlorthrop Grumman Corp., and Raytheon Co.;
and (iii) diversified service providers; such as@iture, Computer Sciences Corp., Deloitte Comsylti P, Leidos, and SAIC, Inc. We compete on the
basis of our technical expertise and
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client knowledge, our ability to successfully ratappropriately skilled and experienced talent, @hility to deliver cost-effective multi-facetedrsices in
a timely manner, our reputation and relationshighwiur clients, our past performance, securityraleees, and the size and scale of our company. In
addition, in order to maintain our competitive piosi, we routinely review our operating structwrapabilities, and strategy to determine whethearge
effectively meeting the needs of existing clieefectively responding to developments in our meskand successfully building a platform intended t
provide the foundation for the future growth of dwsiness.

Patents and Proprietary Information

Our management and technology consulting servicéselated products are not generally dependent pptent protection. We claim a proprietary
interest in certain of our service offerings andterd products, methodologies, and know-how. Wesltafew patents but we do not consider our busitess
be materially dependent on the protection of swatkngs. Additionally, we have a number of tradeetschat contribute to our success and competitive
position, and we endeavor to protect this propneigformation. While protecting trade secrets anoprietary information is important, we are not
materially dependent on any specific trade segrgtaup of trade secrets. Other than licenses tianoercially available third-party software, we hane
licenses to intellectual property that are sigaificto our business.

We rely upon a combination of nondisclosure agregmand other contractual arrangements, as web@gight, trademark, patent, and trade secret
laws to protect our proprietary information. Weoaéter into proprietary information and intellegitproperty agreements with employees, which requir
them to disclose any inventions created during egympént, to convey such rights to inventions toamgl to restrict any disclosure of proprietary
information.

Our most important trademark is the “Booz Allen Hiéon” mark, registered in the United States andase foreign countries. Generally, registered
trademarks have perpetual life, provided that greyrenewed on a timely basis and continue to bd psoperly as trademarks. We have four registered
trademarks related to our name and logo with thkesarenewal in March 2020.

For our work under U.S. government funded contrantssubcontracts, the U.S. government obtainaineights to data, software, and related
information developed under such contracts or sofpaots. These rights generally allow the U.S. goweent to disclose such data, software, and related
information to third parties, which third partiesyninclude our competitors in some instances. énctise of our work as a subcontractor, our prime
contractor may also have certain rights to dafayimation, and products we develop under the subacin

Booz Allen Hamiltor?, the Booz Allen Cyber Solutions Netwdtkthe Booz Allen Hamilton logo, and other tradensaok service marks of Booz
Allen Hamilton Inc. appearing in this Annual Reparé property of Booz Allen Hamilton Inc. Trade reentrademarks, and service marks of other
companies appearing in this Annual Report are thpepty of their respective owners.

Regulation

As a contractor to the U.S. government, as wedttate and local governments, we are heavily regdiliat most fields in which we operate. We deal
with numerous U.S. government agencies and entéieswhen working with these and other entitiessymust comply with and are affected by unique laws
and regulations relating to the formation, admmaisbn, and performance of public government catsraSome significant laws and regulations thagcff
us include:

* FAR, and agency regulations supplemental td-#ig, which regulate the formation, administratiand performance of U.S. government
contracts. For example, FAR 52.203-13 requiresraoturs to establish a Code of Business EthicsCamdiuct, implement a comprehensive
internal control system, and report to the govemiméen the contractor has credible evidence tipsingipal, employee, agent, or subcontractor,
in connection with a government contract, has walaertain federal criminal laws, violated theildialse Claims Act, or has received a signific
overpayment;

e the False Claims Act and False Statements Agtiwimpose civil and criminal liability for prestmg false or fraudulent claims for payments or
reimbursement, and making false statements to tBeddvernment, respectively;

< the Truth in Negotiations Act, which requirestifization and disclosure of cost and pricing diataonnection with the negotiation of a contract,
modification, or task order;

» the Procurement Integrity Act, which regulatesess to competitor bid and proposal informatioh @rtain internal government procurement
sensitive information, and our ability to providengpensation to certain former government procure¢oiicials;
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» laws and regulations restricting the ability ofamtractor to provide gifts or gratuities to emplegef the U.S. governme

* post-government employment laws and regulatisgch restrict the ability of a contractor to reitrand hire current employees of the U.S.
government and deploy former employees of the gbo8ernment;

« laws, regulations, and executive orders regtgdtihe use and dissemination of information cfass$ifor national security purposes or determired t
be “controlled unclassified information” or “forfafial use only” and the export of certain prodystsrvices, and technical data, including
requirements regarding any applicable licensingusfemployees involved in such work;

< laws, regulations, and executive orders reguietthe handling, use, and dissemination of perdoitintifiable information in the course of
performing a U.S. government contract;

« laws, regulations, and executive orders goveroirganizational conflicts of interest that maytriesour ability to compete for certain U.S.
government contracts because of the work that weietly perform for the U.S. government or may liegjthat we take measures such as
firewalling off certain employees or restrictingethfuture work activities due to the current wailat they perform under a U.S. government
contract;

* laws, regulations and executive orders that sepequirements on us to ensure compliance withinamgents and protect the government from risk
related to our supply chain;

« laws, regulations and mandatory contract provisfmosiding protections to employees or subcontracseeking to report alleged fraud, waste,
abuse related to a government contract;

» the Contractor Business Systems rule, whichaizths Department of Defense agencies to withhgdréion of our payments if we are determined
to have a significant deficiency in our accountiogst estimating, purchasing, earned value managiematerial management and accounting,
and/or property management system; and

» the Cost Accounting Standards and Cost Prinsjpidich impose accounting requirements that gowarrright to reimbursement under certain
cost-based U.S. government contracts and requirgistency of accounting practices over time.

Given the magnitude of our revenue derived frontramts with the Department of Defense, the Def&matract Audit Agency, or DCAA, is our
cognizant government audit agency. The DCAA autigsadequacy of our internal control systems aridips including, among other areas, compense
As a result of its audits, the DCAA may determinatta portion of our employee compensation is onable. See “ltem 1A. Risk Factors — Risk Related
to Our Industry — Our contracts, performance, ahaiaistrative processes and systems are subjecidits, reviews, investigations, and cost adjustmen
by the U.S. government, which could reduce ourmaeedisrupt our business, or otherwise materadiyersely affect our results of operations.” We are
also subject to audit by Inspectors General ofrdth8. government agencies.

The U.S. government may revise its procurementtigescor adopt new contract rules and regulatioasg time. In order to help ensure compliance
with these laws and regulations, all of our empésyare required to attend ethics training at leasutally, as well as other compliance trainingwafe to
their position. Internationally, we are subjecspecial U.S. government laws and regulations (sisdine Foreign Corrupt Practices Act), local gorernt
regulations and procurement policies and practioekjding regulations relating to import-exporintm|, investments, exchange controls, and regatria
of earnings, as well as varying currency, politieadd economic risks.

U.S. government contracts are, by their terms, ettty termination by the U.S. government eitheiitBoconvenience or default by the contractor. In
addition, U.S. government contracts are conditiamgoh the continuing availability of Congressioappropriations. Congress usually appropriates funds
for a given program on a September 30 fiscal yaaisheven though contract performance may take iyears. As is common in the industry, our comj
is subject to business risks, including changegirernmental appropriations, national defense galiservice modernization plans, and availabdfty
funds. Any of these factors could materially adefraffect our company’s business with the U.S.ggoment in the future.

The U.S. government has a broad range of acti@isttban instigate in order to enforce its procueat law and policies. These include proposing a
contractor, certain of its operations or individeaiployees for debarment or suspending or debaarguntractor, certain of its operations or indixat
employees from future government business. In &xhdio criminal, civil and administrative actiong the U.S. government, under the False Claims &ct,
individual alleging fraud related to payments unaléf.S. government contract or program may fileigt@m lawsuit on behalf of the government agairss
if successful in obtaining a judgment or settlem#re individual filing the suit may receive up30 percent of the amount recovered by the goverimen
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See “Item 1A. Risk Factors — Risks Related to OusiBess — We are required to comply with numerausland regulations, some of which are
highly complex, and our failure to comply coulduttsn fines or civil or criminal penalties or susysion or debarment by the U.S. government thdticou
result in our inability to continue to work on @ceive U.S. government contracts, which could rmadtlgiand adversely affect our results of operaion

Available Information

We file annual, quarterly, and current reports atiebr information with the SEC. You may read angycany documents that we file at the SEC’s
public reference room at 100 F Street, N.E., Wagbim D.C. 20549. You may call the SEC at 1-800-$BG0 to obtain further information about the
public reference room. In addition, the SEC mamgain Internet website (www.sec.gov) that contegpsrts, proxy and information statements, androthe
information regarding registrants that file eleofoally with the SEC, including us. You may alseess, free of charge, our reports filed with th€%tor
example, our Annual Report on Form 10-K, our Qurteeports on Form 10-Q, and our Current Repantgarm 8K and any amendments to those for
through the “Investors” portion of our Internet v8éb (www.boozallen.com). Reports filed with orriighed to the SEC will be available as soon as
reasonably practicable after they are filed witiusnished to the SEC. Our website is includechia Annual Report as an inactive textual referemdg.

The information found on our website is not partha$ or any other report filed with or furnishedthe SEC.

Item 1A . Risk Factors

You should consider and read carefully all of treks and uncertainties described below, as wetithsr information included in this Annual Report,
including our consolidated financial statements aeldted notes. The risks described below are m®only ones facing us. The occurrence of anyeof th
following risks or additional risks and uncertai@si not presently known to us or that we currentljelve to be immaterial could materially and adety:
affect our business, financial condition, or resuf operations. This Annual Report also contaime/érd-looking statements and estimates that ire/olv
risks and uncertainties. Our actual results couilfiedd materially from those anticipated in the f@wg-looking statements as a result of specificdest
including the risks and uncertainties describedtel

Risks Related to Our Business

We depend on contracts with U.S. government agenéie substantially all of our revenue. If our retoonships with such agencies are harmed, ¢
future revenue and operating profits would declir

The U.S. government is our primary client, witheaue from contracts and task orders, either asreepor a subcontractor, with U.S. government
agencies accounting for 98% of our revenue foafi2015 . Our belief is that the successful fugnawvth of our business will continue to depend ariityy
on our ability to be awarded work under U.S. gowgnt contracts, as we expect this will be the piynsaurce of substantially all of our revenue ia th
foreseeable future. For this reason, any issuectimapromises our relationship with the U.S. goventgenerally or any U.S. government agency that we
serve would cause our revenue to decline. Amongélgdactors in maintaining our relationship withSJgovernment agencies are our performance on
contracts and task orders, the strength of ouepsidnal reputation, compliance with applicablesland regulations, and the strength of our relakigps
with client personnel. In addition, the mishandlogthe perception of mishandling of sensitive infation, such as our failure to maintain the
confidentiality of the existence of our businedatienships with certain of our clients, includiag a result of misconduct or other improper adtisiby our
employees or subcontractors, or a failure to mairgdequate protection against security breachekiding those resulting from cyber attacks, cdddn
our relationship with U.S. government agencies. @lationship with the U.S. government could alsabmaged as a result of an agency’s dissatisfactio
with work performed by us, a subcontractor, or othé&d parties who provide services or productsafepecific project for any reason, including tie
perceived or actual deficiencies in the performasroguality of our work, and we may incur additibnasts to address any such situation and the
profitability of that work might be impaired. Fugh negative publicity concerning government carities in general or us in particular may harm our
reputation with federal government contractorstfiemextent our reputation or relationships with .lg&ernment agencies is impaired, our revenue and
operating profits could materially decline.

U.S. government spending and mission priorities ahange in a manner that adversely affects outdte revenue and limits our growth
prospects

Our business depends upon continued U.S. goverrempenditures on defense, intelligence, and cirggpmms for which we provide support. These
expenditures have not remained constant over tiane been reduced in certain periods and, recdratlye been affected by the U.S. government’s affort
to improve efficiency and reduce costs affectirdefal government programs generally. Our busin@sspects, financial condition, or operating result
could be materially harmed, among other causethéiollowing:

17




e budgetary constraints, including Congressionalgndated automatic spending cuts, affecting Lb8eigmpment spending generally, or specific
agencies in particular, and changes in availabidifg;

e ashift in expenditures away from agencies or @ogrthat we suppo

e reduced U.S. government outsourcing of functitias we are currently contracted to provide, idilg as a result of increased insourcing by
various U.S. government agencies due to changée idefinition of “inherently governmental” workdluding proposals to limit contractor access
to sensitive or classified information and workigsments;

- further efforts to improve efficiency and reducetsoaffecting federal government progre
e changes in U.S. government programs that we suppoelated requiremen
* acontinuation of recent efforts by the U.S. gomeent to decrease spending for management suppoiteseontracts

* U.S. government shutdowns due to a failure bgtel officials to fund the government (such aswhtach occurred during government fiscal year
2014) or weather-related closures in the Washindgd@harea (such as that which occurred in the winit@014) and other potential delays in the
appropriations process;

» U.S. government agencies awarding contracts oahaigally acceptable/lowest cost basis in ordeethuce expenditure
» delays in the payment of our invoices by governnparytnent office:

* aninability by the U.S. government to funddfserations as a result of a failure to increasddtieral government’s debt ceiling, a credit
downgrade of U.S. government obligations or for ather reason; and

< changes in the political climate and generaheadic conditions, including a slowdown of the eamryoor unstable economic conditions and
responses to conditions, such as emergency speildaigeduce funds available for other governnpeiarities.

In addition, any disruption in the functioning of3J government agencies, including as a result8f government closures and shutdowns, terrorism,
war, natural disasters, destruction of U.S. govemirfecilities, and other potential calamities cbibdve a negative impact on our operations anceaasifo
lose revenue or incur additional costs due to, anuther things, our inability to deploy our staffdient locations or facilities as a result oflsuc
disruptions.

The U.S. government budget deficits, the natioealt,dand the prevailing economic condition, anibasttaken to address them, could continue to
negatively affect the U.S. government expenditoredefense, intelligence, and civil programs foiclihwe provide support. The Department of Defesse i
one of our significant clients and cost cuttinglimling through consolidation and elimination opticative organizations and insourcing, has became
major initiative for the Department of Defense phrticular, the Budget Control Act of 2011 (as adexhby the American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012 and
the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2014) requadsn-year $487 billion reduction to baseline sl of the Department of Defense and provides for
automatic spending cuts (referred to as sequestjabtaling approximately $1.2 trillion between130and 2021, including an estimated $500 billion in
federal defense spending cuts over this time pe@wodFebruary 2, 2015, President Obama releasdd. Sisgovernment fiscal year 2016 budget proposal,
which sets discretionary spending at $1.087 trilliwith $561 billion for defense and $526 billiasr hon-defense. The President's proposal wouldrit@
the sequester for fiscal year 2016 and future yssosigh a series of ten year offsets that inclademing certain mandatory and discretionary prawgdy
$600 billion, raising nearly $640 billion in newxteevenue, and implementing an immigration overlpgan that estimates say would save approximately
$160 billion. It is unclear, however, whether Caegy will enact any of the President’s proposed éuitigreases, and there remains uncertainty regardi
how sequester cuts beyond government fiscal yeks @@ be applied to the Department of Defense atftr agencies. The implementation of further ¢
spending cuts may reduce, delay or cancel fundingdrtain of our contracts and programs and cadiersely impact our operations and financial tesul
While recent budget actions reflect a more measaneldstrategic approach to addressing the U.Srgment's fiscal challenges, there remains uncdstain
as to how exactly budget cuts, including sequestrawill impact us, and we are therefore unablpredict the extent of the impact of such cuts on o
business and results of operations. However, actieaiuin the amount of services that we are cotedhto provide to the Department of Defense asaltre
of any of these related initiatives, legislatiorotierwise could have a material adverse effedwrbusiness and results of operations. In addition
response to an Office of Management and Budget atangovernment agencies have reduced managenpgrarsservices spending in recent years. If
federal awards for management support servicesneanto decline, our revenue and operating prafiiy materially decline and further efforts by the
Office of Management and Budget to decrease federatds for management support services could hawaterial and adverse effect on our business and
results of operations.
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These or other factors could cause our defensligeince, or civil clients to decrease the numidferew contracts awarded generally and fail to
award us new contracts, reduce their purchases ondexisting contracts, exercise their rightdorinate our contracts, or not exercise optiongmew
our contracts, any of which could cause a matdgaline in our revenue.

We are required to comply with numerous laws anguéations, some of which are highly complex, andrdailure to comply could result in fines
or civil or criminal penalties or suspension or dabment by the U.S. government that could resultdar inability to continue to work on or receive U.S
government contracts, which could materially andwesely affect our results of operation

As a U.S. government contractor, we must compi tetvs and regulations relating to the formatiamanistration, and performance of
U.S. government contracts, which affect how we dsifess with our clients. Such laws and regulatioag potentially impose added costs on our business
and our failure to comply with them may lead tailadv criminal penalties, termination of our U.Savgrnment contracts, and/or suspension or debarment
from contracting with federal agencies. Some sigaift laws and regulations that affect us include:

e the FAR, and agency regulations supplementtiiéd-AR, which regulate the formation, administratiand performance of U.S. government
contracts. For example, FAR 52.203-13 requiresraoturs to establish a Code of Business EthicsCamdluct, implement a comprehensive
internal control system, and report to the govemiméen the contractor has credible evidence tipsingipal, employee, agent, or subcontractor,
in connection with a government contract, has walaertain federal criminal laws, violated theildialse Claims Act, or has received a signific
overpayment;

e the False Claims Act and False Statements Adtiwimpose civil and criminal liability for prestmg false or fraudulent claims for payments or
reimbursement, and making false statements to tBeddvernment, respectively;

e the Truth in Negotiations Act, which requirestifieation and disclosure of cost and pricing dat@onnection with the negotiation of a contract,
modification, or task order;

e post government employment laws and regulatishsch restrict the ability of a contractor to reitr hire, and deploy former employees of the
U.S. government;

« laws, regulations, and executive orders restriciirguse and dissemination of information classifa national security purposes and the expc
certain products, services, and technical dat&ydivg requirements regarding any applicable licansf our employees involved in such
work; and

e the FAR Cost Accounting Standards and Cost Riliess, which impose accounting requirements thaegoour right to reimbursement under
certain cost-based U.S. government contracts apdreeconsistency of accounting practices over time

In addition, the U.S. government adopts new lawigesr and regulations from time to time that cdwdde a material impact on our results of
operations.

Our performance under our U.S. government conteaadsour compliance with the terms of those cotgrand applicable laws and regulations are
subject to periodic audit, review, and investigatity various agencies of the U.S. government aadtinrent environment has led to increased regylato
scrutiny and sanctions for non-compliance by siggmaies generally. In addition, from time to time sport potential or actual violations of applieab
laws and regulations to the relevant governmenitiaity. Any such report of a potential or actuallation of applicable laws or regulations couded to
an audit, review, or investigation by the relevagéncies of the U.S. government. If such an aralitew, or investigation uncovers a violation déae or
regulation, or improper or illegal activities refeg to our U.S. government contracts, we may bégestibo civil or criminal penalties or administragi
sanctions, including the termination of contrafusfeiture of profits, the triggering of price redtion clauses, withholding of payments, suspensfon
payments, fines and suspension, or debarment footnacting with U.S. government agencies. Suchlgesand sanctions are not uncommon in the
industry and there is inherent uncertainty as ¢oatlitcome of any particular audit, review, or irigggion. If we incur a material penalty or admiragive
sanction or otherwise suffer harm to our reputatim profitability, cash position, and future poests could be materially and adversely affected.

Further, if the U.S. government were to initiatsfgension or debarment proceedings against usaar #re indicted for or convicted of illegal
activities relating to our U.S. government condotlowing an audit, review, or investigation, weay lose our ability to be awarded contracts inftiere
or receive renewals of existing contracts for aqueof time which could materially and adverselfeaf our results of operations or financial coratitiWe
could also suffer harm to our reputation if allégas of impropriety were made against us, which v@mpair our ability to win awards of contractsthre
future or receive renewals of existing contracee Stem 1. Business — Regulation."
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We derive a majority of our revenue from contra@warded through a competitive bidding process, and revenue and profitability may be
adversely affected if we are unable to compete@ifely in the process or if there are delays cadidy our competitors protesting major contract awlar
received by us.

We derive a majority of our revenue from U.S. goweent contracts awarded through competitive bidgimgesses. We do not expect this to change
for the foreseeable future. Our failure to compdtectively in this procurement environment woulil/e a material adverse effect on our revenue and
profitability.

The competitive bidding process involves risk aigahificant costs to businesses operating in thisrenment, including:

< the necessity to expend resources, make finlacmiamitments (such as procuring leased premiseshal on engagements in advance of the
completion of their design, which may result inamgseen difficulties in execution, cost overrund,an the case of an unsuccessful competition,
the loss of committed costs;

« the substantial cost and managerial time and effoght to prepare bids and proposals for contthatamay not be awarded to
« the ability to accurately estimate the resourcekaasts that will be required to service any cartvee are awarde

» the expense and delay that may arise if our ebitops protest or challenge contract awards madss fpursuant to competitive bidding, and the risk
that any such protest or challenge could resuhéresubmission of bids on modified specificatjarsn termination, reduction, or modification of
the awarded contract; and

« any opportunity cost of bidding and winning othentacts we might otherwise purs

In circumstances where contracts are held by atvpanies and are scheduled to expire, we stillmoape provided the opportunity to bid on those
contracts if the U.S. government determines torekthe existing contract. If we are unable to waintigular contracts that are awarded through the
competitive bidding process, we may not be ableprate in the market for services that are pravideler those contracts for the duration of those
contracts to the extent that there is no additideahand for such services. An inability to congiljewin new contract awards over any extendedaggleri
would have a material adverse effect on our busiaed results of operations.

The current competitive environment has resulteghiincrease in the number of bid protests fronuceesssful bidders on new program awards. I
take many months for the relevant U.S. governmgehey to resolve protests by one or more of ourpaditors of contract awards we receive. Bid pretest
may result in significant expense to us, contraatlification or loss of an awarded contract as alteg the award being overturned. Even where weato
lose the awarded contract, the resulting delaheérstart up and funding of the work under theséraots may cause our actual results to differ nmedbgr
and adversely from those anticipated.

A significant majority of our revenue is deriveddm task orders under indefinite delivery/indefinitantity, or ID/IQ, contract vehicles including
GSA Schedules and GWACSs, where we perform in eith@rime or subcontract position. Some of these trant vehicles are material to our business.

We believe that one of the key elements of ouresgts our position as the holder of over 3,30Watask orders under ID/IQ contract vehicles
(inclusive of GSA Schedules and GWAC's) as of M&8th2015, the largest of which represents 12%uofevenue base. Our ability to maintain our
existing business and win new business dependsioabdity to maintain our prime and subcontragiositions on these contracts. Our largest ID/IQ
contract expires on July 8, 2015. The loss, withteptacement, of certain of these contract vehiotedd have a material adverse affect on our ghiitwin
new business and our operating results. In additiaghe U.S. government elects to use a contrahtcle that we do not hold, we will not be abletmnpete
for work under that contract vehicle as a primetamtor.

We may earn less revenue than projected, or no nexse under certain of our contracts.

Many of our contracts with our clients are ID/IQntiacts, including GSA schedules and GWACSs. ID/tRteacts provide for the issuance by the
client of orders for services or products undercetract, and often contain multi-year terms anfiinded ceiling amounts, which allow but do not caim
the U.S. government to purchase products and ssrftiom contractors. Our ability to generate reeemuder each of these types of contracts deperufs up
our ability to be awarded task orders for speaécvices by the client. ID/IQ contracts may be a@&drto one contractor (single award) or several
contractors (multiple award). Multiple contractansist compete under multiple award 1D/IQ contraotstésk orders to provide particular services, and
contractors earn revenue only to the extent thet successfully compete for these task ordergstalf2015 , fiscal 2014 , and fiscal 2013 , oweraie
under our GSA schedules and GWACs accounted for ,222%0 and 19%, respectively, of our total reverutailure to be awarded task orders under such
contracts would have a material adverse effectuwnmasults of operations and financial condition.
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Our earnings and profitability may vary based onetimix of our contracts and may be adversely affeldby our failure to accurately estimate or
otherwise recover the expenses, time, and resoufoesur contracts.

We enter into three general types of U.S. governmoentracts for our services: cost-reimbursabieetand-materials, and fixed-price. For fiscal
2015, we derived 55% of our revenue from cost-beireable contracts, 25% from time-and-materialdrects and 20% from fixed-price contracts.

Each of these types of contracts, to varying degiiegolves the risk that we could underestimatecnst of fulfilling the contract, which may reduce
the profit we earn or lead to a financial loss lo& ¢ontract and adversely affect our operatingltsesu

Under cost-reimbursable contracts, we are reimbuicaeallowable costs up to a ceiling and paide fehich may be fixed or performance-based. If
our actual costs exceed the contract ceiling onatallowable under the terms of the contractppliaable regulations, we may not be able to rectvese
costs. In particular, there is increasing focushgyU.S. government on the extent to which govemroentractors, including us, are able to receive
reimbursement for employee compensation, includiegnt rules under the Bipartisan Budget Act of2iht substantially decreased the level of allda
compensation cost for executive-level employeesfarider applied the newly reduced limitation tbeahployees. In addition, there is an increasddafs
compensation being deemed unallowable or paymeiing lvithheld as a result of U.S. government auditiew or investigation.

Under time-and-materials contracts, we are reingglifer labor at negotiated hourly billing rates &mdcertain allowable expenses. We assume
financial risk on time-and-materials contracts luseaour costs of performance may exceed theseiaggbhourly rates.

Under fixed-price contracts, we perform specifkiafor a pre-determined price. Compared to ting+aaterials and cost-reimbursable contracts,
fixed-price contracts generally offer higher margpportunities because we receive the benefiteptast savings, but involve greater financial risk
because we bear the impact of any cost overrurssUT8. government has generally indicated thatéinds to increase its use of fixed price contract
procurements. Because we assume the risk for gestums and contingent losses on fixed-price cotdran increase in the percentage of fixed-price
contracts in our contract mix would increase osk of suffering losses.

Additionally, our profits could be adversely affedtif our costs under any of these contracts extteedssumptions we used in bidding for the
contract. For example, we may miscalculate thescossources, or time needed to complete projecteet contractual milestones as a result of dalays
particular project, including delays in designsgieeering information, or materials provided by thustomer or a third party, delays or difficultias
equipment and material delivery, schedule charagebother factors, some of which are beyond outrabiWe have recorded provisions in our
consolidated financial statements for losses orcontracts, as required under U.S. Generally Aezkpiccounting Principles, or GAAP, but our contract
loss provisions may not be adequate to cover albhtosses that we may incur in the future.

Our professional reputation is critical to our buséss, and any harm to our reputation could decreéise amount of business the U.S. government
does with us, which could have a material adverffee on our future revenue and growth prospects.

We depend on our contracts with U.S. governmemeige for substantially all of our revenue anduf ceputation or relationships with these ager
were harmed, our future revenue and growth prospectild be materially and adversely affected. @putation and relationship with the U.S. government
is a key factor in maintaining and growing revenuéer contracts with the U.S. government. Negairess reports regarding poor contract performance,
employee misconduct, information security breachesther aspects of our business, or regardingmaowent contractors generally, could harm our
reputation. In addition, to the extent our perfonceunder a contract does not meet a U.S. govetragency’s expectations, the client might seek to
terminate the contract prior to its scheduled etjain date, provide a negative assessment of aforpence to government-maintained contractor past-
performance data repositories, fail to award ustiaeé| business under existing contracts or otlewand direct future business to our competitbsur
reputation with these agencies is negatively adfisobr if we are suspended or debarred from cdimgawith government agencies for any reason, such
actions would decrease the amount of businesshtbal.S. government does with us, which would feweaterial adverse effect on our future revenue and
growth prospects.
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We use estimates in recognizing revenue and if vakenchanges to estimates used in recognizing reegrwr profitability may be adversely
affected.

Revenue from our fixed-price contracts is primarédgognized using the percentage-of-completion atethith progress toward completion of a
particular contract based on actual costs incuekdive to total estimated costs to be incurreer dlie life of the contract. Revenue from our cost-
reimbursable-plus-award-fee contracts are basedipastimation of award fees over the life of tbatcact. Estimating costs at completion and aweed f
on our long-term contracts is complex and involsigaificant judgment. Adjustments to original esdtes are often required as work progresses, exgerie
is gained, and additional information becomes knawen though the scope of the work required utfdecontract may not change. Any adjustment as a
result of a change in estimate is recognized aste\®mcome known.

In the event updated estimates indicate that wieewflerience a loss on the contract, we recoghizestimated loss at the time it is determined.
Additional information may subsequently indicatattthe loss is more or less than initially recogdizawvhich requires further adjustments in our
consolidated financial statements. Changes intidenlying assumptions, circumstances, or estin@iekl result in adjustments that could have a radter
adverse effect on our future results of operations.

We may not realize the full value of our backloghieh may result in lower than expected revenue.

As of March 31, 2015, our total backlog was $dlHon , of which $2.7 billion was funded. We deéibacklog to include the following three
components:

» Funded Backlog Funded backlog represents the revenue value ef®fdr services under existing contracts for wifiictding is appropriated or
otherwise authorized, less revenue previously neized on these contracts.

« Unfunded BacklogUnfunded backlog represents the revenue valuedefrs for services under existing contracts forolwliunding has not been
appropriated or otherwise authorized.

» Priced Options Priced contract options represent 100% of themeee/alue of all future contract option periodsemekisting contracts that may
be exercised at our clients’ option and for whighding has not been appropriated or otherwise aatth

Backlog does not include any task orders undeiQ@bntracts, including GWACs and GSA schedulesepixto the extent that task orders have been
awarded to us under those contracts.

We historically have not realized all of the revericluded in our total backlog, and we may nolizeall of the revenue included in our total
backlog in the future. There is a somewhat higlegirele of risk in this regard with respect to unfohbacklog and priced options. In addition, thexe loe
no assurance that our backlog will result in acteaénue in any particular period. This is becahseactual receipt, timing, and amount of revenen
contracts included in backlog are subject to varicontingencies, including congressional apprapnat many of which are beyond our control. In
particular, delays in the completion of the U.Svgrmment’s budgeting process and the use of cangmesolutions could adversely affect our abilay
timely recognize revenue under our contracts iredlid backlog. Furthermore, the actual receipesénue from contracts included in backlog may never
occur or may be delayed because: a program scheolullé change or the program could be cancelednaact’s funding or scope could be reduced,
modified, delayed, or terminated early, includirsgearesult of a lack of appropriated funds or eesalt of cost cutting initiatives and other efford reduce
U.S. government spending and/or the automatic &diefense spending cuts required by sequestratidhe case of funded backlog, the period of
performance for the contract has expired; in theee cd unfunded backlog, funding may not be avagiabt, in the case of priced options, our clienés/mot
exercise their options. In addition, consultingf¢t@adcount growth is the primary means by whi@hake able to recognize revenue growth. Any ingbili
to hire additional appropriately qualified personmefailure to timely and effectively deploy suabditional personnel against funded backlog could
negatively affect our ability to grow our reven&erthermore, even if our backlog results in revetiove contracts may not be profitable.

We may fail to attract, train and retain skilled ahqualified employees, which may impair our ability generate revenue, effectively serve our
clients, and execute our growth strategy.

Our business depends in large part upon our abiligttract and retain sufficient numbers of highglialified individuals who may have advanced
degrees in areas such as information technologyefisss appropriate security clearances. We confpetuch qualified personnel with other
U.S. government contractors, the U.S. governmerat paivate industry, and such competition is ingeri@ersonnel with the requisite skills, qualifioas, o1
security clearance may be in short supply or gdigaraavailable. In addition, our ability to rectuhire, and internally deploy former employeeshaf
U.S. government is subject to complex laws andledigms, which may serve as an impediment to oilityato attract such former employees, and failto
comply with these laws and regulations may expasand our employees to civil or criminal penaltiésve are unable to recruit and retain a suffitien
number of qualified employees, or fail to deplogls@mployees or obtain their appropriate seculigrances in a timely manner, our ability to mamta
and grow our business and to effectively serve our
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clients could be limited and our future revenue eesilts of operations could be materially and asklg affected. Furthermore, to the extent thaavee
unable to make necessary permanent hires to ajgtedprserve our clients, we could be requiredigage larger numbers of contracted personnel, which
could reduce our profit margins.

If we are able to attract sufficient numbers oflidigal new hires, training and retention costs migce significant demands on our resources. In
addition, to the extent that we experience attritoour employee ranks, we may realize only atéichior no return on such invested resources, and we
would have to expend additional resources to hickteain replacement employees. The loss of ses\o€&ey personnel could also impair our ability to
perform required services under some of our cot#traed to retain such contracts, as well as olityatm win new business.

We may fail to obtain and maintain necessary setyigélearances which may adversely affect our alilib perform on certain contracts.

Many U.S. government programs require contractgleyees and facilities to have security clearanbepending on the level of required clearance,
security clearances can be difficult and tiooessuming to obtain. If we or our employees areblento obtain or retain necessary security cle@snwe ma
not be able to win new business, and our existiiegts could terminate their contracts with us ecide not to renew them. To the extent we are Ioletta
obtain and maintain facility security clearanceggage employees with the required security oieasfor a particular contract, we may not be ablead
on or win new contracts, or effectively rebid ompigxg contracts, as well as lose existing conrashich may adversely affect our operating resans
inhibit the execution of our growth strategy.

Our profitability could suffer if we are not ableottimely and effectively utilize our employees oamage our cost structure.

The cost of providing our services, including tlegke to which our employees are utilized, affeatsprofitability. The degree to which we are able
to utilize our employees in a timely manner orlbisaaffected by a number of factors, including:

* our ability to transition employees from complepgdjects to new assignments and to hire, assimiaie deploy new employe

e our ability to forecast demand for our services mohaintain and deploy headcount that is aligngld demand, including employees with the ri
mix of skills and experience to support our praject

< our employeeshability to obtain or retain necessary securigachnce:
e our ability to manage attrition; a
e our need to devote time and resources to trgjitinsiness development, and other nbargeable activitie

If our employees are under-utilized, our profit giarand profitability could suffer. Additionallyf our employees are over-utilized, it could have a
material adverse effect on employee engagemenratarition, which would in turn have a material atheimpact on our business.

Our profitability is also affected by the extentthich we are able to effectively manage our ove@st structure for operating expenses, such as
wages and benefits, overhead and capital and witestment-related expenditures. If we are unabkffectively manage our costs and expense and
achieve efficiencies, our competitiveness and tabfiity may be adversely affected.

We may lose one or more members of our senior mamagnt team or fail to develop new leaders, whiclildocause the disruption of the
management of our business.

We believe that the future success of our busiaedur ability to operate profitably depends andbntinued contributions of the members of our
senior management and the continued developmer@wimembers of senior management. We rely on guorsmanagement to generate business and
execute programs successfully. In addition, thati@iships and reputation that many members ofenior management team have established and
maintain with our clients are important to our mesis and our ability to identify new business opputies. We have employment agreements with only
four most senior executives. The loss of any membeur senior management or our failure to corgitmidevelop new members could impair our abibt
identify and secure new contracts, to maintain gdwuht relations, and to otherwise manage ourrass.

Our employees or subcontractors may engage in mistuet or other improper activities, which could har our ability to conduct business with the
U.S. government.

We are exposed to the risk that employee or subsctor fraud or other misconduct could occur. Mistact by employees or subcontractors could
include intentional or unintentional failures tongoly with U.S. government procurement regulati@rgyaging in other unauthorized activities, or fgisg
time records. Employee or subcontractor miscondogtd also involve the improper use of our clieseshsitive or classified information, or the inadeet
or intentional disclosure of
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our or our clients' sensitive information in viadat of our contractual, statutory, or regulatoryigdtions. It is not always possible to deter ergplor
subcontractor misconduct, and the precautions keettaprevent and detect this activity may not fiecéive in controlling unknown or unmanaged rigks
losses, which could materially harm our businessaAesult of such misconduct, our employees doskltheir security clearance and we could facesfin
and civil or criminal penalties, loss of facilitfearance accreditation, and suspension, propodstrdent or debarment from bidding for or performing
under contracts with the U.S. government, as veeteautational harm, which would materially andexdely affect our results of operations and finainci
condition.

We face intense competition from many competitawhich could cause us to lose business, lower priard suffer employee departures.

Our business operates in a highly competitive itrguand we generally compete with a wide varidty 5. government contractors, including large
defense contractors, diversified service providans, small businesses. We also face competition &atrants into our markets including companies
divested by large prime contractors in responsed®@asing scrutiny of organizational conflictsimterest issues and from market participants forbyedr
benefiting from industry consolidation. Some ofshe&ompanies possess greater financial resourddarger technical staffs, and others have smalier
more specialized staffs. These competitors coutdhrey other things:

« divert sales from us by winning very large-sa@®ernment contracts, a risk that is enhancedéyecent trend in government procurement
practices to bundle services into larger contracts;

- force us to charge lower prices in order to wirmaintain contract
e seek to hire our employees

« adversely affect our relationships with currelignts, including our ability to continue to winropetitively awarded engagements where we are the
incumbent.

If we lose business to our competitors or are fibtodower our prices or suffer employee departuvas revenue and our operating profits could
decline. In addition, we may face competition froor subcontractors who, from time to time, see@litain prime contractor status on contracts forcthi
they currently serve as a subcontractor to usidfar more of our current subcontractors are avdgpdene contractor status on such contracts irfuthee,
it could divert sales from us and could force usharge lower prices, which could have a matedaksse effect on our revenue and profitability.

Our failure to maintain strong relationships withtber contractors, or the failure of contractors viitwhich we have entered into a sub- or prime
contractor relationship to meet their obligatione uis or our clients, could have a material adverséect on our business and results of operations.

Maintaining strong relationships with other U.Svgmment contractors, who may also be our compstite important to our business and our failure
to do so could have a material adverse effect omuosiness, prospects, financial condition, andatpe results. To the extent that we fail to maiimtgood
relations with our subcontractors or other primetractors due to either perceived or actual perémiee failures or other conduct, they may refud@rmus
as a subcontractor in the future or to work witrasour subcontractor. In addition, other contnactoay choose not to use us as a subcontracttioose
not to perform work for us as a subcontractor for aumber of additional reasons, including becahsg choose to establish relationships with our
competitors or because they choose to directlyr gffevices that compete with our business.

As a prime contractor, we often rely on other conigsito perform some of the work under a contia@ad, we expect to continue to depend on
relationships with other contractors for portiofi®or delivery of services and revenue in the feeable future. If our subcontractors fail to perfaheir
contractual obligations, our operating results fahdre growth prospects could be impaired. Thewgerisk that we may have disputes with our
subcontractors arising from, among other things athality and timeliness of work performed by thbcontractor, client concerns about the subcomract
our failure to extend existing task orders or issew task orders under a subcontract, or our hofrgsubcontractor’s personnel. In addition, i afour
subcontractors fail to deliver the agreed-upon Beppr perform the agreed-upon services on a ¥itbasis, our ability to fulfill our obligations @sprime
contractor may be jeopardized. Material lossesctatibe in future periods and subcontractor perémre deficiencies could result in a client termirgag
contract for default. A termination for default éd@xpose us to liability and have an adverse effiacur ability to compete for future contractsl amders.

We estimate that revenue derived from contracteuwthich we acted as a subcontractor to other comapaiepresented 9% of our revenue for fiscal
2015 . As a subcontractor, we often lack contra@rdulfillment of a contract, and poor performamcethe contract could tarnish our reputation, evean
we perform as required, and could cause other actatrs to choose not to hire us as a subcontractbe future. If the U.S. government terminates or
reduces other prime contractors’ programs or doesward them new contracts, subcontracting oppiti¢s available to us could decrease, which would
have a material adverse effect on our financiatid@n and results of operations. In addition, asibcontractor, we may be unable to collect paysent
owed to us by the prime contractor, even if we haaformed our obligations under the contract, as a
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result of, among other things, the prime contrastioability to fulfill the contact. Due to certazbmmon provisions in subcontracts in certain coesitwe
could also experience delays in receiving paymahti prime contractor experiences payment delaligch could have an adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations.

Adverse judgments or settlements in legal disputesld result in materially adverse monetary damagesnjunctive relief and damage our
reputation.

We are subject to, and may become a party to,iatyanf litigation or other claims and suits thaisa from time to time in the ordinary course of ou
business. For example, over time, we have had wisputh current and former employees involvinggdld violations of civil rights, wage and hour, and
worker’'s compensation laws. Further, as more fdégcribed under “ltem 3. Legal Proceedings,” smer officers and stockholders who had departed the
firm prior to the acquisition have filed a totalmhe suits in various jurisdictions against oumgany and certain of our current and former dinecémd
officers. Each of the suits arises out of the agitjioh and alleges that the former stockholdersatgled to certain payments that they would haeeived
if they had held their stock at the time of acgiosi. Three of these suits have been dismissedallitippeals exhausted. Two suits were settledpr 26,
2015. The four remaining suits have been dismibsidre either on appeal or subject to appeal &yplintiffs. The results of litigation and otheghl
proceedings are inherently uncertain and advedggjents or settlements in some or all of thesd igautes may result in materially adverse morwyetar
damages or injunctive relief against us. Any claanitigation, even if fully indemnified or insudle could damage our reputation and make it mofedif
to compete effectively or obtain adequate insuramd¢ke future. The litigation and other claims ciétsed under the “ltem 3. Legal Proceedings” algjestt
to future developments and management’s view afemeatters may change in the future.

Systems that we develop, integrate, maintain, drestvise support could experience security breactwbéch may damage our reputation with our
clients and hinder future contract win rates.

Many of the systems we develop, integrate, maintaintherwise support involve managing and pratgdnformation involved in intelligence,
national security, and other sensitive or classifjevernment functions. The cyber and securityatisréhat our clients face have grown more freqaadt
sophisticated. A security breach in one of thest¢esys could cause serious harm to our businessg#aour reputation, and prevent us from beingl#égi
for further work on sensitive systems for U.S. goweent clients. Work for non-U.S. government cléeimvolving the protection of information systems
could also be harmed due to associated securiaches. Damage to our reputation or limitations wnetigibility for additional work or any liability
resulting from a security breach in one of the ayst we develop, install, maintain, or otherwisepsupcould have a material adverse effect on culte
of operations.

Certain services we provide and technologies wesligvare designed to detect and monitor threatsto clients and may require our staff to trav
to locations where their physical safety may beiak.

We help our clients detect, monitor and mitigatedits to their people, information and faciliti®hese threats may originate from nation states,
terrorist or criminal actors, activist hackers thars who seek to harm our clients. Successfutkatan our clients may cause reputational harns tanal
our clients, as well as liability to our clientstbird parties. In addition, if we are associatethwur clients in this regard, our staff, inforneat and facilitie:
may be targeted by a similar group of threat acdodmay be at risk for loss, or physical or refioial harm.

Internal system or service failures, including asrasult of cyber or other security threats, coultupt our business and impair our ability to
effectively provide our services to our clients, ialincould damage our reputation and have a mater@lverse effect on our business and results of
operations.

We create, implement, and maintain information medbgy and engineering systems, and provide sexita are often critical to our clients'
operations, some of which involve sensitive infotismand may be conducted in war zones or othesirldazis environments. As a result, we are subject to
systems or service failures, not only resultingrfrour own failures or the failures of third-pargngce providers, natural disasters, power shostagie
terrorist attacks, but also from continuous expesarcyber and other security threats, includinguoter viruses, attacks by computer hackers oripdlys
break-ins. There has been an increase in the fnegjend sophistication of the cyber and securitgdts we face, with attacks ranging from those comm
to businesses generally to those that are morenaddaand persistent, which may target us becassecwbersecurity services contractor, we holdstias
or other sensitive information. As a result, weefacheightened risk of a security breach or digsoptith respect to sensitive information resultfirgm an
attack by computer hackers, foreign governments$ cgber terrorists. We have been the target okthgses of attacks in the past and future attacks a
likely to occur. If successful, these types of@ttaon our network or other systems or serviceifed could have a material adverse effect on osinbas
and results of operations, due to, among othegshitihe loss of client or proprietary data, intptimns or delays in our clients' businesses, andage to
our reputation. In addition, the failure or disfioptof our systems, communications, or utilitieslidocause us to interrupt or suspend our operatishigh
could have a material adverse effect on our busiagd results of operations. In addition, if oup@yees inadvertently do not adhere to appropriate
information security protocols, our protocols aradequate, or our employees intentionally avoiddtmotocols, our or our client's
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sensitive information may be released thereby ogusignificant negative impacts to our reputatiod axpose us or our clients to liability.

If our systems, services, or other applicationstsgnificant defects or errors, are successfuthcied by cyber and other security threats, suffer
delivery delays, or otherwise fail to meet our i expectations, we may:

« lose revenue due to adverse client reac

* be required to provide additional services to entlat no charg

e incur additional costs related to monitoring anctéasing our cybersecuri

* lose revenue due to the deployment of internaf &tafemediation efforts instead of client assigmts

e receive negative publicity, which could damage reyputation and adversely affect our ability toattror retain client

« be unable to successfully market services tieatediant on the creation and maintaining of seéaformation technology systems to U.S.
government, international, and commercial clients;

» suffer claims by clients or impacted third pestfor substantial damages, particularly as atre$ainy successful network or systems breach and
exfiltration of client and/or third party informati; or

< incur significant costs complying with applicab&el€ral or state law, including laws governing petéa of personal informatio

In addition to any costs resulting from contraatf@enance or required corrective action, thesaifad may result in increased costs or loss of even
if they result in clients postponing subsequentlyesiuled work or canceling or failing to renew caaots.

The costs related to cyber or other security tireatlisruptions may not be fully insured or indéred by other means. Additionally, some cyber
technologies and techniques that we utilize or igvemay raise potential liabilities related to legampliance intellectual property and civil libied,
including privacy concerns, which may not be fuligured or indemnified. Our errors and omissiossiiance coverage may not continue to be available o
reasonable terms or in sufficient amounts to coweror more large claims, or the insurer may disctoverage as to some types of future claims. The
successful assertion of any large claim againsbufd seriously harm our business. Even if not sssful, these claims could result in significagialeand
other costs, may be a distraction to our manageraadtmay harm our client relationships. In cert@w business areas, we may not be able to obtain
sufficient insurance and may decide not to accepblicit business in these areas.

Failure to adequately protect, maintain, or enfor@air rights in our intellectual property may advegly limit our competitive position.

We rely upon a combination of nondisclosure agregsnend other contractual arrangements, as web@gight, trademark, patent, and trade secret
laws to protect our proprietary information. Wecadster into proprietary information and intelleadtproperty agreements with employees, which requir
them to disclose any inventions created during eympént, to convey such rights to inventions toawl to restrict any disclosure of proprietary
information. Trade secrets are generally diffitalprotect. Although our employees are subjecbttfidentiality obligations, this protection may be
inadequate to deter or prevent misappropriatioouofconfidential information and/or the infringemef our patents and copyrights. Further, we may be
unable to detect unauthorized use of our intelkdqivoperty or otherwise take appropriate stegnforce our rights. Failure to adequately protectintain
or enforce our intellectual property rights may ecbely limit our competitive position.

Assertions by third parties of infringement, misagpriation or other violations by us of their intEctual property rights could result in significant
costs and substantially harm our business and ogigrg results.

In recent years, there has been significant liggainvolving intellectual property rights in teabingy industries. We may face from time to time,
allegations that we or a supplier or customer hawiated the rights of third parties, including @at, trademark, and other intellectual propertihtsglf,
with respect to any claim against us for violatodrthird-party intellectual property rights, we angable to prevail in the litigation or retain ditain
sufficient rights or develop non-infringing intetkeial property or otherwise alter our businesstmes on a timely or cost-efficient basis, our besis and
competitive position may be adversely affected.

Any infringement, misappropriation or related clainvhether or not meritorious, are time consumiliggrt technical and management personnel, and
are costly to resolve. As a result of any suchudispyve may have to develop non-infringing techgglgay damages, enter into royalty or licensing
agreements, cease utilizing certain products mices, or take other actions to resolve the claifhgse actions, if required, may be costly or uitabke on
terms acceptable to us.
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Our focus on new growth areas for our business dlgtaisks, including those associated with new rétaships, clients, talent needs, capabilities,
service offerings, and maintaining our collaboratvculture and core values.

We are focused on growing our presence in our addlde markets by: expanding our relationships aithting clients, developing new clients by
leveraging our core competencies, further develppinr existing capabilities and service offeringsgd creating new capabilities and service offeriiogs
address our clients' emerging needs, and undegtakisiness development efforts focused on identifyiear-term developments and long-term trends that
may pose significant challenges for our clientseSehefforts entail inherent risks associated witltovation and competition from other participantshose
areas, potential failure to help our clients resptanthe challenges they face, our ability to compith uncertain evolving legal standards appliestol
certain of our service offerings, including thosehe cybersecurity area, and, with respect torpiaienternational growth, risks associated wigemting
in foreign jurisdictions, such as compliance wiipkcable foreign and U.S. laws and regulations thay impose different and, occasionally, conftigtor
contradictory requirements, and the economic, |eya political conditions in the foreign jurisdas in which we operate. As we attempt to develeyw
relationships, clients, capabilities, and servifferings, these efforts could harm our resultspérations due to, among other things, a diversfaubfocus
and resources and actual costs, opportunity cogisreuing these opportunities in lieu of otherd arfailure to reach a profitable return on oueistments
in new technologies, capabilities, and businessekiding expenses on research and developmerdtimeats, and these efforts could ultimately be
unsuccessful.

In addition, our ability to grow our business bydeaging our operating model to efficiently anceeffvely deploy our people across our client base i
largely dependent on our ability to maintain ouitatmrative culture. To the extent that we are Umab maintain our culture for any reason, inclgdaur
effort to focus on new growth areas or acquire beginesses with different corporate cultures, wg beunable to grow our business. Any such failure
could have a material adverse effect on our busiaed results of operations.

In addition, with the growth of our U.S. and intational operations, we are now providing client/ass and undertaking business development
efforts in numerous and disparate geographic logatboth domestically and internationally. Ouriaptb effectively serve our clients is dependepomi
our ability to successfully leverage our operatimgdel across all of these and any future locatiovantain effective management controls over ataf
locations to ensure, among other things, compliaviteapplicable laws, rules and regulations, argdili our core values in all of our personnel atle of
these and any future locations. Any inability ts@m any of the foregoing could have a materiakesbs effect on our business and results of opesatio

Our international operations are subject to locahd other foreign laws, U.S. government laws, regigas such as the Foreign Corrupt Practices
Act, and procurement policies which may expose aididbility or impair our ability to compete in i@rnational markets

Our international operations are subject to the BdBeign Corrupt Practices Act, or the FCPA, atieéplaws that prohibit improper payments or
offers of payments to foreign governments and tbificials and political parties by business erstfor the purpose of obtaining or retaining bussnéVe
have operations and deal with governmental client®untries known to experience corruption, inahgdcertain emerging countries in the Middle East a
Southeast Asia. Our activities in these countrieate the risk of unauthorized payments or offéagments by one of our employees, consultants or
contractors that could be in violation of varioaw$ including the FCPA and other anti-corruptiondaeven though these parties are not always dubjec
our control. Our international operations also imeactivities involving the transmittal of informian, which may include personal data,that may erpes
to data privacy laws in the jurisdictions in whiele operate. If our data protection practices beceaigect to new or different restrictions, andhe éxtent
such practices are not compliant with the lawshefdountries in which we process data, we could fiacreased compliance expenses and face perfalties
violating such laws or be excluded from those mi@rkétogether, in which case our operations coalddversely affected. We are also subject to iraport
export control regulations restricting the use disgemination of information classified for natibeacurity purposes and the export of certain pctsju
services, and technical data, including requiresieggarding any applicable licensing of our empésyi@volved in such work.

If we were to fail to comply with the FCPA, othertiacorruption laws, applicable import-export catregulations, data privacy laws, or other
applicable rules and regulations, we could be sulbgesubstantial civil and criminal penalties,liding fines for our company and incarceration for
responsible employees and managers, suspensi@barmdent, and the possible loss of export or immavtleges which could have a material adverse
effect on our business and results of operations.
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Changes to our operating structure, capabilities sirategy intended to address our client&eds, respond to developments in our markets amav
our business may not be successful.

We routinely review our operating structure, cafiid and strategy to determine whether we arectiffely meeting the needs of existing clients,
effectively responding to developments in our mexlead successfully building platforms intendeg@ravide the foundation for the future growth of our
business. The outcome of any such review is difficupredict and the extent of changes to ourress following such a review, if any, are dependent
part upon the nature and extent of the review.

The implementation of these changes, and the imgiéation of other future changes to our operatingcture, capabilities, strategy or any other
aspect of our business following an internal revimay materially alter various aspects of our bessnor our business model as an entirety and taerbe
no assurance that any such changes will be suotesshat they will not ultimately have a negatefect on our business and results of operations.

We and our subsidiaries may incur debt in the fugjrwhich could substantially reduce our profitakii limit our ability to pursue certain business
opportunities, and reduce the value of your investmt.

As of March 31, 2015 , we had approximately $1l8oli of debt outstanding. The instruments govegriar indebtedness may not prevent us or our
subsidiaries from incurring additional debt in fh&ure or other obligations that do not constitot@gebtedness, which could increase the risks destri
below and lead to other risks. In addition, witk tosing of our refinancing on May 7, 2014, we ritayease the borrowing capacity under our senior
secured credit agreement without the consent opamgon other than the institutions agreeing teigeall or any portion of such increase, to an anto
which would not cause our net consolidated seclangztage ratio to exceed 3.50:1.00, subject taoedosing conditions including pro forma comptan
with financial covenants. The amount of our debsueh other obligations could have important coneages, including, but not limited to:

e our ability to satisfy obligations to lenders mayimpaired, resulting in possible defaults on arckkeration of our indebtedne

« our ability to obtain additional financing faefimancing of existing indebtedness, working cadpdapital expenditures, product and service
development, acquisitions, general corporate p@gqand other purposes may be impaired;

e asubstantial portion of our cash flow from opemasi could be dedicated to the payment of the gét@nd interest on our de
* we may be increasingly vulnerable to economic dowrst and increases in interest re

« our flexibility in planning for and reacting to alges in our business and the industry may be liméaac

* we may be placed at a competitive disadvantagével other firms in our industt

Our senior secured credit agreement contains fingal@nd operating covenants that limit our operatie and could lead to adverse consequenct
we fail to comply with them.

Our senior secured credit agreement contains fiabawed operating covenants relating to, amongrdthiags, interest coverage and leverage ratic
well as limitations on mergers, consolidations disdolutions, sales of assets, investments andsitgops, indebtedness and liens, dividends, rdmge of
shares of capital stock and options to purchaseshud capital stock, transactions with affiliateale and leaseback transactions, and restrictedeyds.
The revolving credit facility matures on May 31,120 The Term Loan A and Term Loan B facilities nmatan May 31, 2019 and July 31, 2019,
respectively. Failure to meet these financial aperating covenants could result from, among othiegs, changes in our results of operations, the
incurrence of debt, or changes in general econeooniditions, which may be beyond our control. Theseenants may restrict our ability to engage in
transactions that we believe would otherwise biénbest interests of our stockholders, which cbalen our business and operations.

Many of our contracts with the U.S. government asassified or subject to other security restricti@nwvhich may limit investor insight into portior
of our business.

For fiscal 2015 , we derived a substantial portbour revenue from contracts with the U.S. govegntihat are classified or subject to security
restrictions that preclude the dissemination ofateiinformation. In addition, a significant numbsrour employees have security clearances which
preclude them from providing information regardoegtain of our clients and services provided tchstlents to other of our employees without segurit
clearances and investors. Because we are limitedriability to provide information about these tants and services, the various risks associatitd w
these contracts or services or any dispute or slagating to such contracts or services, you nmiyhave important information concerning our busgne
which will limit your insight into a substantial g@mn of our business and therefore may be less tabiully evaluate the risks related to that portof our
business.
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If we cannot collect our receivables or if paymeatdelayed, our business may be adversely affebiedur inability to generate cash flow, provide
working capital, or continue our business operatien

We depend on the timely collection of our receiealib generate cash flow, provide working capétafl continue our business operations. If the
U.S. government or any prime contractor for whomanea subcontractor fails to pay or delays then@at of invoices for any reason, our business and
financial condition may be materially and adversafgcted. The U.S. government may delay or fapag invoices for a number of reasons, includir la
of appropriated funds, lack of an approved budgeds a result of audit findings by government tagguy agencies. Some prime contractors for whom we
are a subcontractor have significantly fewer finahesources than we do, which may increase #hethiat we may not be paid in full or that paynmaty
be delayed.

Recent efforts by the U.S. government to reviseitganizational conflict of interest rules couldriit our ability to successfully compete for new
contracts or task orders, which would adverselyeaff our results of operations.

Recent efforts by the U.S. government to refornpitecurement practices have focused, among oteasaon the separation of certain types of work
to facilitate objectivity and avoid or mitigate amgjzational conflicts of interest and the strengthg of regulations governing organizational carnfliof
interest. Organizational conflicts of interest naaige from circumstances in which a contractor has:

e impaired objectivity during performan
e unfair access to ngoudblic information; o
< the ability to set the “ground rulefr another procurement for which the contractonpetes

A focus on organizational conflicts of interestiiss has resulted in legislation and a proposedatgu aimed at increasing organizational conflif
interest requirements, including, among other thisgparating sellers of products and provideeslafsory services in major defense acquisition @o.
In addition, the U.S. government is working to ad®AR rule to address organizational conflictintérest issues that will apply to all government
contractors, including us, in Department of Defeasé other procurements. A future FAR rule may aiscease the restrictions in current organizationa
conflicts of interest regulations and rules. Todeent that proposed and future organizationaflicts of interest laws, regulations, and rulesyitiour
ability to successfully compete for new contraatsagk orders with the U.S. government, either beeaf organizational conflicts of interest issadsing
from our business, or because companies with wiliehre affiliated, including through Carlyle, ortivivhich we otherwise conduct business, create
organizational conflicts of interest issues foras;, results of operations could be materially addersely affected.

Acquisitions could result in operating difficultiesr other adverse consequences to our business.
As part of our operating strategy, we may contittugelectively pursue acquisitions. This could posey risks, including:
« we may not be able to identify suitable acquisittandidates at prices we consider attrac

e we may not be able to compete successfullydentified acquisition candidates, complete acqdaoiss or accurately estimate the financial effdéct o
acquisitions on our business;

« future acquisitions may require us to issue comstook or spend significant cash, resulting in dilutof ownership or additional debt levere
* we may have difficulty retaining an acquired gamy’s key employees or clien

« we may have difficulty integrating acquired mesises, resulting in unforeseen difficulties, sakimcompatible accounting, information
management, or other control systems, and gregpenses than expected;

e acquisitions may disrupt our business or distractnsanagement from other responsibilit

» as aresult of an acquisition, we may incur taidal debt and we may need to record wdtevns from future impairments of intangible assetg}
of which could reduce our future reported earnirzags

- we may have difficulty integrating personnel frame tacquired company with our people and our coligeg

In connection with any acquisition that we maker¢éhmay be liabilities that we fail to discovertloat we inadequately assess, and we may fail to
discover any failure of a target company to havlad its contractual obligations to the U.S. gomment or other clients. Acquired entities may opmrat:
profitably or result in improved operating performea. Additionally, we may not realize anticipatgdergies, business growth opportunities, cost ggyin
and other benefits we anticipate, which could haweaterial adverse effect on our business andtsesubperations.
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Risks Related to Our Industry

Our U.S. government contracts may be terminatedty government at any time and may contain otheoyisions permitting the government to
discontinue contract performance, and if lost coatits are not replaced, our operating results maffati materially and adversely from those anticipaitt

U.S. government contracts contain provisions aedsabject to laws and regulations that provide gawent clients with rights and remedies not
typically found in commercial contracts. These tigand remedies allow government clients, amonegrdttings, to:

e terminate existing contracts, with short notice,donvenience as well as for defa
« reduce orders under or otherwise modify contr

« for contracts subject to the Truth in Negotiaid\ct, reduce the contract price or cost wheneag increased because a contractor or subcontractor
furnished cost or pricing data during negotiatitdrat was not complete, accurate, and current;

- for some contracts, (i) demand a refund, makewaard price adjustment, or terminate a contractiefault if a contractor provided inaccurate or
incomplete data during the contract negotiatiorcess and (ii) reduce the contract price under icetiiggering circumstances, including the
revision of price lists or other documents uponahkithe contract award was predicated;

e terminate our facility security clearances andabgrprevent us from receiving classified contri
e cancel multiyear contracts and related orders if funds forremttperformance for any subsequent year becomeailalle
< decline to exercise an option to renew a myday contract or issue task orders in connectidh W/IQ contracts

e claim rights in solutions, systems, and techgglproduced by us, appropriate such work-producttfeir continued use without continuing to
contract for our services and disclose such wardduct to third parties, including other U.S. gmreent agencies and our competitors, which ¢
harm our competitive position;

e prohibit future procurement awards with a paic agency due to a finding of organizational tiot¥ of interest based upon prior related work
performed for the agency that would give a contmaah unfair advantage over competing contractorthe existence of conflicting roles that
might bias a contractor’s judgment;

» subject the award of contracts to protest by coitguet which may require the contracting federadrazy or department to suspend our perform
pending the outcome of the protest and may alsdtresa requirement to resubmit offers for the ttact or in the termination, reduction, or
modification of the awarded contract;

e suspend or debar us from doing business with tBe gbvernment; ar
< control or prohibit the export of our servic

Recent and potential future budget cuts, the impasequestration and recent efforts by the Offithlanagement and Budget to decrease federal
awards for management support services, may cageseias with which we currently have contractetoinate, reduce the number of task orders under ol
fail to renew such contracts. If a U.S. governnmadient were to unexpectedly terminate, cancel,emlide to exercise an option to renew with respecine
or more of our significant contracts, or suspendedrar us from doing business with the U.S. goventpour revenue and operating results would be
materially harmed.

The U.S. government may revise its procurement,tcact or other practices in a manner adverse to us.
The U.S. government may:

e revise its procurement practices or adopt nemtract laws, rules, and regulations, such as aastumting standards, organizational conflicts of
interest, and other rules governing inherently gorental functions at any time;

e reduce, delay, or cancel procurement programstiegdfom U.S. government efforts to improve prament practices and efficien
< limit the creation of new government-wide or aggspecific multiple award contrac

« face restrictions or pressure from governmentleyees and their unions regarding the amountmices the U.S. government may obtain from
private contractors;

e award contracts on a technically acceptable/loaest basis in order to reduce expenditures, anchaenot be the lowest cost provider of servi
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« adopt new socieconomic requirements, including setting aside ymament opportunities to small, disadvantaged lessiex
» change the basis upon which it reimburses our cosgi®n and other expenses or otherwise limit seichbursements; a
e atits option, terminate or decline to renew ourtcacts

In addition, any new contracting methods could &gl or administratively difficult for us to impteent and could adversely affect our future reve
and profit margin. In addition, changes to the prement system could cause delays in the procuretieeision-making process. Any such changes to the
U.S. government’s procurement practices or the tmlopf new contracting rules or practices coulgin our ability to obtain new or re-compete cociisa
and any such changes or increased associatedcootdsmaterially and adversely affect our resufteperations.

As part of its cost-cutting initiative, the Depaént of Defense has issued guidance regarding chdagke procurement process that is intended to
control cost growth throughout the acquisition eyisy developing a competitive strategy for eaclym. Because this initiative may significantly oba
the way the U.S. government solicits, negotiated,raanages its contracts, it could result in areiase in competitive pressure and decreased fitifita
on contracts and have a material adverse effeotionesults of operations.

The U.S. government may prefer minority-owned, shaald small disadvantaged businesses; therefore may have fewer opportunities to bid for.

As a result of the Small Business Administrationaséde program, the U.S. government may decidesiict certain procurements only to bidders
that qualify as minority-owned, small, or smallativantaged businesses. As a result, we would neligible to perform as a prime contractor on those
programs and would be restricted to a maximum &6 48 the work as a subcontractor on those programsncrease in the amount of procurements under
the Small Business Administration set-aside progmsey impact our ability to bid on new procuremeagsa prime contractor or restrict our ability to
recompete on incumbent work that is placed in gteaside program.

Our contracts, performance, and administrative pesses and systems are subject to audits, reviewssiigations, and cost adjustments by the
U.S. government, which could reduce our revenuesrdpt our business, or otherwise materially advdysaffect our results of operation.

U.S. government agencies routinely audit, reviavd iavestigate government contracts and governgattactors’ administrative processes and
systems. These agencies review our performancerdrects, pricing practices, cost structure, andplmnce with applicable laws, regulations and
standards, including applicable government costatting standards. These agencies also reviewaropléance with government regulations and policies,
and the DCAA audits, among other areas, the adgaqfamur internal control systems and policies/uding our purchasing, property, estimating, earned
value and accounting systems. These internal dosystems could focus on significant elements atgosuch as executive compensation. Determinafion
a significant internal control deficiency by a gawment agency could result in increased paymetitheltiing that might materially increase our acceunt
receivable days sales outstanding and adversagtaitir cash flow. In particular, over time the D&Mas increased and may continue to increase the
proportion of executive compensation that it deemedlowable and the size of the executive poputatitbose compensation is disallowed, which will
continue to materially and adversely affect ounltssof operations or financial condition includitige requirement to carry an increased level @mes.
Recent legislation and regulations implementing himitations on the amount of allowable executieenpensation costs contribute to increased regylator
scrutiny of the allowability of employee compensatcosts, which can lead to greater amounts of @eplcompensation cost being disallowed. We
recognize as revenue, net of reserves, executimpeasation that we determine, based on managerastittgates, to be allowable; management's estimate:
in this regard are based on a number of factotathg change over time, including executive comp#as survey data, our and other government
contractors' experiences with the DCAA audit padiin our industry and relevant decisions of canid boards of contract appeals. Any costs fooite t
unallowable under a contract will not be reimburse any such costs already reimbursed must badedl. Further, the amount of any such refund may
exceed reserves established by management basstiroates and assumptions that are inherently taiigceMoreover, if any of the administrative
processes and systems are found not to complygeiternment imposed requirements, we may be subjézt@creased government scrutiny and approval
that could delay or otherwise adversely affectahility to compete for or perform contracts. Unfeakde U.S. government audit, review, or investigati
results could subject us to civil or criminal peies or administrative sanctions, and could harmreputation and relationships with our clients angdair
our ability to be awarded new contracts. For exampbur invoicing system were found to be inadeguollowing an audit by the DCAA, our ability to
directly invoice U.S. government payment officeslddoe eliminated. As a result, we would be requieesubmit each invoice to the DCAA for approval
prior to payment, which could materially increase accounts receivable days sales outstandingdretsely affect our cash flow. In addition, propbse
regulatory changes, if adopted, would require tepdadtment of Defense’s contracting officers to isgoontractual withholdings at no less than certain
minimum levels based on assessments of a
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contractor’s business systems. An unfavorable ouéctm an audit, review, or investigation by any @&vernment agency could materially and adversely
affect our relationship with the U.S. governmeha government investigation uncovers impropetlegal activities, we may be subject to civil and
criminal penalties and administrative sanctionsluding termination of contracts, forfeitures obfits, withholding of payments, suspension of paytag
fines, and suspension or debarment from doing basiwith the U.S. government. In addition, we cauiffer serious reputational harm if allegations of
impropriety were made against us. Provisions tlehave recorded in our financial statements asrgpliance reserve may not cover actual losses.
Furthermore, the disallowance of any costs preWoclsarged could directly and negatively affect ourrent results of operations for the relevanbipri
fiscal periods, and we could be required to repgysaich disallowed amounts. Each of these resoltklanaterially and adversely affect our results of
operations or financial condition.

A delay in the completion of the U.S. governmenttisdget process could result in a reduction in ouadklog and have a material adverse effect on
our revenue and operating results.

On an annual basis, the U.S. Congress must appraigets that govern spending by each of the fedgeaicies we support. When the U.S. Congress
is unable to agree on budget priorities, and thusable to pass the annual budget on a timelg lthsi U.S. Congress typically enacts a continuing
resolution. A continuing resolution allows govermrhagencies to operate at spending levels appriovib@ previous budget cycle. This was recentlecas
for the Department of Homeland Security, which Wamled through a series of short-term continuirsplgtions into March 2015, at which point Congress
and the Obama administration reached an agreemduonding for the remainder of the fiscal year. €nd continuing resolution, funding may not be
available for new projects. In addition, when gowveent agencies operate on the basis of a contimagaution, they may delay funding we expect to
receive on contracts we are already performing. #ugh delays would likely result in new businessatives being delayed or canceled and a redudtion
our backlog, and could have a material adverseteffe our revenue and operating results. In additdfailure to complete the budget process and fun
government operations pursuant to a continuinguéea may result in a federal government shutd@such as that which occurred during government
fiscal year 2014). A shutdown may result in us miclg substantial costs without reimbursement umdercontracts and the delay or cancellation of key
programs, which could have a material adverse teffieour revenue and operating results.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Booz Allen Holding is a holding company with no a@gions of its own, and it depends on its subsidér for cash to fund all of its operations and
expenses, including to make future dividend payn®rit any.

The operations of Booz Allen Holding are conduaédost entirely through its subsidiaries and itditttio generate cash to meet its debt service
obligations or to pay dividends is highly dependamthe earnings and the receipt of funds fromutssidiaries via dividends or intercompany loans.
Further, our senior secured credit agreement sigmitly restricts the ability of our subsidiariespay dividends or otherwise transfer assets ttnus.
addition, Delaware law may impose requirementsiieat restrict our ability to pay dividends to hatelef our common stock.

Our principal stockholder could exert significanhfluence over our company.

As of March 31, 2015, Carlyle, through Coinvestned shares of our Class A Common Stock repreggapiproximately 29% of our outstanding
voting power.

Coinvest is a party to the amended and restate#tsttders agreement pursuant to which Carlyle hasight to nominate three members of our b
of directors. The number of directors that Carlglentitied to nominate will be
reduced to (i) two directors at such time as Carhdlds less than 25%, but at least 15%, of owstantling Class A Common Stock and (ii) one direator
such time as Carlyle holds less than 15%, butzet 8%, of our outstanding Class A Common Stocky@ais in the business of making investments in
companies, and may from time to time in the fumquire controlling interests in businesses engagethnagement and technology consulting that
complement or directly or indirectly compete wittrtain portions of our business. If Carlyle purssiesh acquisitions in our industry, those acquisiti
opportunities may not be available to us. In additto the extent that Carlyle acquires a contrglinterest in one or more companies that provideices
or products to the U.S. government, our affiliatiith any such company through Carlyle could creagmnizational conflicts of interest and similssues
for us under federal procurement laws and regulati8ee “— Risks Related to Our Business — Red@mteby the U.S. government to revise its
organizational conflicts of interest rules couluili our ability to successfully compete for new trants or task orders, which would adversely affect
results of operations.”
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Our financial results may vary significantly fromeriod to period as a result of a number of factarsmny of which are outside our control, which
could cause the market price of our Class A Comnftock to fluctuate.

Our financial results may vary significantly frorerpd to period in the future as a result of maxtgmnal factors that are outside of our control.
Factors that may affect our financial results drat tould cause the market price of our outstansi@girities, including our Class A Common Stock, to
fluctuate include those listed in this “Risk Fastosection and others such as:

e any cause of reduction or delay in U.S. governriamding;

e fluctuations in revenue earned on existing cons,

* commencement, completion, or termination of consrdaring a particular peric

« apotential decline in our overall profit margiifi our other direct costs and subcontract revemoe at a faster rate than labetated revenu

e strategic decisions by us or our competitors, sagcbhanges to business strategy, strategic invepaequisitions, divestitures, spin offs, andf
ventures;

e achange in our contract mix to less profitabletamis
» changes in policy or budgetary measures that aelyeaffect U.S. government contracts in gen

e variable purchasing patterns under U.S. govemii@SA schedules, blanket purchase agreementshwahécagreements that fulfill repetitive needs
under GSA schedules, and ID/IQ contracts;

e changes in demand for our services and solu
« fluctuations in the degree to which we are abletiiize our professional
e seasonality associated with the U.S. governradistal yeal
e aninability to utilize existing or future tax bdite for any reason, including a change in |
e alterations to contract requirements;
e adverse judgments or settlements in legal disf
We cannot assure you that we will pay special agukar dividends on our stock in the future.

The board of directors has authorized and declamedjular quarterly for each quarter in the lagesa years. The board of directors also authorized
and declared a special cash dividend on May 29 20ily 30, 2012, October 29, 2013, January 30428dd July 30, 2014. The declaration of any future
dividends and the establishment of the per shamuatnrecord dates and payment dates for any suetefdividends are subject to the discretion ef th
board of directors taking into account future eagsi cash flows, financial requirements and othetofs. There can be no assurance that the board of
directors will declare any dividends in the futufe.the extent that expectations by market paditip regarding the potential payment, or amourdangf
special or regular dividend prove to be incorrét, price of our common stock may be materially aegatively affected and investors that boughteshal
our common stock based on those expectations nffgy auoss on their investment. Further, to thieeekthat we declare a regular or special dividetnal
time when market participants hold no such expiectator the amount of any such dividend exceed®ntiexpectations, the price of our common stock
may increase and investors that sold shares af@umon stock prior to the record date for any dligldend may forego potential gains on their
investment.

A majority of our outstanding indebtedness is seediby substantially all of our consolidated asseéts.a result of these security interests, such
assets would only be available to satisfy claim®of general creditors or to holders of our equisgcurities if we were to become insolvent to theeak
the value of such assets exceeded the amount ofiedebtedness and other obligations. In additiohetexistence of these security interests may
adversely affect our financial flexibility.

Indebtedness under our senior secured credit agragamsecured by a lien on substantially all afagsets. Accordingly, if an event of default wigr
occur under our senior secured credit agreemensehior secured lenders under such facilities dvbale a prior right to our assets, to the exctusioour
general creditors in the event of our bankruptagoivency, liquidation, or reorganization. In teaent, our assets would first be used to repaylirall
indebtedness and other obligations secured by {lreuding all amounts outstanding under our ses@mured credit agreement), resulting in all or a
portion of our assets being unavailable to sattséyclaims of our unsecured indebtedness. Only sdtiisfying the claims of our unsecured creditord oul
subsidiaries’ unsecured creditors would any amberdvailable for our equity holders. The pledgthete assets and other restrictions may limit our
flexibility in raising capital for other purposeBecause substantially
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all of our assets are pledged under these finarasirmggements, our ability to incur additional sedundebtedness or to sell or dispose of assetite
capital may be impaired, which could have an adveffect on our financial flexibility. As of Marc®1l, 2015 , we had $1.6 billion of indebtedness
outstanding under our senior secured credit agneeamsl had $494.8 million of capacity availableddditional borrowings under the revolving portimn
our senior secured credit agreement. In additi@may, increase the borrowing capacity under aniossecured credit agreement without the consent o
any person other than the institutions agreeirgrdoeide all or any portion of such increase, t@arount not to exceed $300 million, subject to ¢erta
closing conditions including pro forma compliancighainancial covenants.

Fulfilling our obligations incident to being a pulit company, including with respect to the requireme of and related rules under the Sarbanes
Oxley Act of 2002, is expensive and time consumamgl any delays or difficulty in satisfying these l@ations could have a material adverse effect on
our future results of operations and our stock pec

As a public company, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 288 the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and ConsuPnetection Act, the related rules and
regulations of the SEC, as well as the New Yorlctexchange rules, require us to implement var@rporate governance practices and adhere to a
variety of reporting requirements and complex aotiog rules. Compliance with these public compablgations requires us to devote significant
management time and place significant additionalateds on our finance and accounting staff and offimancial, accounting, and information systems.
We have hired additional accounting and finandaiff svith appropriate public company reporting esigece and technical accounting knowledge. Other
expenses associated with being a public compatydadncreased auditing, accounting, and legal éeksexpenses, investor relations expenses, iretteas
directors’ fees and director and officer liabilisurance costs, registrar and transfer agent lisésg fees, as well as other expenses.

In particular, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 reegius to document and test the effectivenessrahtarnal control over financial reporting in
accordance with an established internal controhéwaork, and to report on our conclusions as teffextiveness of our internal controls. It alsouiegs an
independent registered public accounting firm &b teir internal control over financial reportingdareport on the effectiveness of such controladdition,
we are required under the Securities Exchange At®®4, as amended, or the Exchange Act, to maitiaclosure controls and procedures and internal
control over financial reporting. Any failure to mtain effective controls or implement new or imyped controls, or difficulties encountered in their
implementation, could harm our operating resultsaurse us to fail to meet our reporting obligatidha/e are unable to conclude that we have effecti
internal control over financial reporting, or ifomdependent registered public accounting firmariable to provide us with an unqualified reportareing
the effectiveness of our internal control over fici@l reporting, investors could lose confidencéhimreliability of our financial statements. Thizuld resul
in a decrease in the value of our common stockuiféaio comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2@@2ld potentially subject us to sanctions or
investigations by the SEC, the New York Stock Exgje or other regulatory authorities.

Provisions in our organizational documents and ihg Delaware General Corporation Law may preventeaker attempts that could be beneficial
to our stockholders.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorpamand amended and restated bylaws include a nushipeovisions that may have the effect of
delaying, deterring, preventing, or rendering ndifeicult a change in control of Booz Allen Holdirigat our stockholders might consider in their best
interests. These provisions include:

e establishment of a classified Board, with staggéeetis
e granting to the Board the sole power to set thebamrof directors and to fill any vacancy on the Bk
e limitations on the ability of stockholders to reneadirectors

« granting to the Board the ability to designatd &sue one or more series of preferred stockowithtockholder approval, the terms of which may
be determined at the sole discretion of the Board,

e a prohibition on stockholders from calling specradetings of stockholde

« the establishment of advance notice requirementstéckholder proposals and hominations for electiothe Board at stockholder meetit
e requiring approval of twdhirds of stockholders to amend the bylaws;

e prohibiting our stockholders from acting by writteonsen

These provisions may prevent our stockholders frereiving the benefit from any premium to the magkée of our common stock offered by a
bidder in a takeover context. Even in the absefiegtakeover attempt, the existence of these pandsmay adversely affect the prevailing marketgof
our common stock if the provisions are viewed asaliraging takeover attempts in the future. Inté@diwe have opted out of Section 203 of the Dala
General Corporation Law, which would have othenifsposed additional requirements regarding mergedsother business combinations, until Carlyle
and
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its affiliates no longer own more than 20% of ola$s A Common Stock. After such time, we will beegmed by Section 203.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorpamaind amended and restated by-laws may also mdicult for stockholders to replace or
remove our management. These provisions may eilihanagement entrenchment that may delay, detefer more difficult, or prevent a change in our
control, which may not be in the best interestewfstockholders.

Sales of outstanding shares of our common stocloittie market in the future could cause the marketge of our common stock to drop
significantly.

As of March 31, 2015, Carlyle owned 42,660,000ataf our Class A Common Stock, or approximat&¥df our outstanding Class A Common
Stock. If Carlyle sells, or the market perceivest Barlyle intends to sell, a substantial portibrisobeneficial ownership interest in us in théoliwmarket,
the market price of our Class A Common Stock calgdine significantly. The sales also could makadte difficult for us to sell equity or equity-edéd
securities at a time and price that we deem apjattepr

As of March 31, 2015 , 147,238,282 shares of oas€A Common Stock were outstanding. In additicthéoshares owned by Carlyle, 4,000,243
shares of our Class A Common Stock which are heldifectors, executive officers and other affilgtare restricted securities within the meaninBuie
144 under the Securities Act eligible for resaléhia public market subject to volume, manner of sad holding period limitations under Rule 144emd
the Securities Act. In addition, (1) 1,857,126rekaof our Class A Common Stock are issuable upemxercise of outstanding stock options grantebun
our Officers’ Rollover Stock Plan relating to owtstanding Class E Special Voting Common Stock(@hdl9,030,241 shares of our Class A Common
Stock underlying equity awards that are eitherettitp the terms of our Equity Incentive Plan @erged for future issuance under our Equity Ineenti
Plan, including 6,276,805 shares issuable upoexkecise of outstanding stock options at an avepage of $10.19 and 464,047 shares issuable upon
settlement of restricted stock units granted underEquity Incentive Plan, are eligible for salghe public market to the extent permitted by thavisions
of various option agreements and, to the extemt bglaffiliates, the volume and manner of saleriggins of Rule 144. If these additional sharesswold,
or if it is perceived that they will be sold, iretpublic market, the price of our Class A CommarcEicould decline substantially.

The market for our Class A common stock may be adely affected by the performance of other companie the government services market.

In addition to factors that may affect our finamcisults and operations, the price of our Clagommon stock may be impacted by the financial
performance and outlook of other companies in theeghment services market. While certain factorg affect all participants in the markets in whick w
operate, such as U.S. government spending conslitind changes in rules and regulations applicaldeternment contractors, the market for our Chass
common stock may be adversely affected by finamemslts or negative events only affecting otherketgparticipants or financial results of such
participants. While such events or results mayimpgct or be indicative of our current or futurefpemance, the price of our securities may nonesel
may be adversely affected as a result thereof.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen
None.

Item 2. Properties

We do not own any facilities or real estate. Oupoocate headquarters are located at 8283 GreenBliiw®, McLean, Virginia 22102. We lease other
operating offices and facilities throughout Nortmérica, and a limited number of overseas locati@us.principal offices outside of McLean, Virginia
include: Annapolis Junction, Maryland; Rockvilleakland; San Diego, California; Herndon, VirginiadaVashington, D.C. We have a number of
Sensitive Compartmented Information Facilities, athare enclosed areas within buildings that ard ts@erform classified work for the U.S. Intellige
Community. Many of our employees are located inlifees provided by the U.S. government. The taigliare footage of our leased offices and facilites
approximately 2.8 million square feet. We believe facilities meet our current needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

Our performance under U.S. government contractampliance with the terms of those contracts gmlieable laws and regulations are subject to
continuous audit, review, and investigation byth8. government which may include such investigatachniques as subpoenas or civil investigative
demands. Given the nature of our business, thastsareviews, and investigations may focus, amathgr areas, on various aspects of procurement
integrity, labor time reporting, sensitive and/tassified information access and control, executivepensation, and post government employment
restrictions. We
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are not always aware of our status in such matbetsiye are currently aware of certain pending tsuatid investigations involving labor time repagtin
procurement integrity, and classified informati@eess. In addition, from time to time, we are asmlved in legal proceedings and investigationsiag

in the ordinary course of business, including thedating to employment matters, relationships wltents and contractors, intellectual propertypdies,
and other business matters. These legal proceeskmgsvarious remedies, including claims for maryedamages in varying amounts that currently range
up to $40 million or are unspecified as to amoifthough the outcome of any such matter is inhdyanicertain and may be materially adverse, based o
current information, we do not expect any of theeotly ongoing audits, reviews, investigationslitigation to have a material adverse effect on ou
financial condition and results of operations. A8/arch 31, 2015 and 2014 , there are no matenmumts accrued in the consolidated financial statém
related to these proceedings.

Six former officers and stockholders who had degghthe company prior to the acquisition have fdgdtal of nine suits in various jurisdictions, hwit
original filing dates ranging from July 3, 2008dhgh December 15, 2009, against us and certaiarafworent and former directors and officers. Ttote
these suits were amended on July 2, 2010 and tiéref amended into one consolidated complainteptednber 7, 2010. Another two of the original nine
suits were consolidated into one complaint on Sepéx 24, 2014. Each of the suits arises out oatigiisition and alleges that the former stockhaldee
entitled to certain payments that they would haeeived if they had held their stock at the timéhefacquisition. Some of the suits also allegettiea
acquisition price paid to stockholders was insigfit. The various suits assert claims for breaatootract, tortious interference with contract,dmte of
fiduciary duty, civil Racketeer Influenced and Ggot Organizations Act, or RICO, violations, viotais of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act,
or ERISA, and/or securities and common law frautte€ of these suits have been dismissed with péalp exhausted. The two suits that were consell
into one action on September 24, 2014 were settiefipril 16, 2015. One of the remaining suits hasrbdismissed by the United States District Caurrt f
the Southern District of California and is on agdefore the United States Court of Appeals forReth Circuit. The other three remaining suitsttivare
previously consolidated on September 7, 2010 haea kbismissed by the United States District Carrttfe Southern District of New York, but are still
subject to appeal by the plaintiffs. The aggregdleged damages sought in these four remaining suéipproximately $291.7 milliofwhich is sought to b
trebled pursuant to RICO), plus punitive damagests; and fees. Although the outcome of any ofgltases is inherently uncertain and may be mdserial
adverse, based on current information, we do np¢etthem to have a material adverse effect ofimancial condition and results of operations.

Item 4 . Mine Safety Disclosure
None.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table sets forth information about executive officers as of May 18, 2015:

Name Age Position

Horacio D. Rozanski 47 President and Chief Executive Officer

Kevin L. Cook 60 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officadalreasurer

Karen M. Dahut 51 Executive Vice President

Lloyd Howell, Jr. 48 Executive Vice President

Nancy J. Laben 53 Executive Vice President and General Counsel

Joseph Logue 50 Executive Vice President

Joseph W. Mahafee Executive Vice President, Chief Administrative O and Chief Information Security
57 Officer

John D. Mayer 69 Executive Vice President

Elizabeth M. Thompson 60 Executive Vice President and Chief Personnel Office

Horacio D. Rozansks our President and Chief Executive Officer amyesg as our Chief Operating Officer until Janua2@15. Mr. Rozanski
served as the Chief Strategy and Talent Offic&0ib0 and, prior to that, Chief Personnel Officeoof company from 2002 through 2010. Mr. Rozanski
joined our company in 1992. He serves on the boafrddvisors for the Wolf Trap Foundation for therferming Arts, the Jewish Primary Day Schoo
the Nation’s Capital and The Center for Talent hatmn.

Kevin L. Cooks an Executive Vice President and our Chief Firer@fficer and Treasurer. He previously servetdhascompany's Corporate
Controller. Mr. Cook joined the company in 19868\enager, Project Cost Accounting. He left the conypa 1996 to take on the role of Senior Vice
President, Client Development for what is now JANB&tware. Mr. Cook returned to Booz Allen in theeisg of 2003 as Director, Financial Reporting
Systems. In April of 2008, Mr. Cook was selected
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as the Corporate Controller for the company. MolCeceived his B.S. degree with a concentratiohdeounting from Towson University in 1977, and an
MBA with a concentration in Management in 1981 frira University of Baltimore. In 1982, he becanteéaatified Public Accountant (CPA) in the State
Maryland. He is also a member of the George Masamersity Board of Trustees.

Karen M. Dahuis an Executive Vice President and formerly thel ifes the company's Analytics capability. Currgnis. Dahut is the group leader
for the company's Strategic Innovation Group. Biahut joined our company in 2002 and became a 8¥fite President in 2004. Previously, Ms. Dahut
led the company's US Navy and Marine Corps busiaedsts Economic and Business Analytics (EBA) tég. She is also a trustee of the Employee
Capital Accumulation Plan (ECAP) Board of Trusteéds. Dahut is a Board Member of the Northern Virgifiechnology Council and serves on the Board
of Trustees for Stone Ridge School of the SacreattHe Bethesda, Maryland.

Lloyd Howell, Jr.is an Executive Vice President of our company arttié group leader for our Civil Group. Mr. Howjelihed our company in 1988,
left in 1991, rejoined in 1995 and became an Exeetice President in 2005. He served as chairnfiauoEthics & Compliance Committee for over se
years, until April 2014. Mr. Howell serves on thealbds of directors of Integra Life Sciences (IARF@rtnership for Public Service, Capital Partners f
Education, Committee for Economic Development, lslachagement Leadership for Tomorrow.

Nancy J. Labeis an Executive Vice President of our company amd@eneral Counsel. Ms. Laben joined our compar§eptember 2013. Before
joining our company, Ms. Laben served as Generah€el of AECOM Technology Corporation from June @@i August 2013, where she was respon:
for all legal support. Prior to June 2010, Ms. Lakerved as Deputy General Counsel at Accentureggimning in 1989. Prior to Accenture, Ms. Laben
served in the law department at IBM Corporation.

Joseph Logués an Executive Vice President of our company arttié group leader for our Defense Intelligenceu@rdvr. Logue joined our
company in 1997 and became an Executive Vice Ryasid 2009. Previously, he led our former comnariciformation Technology practice.

Joseph W. Mahafae an Executive Vice President and our Chief Adstmative Officer (CAO) and Chief Information SeayrOfficer (CISO). Prior
to assuming his CAO and CISO roles, Mr. Mahaffegextin a variety of client/marké&cing leadership roles to include Client Servidéa@r for our NSA
account; Assurance and Resilience Capability Leadat the Northeast Region Leader. Mr. Mahaffeephimsarily focused his career serving clients ia th
Defense and Intelligence Community markets. Altbgethe has more than 36 years of professionakiexpe in Cybersecurity, systems engineering,
communications, information assurance, and signgfligence. Prior to joining Booz Allen, Mr. Maffee was an information security engineer with the
National Security Agency. He is presently serviadtee Booz Allen representative to the Defensedtréal Base. Previously, he served on the Boal
Directors for the AFCEA Central Maryland Chapted d@ine Board of the Independent College Fund of Mai. Mr. Mahaffee holds a B.S. degree in
electrical engineering from Clemson University @amdM.S. degree in electrical engineering from Jdtiogkins University.

John D. Mayeiis an Executive Vice President of our company artié lead for the company's International busindssMayer joined our company
in 1997 and became an Executive Vice Presider®@®2He is the former chairman of the board ofdoes of the Homeland Security and Defense
Business Council, a member of the board of the \kgstn Education and Tennis Foundation, and wasradr member of the Corporate Advisory Board
for the Darden School of Business at the Universityirginia.

Elizabeth M. Thompsade an Executive Vice President of our company amdes as our Chief Personnel Officer. Ms. Thompgsired our company
in 2008. Ms. Thompson served as Vice Presidenturh&h Resources for Fannie Mae from 2000 to 2008t for Fannie Mae, Ms. Thompson served in
IBM's Human Resources department and businessrigapeoles. Ms. Thompson holds an M.S. in HumasdrReces and Personnel Management from
American University. Ms. Thompson is also a menidfehe Thurgood Marshall College Fund. Previoushg served on the Board of Trustees for
Gallaudet University.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Relat&lockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equigcurities.

Market Information

Our Class A Common Stock began trading on the Nevk Btock Exchange on November 17, 2010. At theilahmeeting of stockholders held on
July 31, 2014, the stockholders approved a progosaiend and restate the certificate of incorpamatvhich had the effect of converting all issedi
outstanding shares of Class B Non-Voting CommonlStmd Class C Restricted Common Stock into stafr€sass A Common Stock on a one-for-one
basis. The conversion was effected on August 184 2¢then the Company filed its third amended anthteg certificate of incorporation with the Secrgta
of State of the State of Delaware. As a resulhefdonversion, there were no more shares of ClagsrBVoting Common Stock and Class C Restricted
Common Stock outstanding at such time. There isstablished trading market for each of our CladsB-Voting Common Stock, Class C Restricted
Common Stock, or Class E Special Voting CommoniSton May 4, 2015, there were 46,131 and 83 beia¢fiolders of our Class A Common Stock and
Class E Special Voting Common Stock, respectivEfye following table sets forth, for the periodsioaded, the high and low sales price per sharaiof o
Class A Common Stock as reported by the New YookISExchange:

High Low
Fiscal 2015
1t Quarter $ 2532 $ 20.8¢
2 Quarter 24.5] 20.6"
31 Quarter 27.8: 23.27
4™ Quarter 31.3( 25.8:2
Fiscal 2014
1t Quarter $ 18.7¢  $ 12.6¢€
2" Quarter 22.27 17.3:¢
3" Quarter 20.5¢ 16.61
4™ Quarter 22.3¢ 17.2(
Dividends

On May 21, 2014, we announced a regular quartesh dividend in the amount of $0.11 per share.ditaterly dividend was paid on June 30, 2014
to stockholders of record on June 10, 2014.

On July 30, 2014, we announced a regular quartash dividend in the amount of $0.11 per shareaaspkcial cash dividend of $1.00 per share, eact
paid on August 29, 2014 to stockholders of recard\agust 11, 2014. The Board of Directors, actinghee Administrator of the Officers' Rollover Stock
Plan and the EIP made a determination to adjustutetanding Rollover and EIP options for the spladividend to prevent the dilution of the optioriEhe
adjustment was in the form of a $1.00 dividend egjeint. Holders of the Rollover Options will receia cash payment equal to the amount of the special
dividend on the exercise of the option during thgams' mandatory exercise period. Holders of Eifoms received or will receive a cash payment Egua
the amount of the special dividend payable on Aug8s2014, or the vesting of the EIP option, wheidr is later.

On October 29, 2014, we announced a regular qiadash dividend in the amount of $0.11 per shahe quarterly dividend was paid on November
28, 2014 to stockholders of record on Novembe2004.

On February 28, 2015, we announced a regular glyacesh dividend in the amount of $0.13 per sh@he quarterly dividend was paid on February
27, 2015 to stockholders of record on Februan2005.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
None.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
The following table shows the share repurchaseigcfor each of the three months in the quartateshMarch 31, 2015:
Approximate Dollar

Total Number of Shares Value of Shares that May
Purchased as Part of  Yet Be Purchased Under

Total Number of Shares  Average Price Paid per Publicly Announced the Plans or Programs
Period Purchased (1) Share Plans or Programs 2)
January 2015 = = = $ 154,900,000
February 2015 1,000,000 $ 28.36 1,000,000 $ 126,540,000
March 2015 = = = $ 126,540,000
Total 1,000,000 1,000,000
1) On February 2, 2015, the Company enteredantanderwriting agreement with an affiliate of ®arlyle Group, or the selling stockholder, and

Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, or the underwriter, puaatito which (i) the selling stockholder sold 1@WO0 shares of Class A Common Stock to
the underwriter and (ii) the Company repurchas88@,000 shares of Class A Common Stock from themuwriter. The shares were repurchase
the price per share equal to the price per shadebyahe underwriter in the offering.

2) On December 12, 2011, the Board of Directpgraved a $30.0 million share repurchase programld@uary 27, 2015, the Board of Directors
approved an increase to our share repurchase &attion from $30.0 million to up to $180.0 millioA. special committee of the Board of
Directors was appointed to evaluate market comtend other relevant factors and initiate repugetainder the program from time to time. The
share repurchase program may be suspended, magifisicontinued at any time at the Company’s étéon without prior notice.

Use of Proceeds from Registered Securities

None.
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Performance

The graph set forth below compares the cumulatiaeeholder return on our Common Stock between Nbeerh7, 2010 (the date our Class A
common stock began trading on the New York Stoatharge) and March 31, 2015 , to the cumulativermetii (i) the Russell 1000 Index and (ii) the Dow
Jones US Computer Services Index over the samedpdrhis graph assumes an initial investment of0%1i® November 17, 2010 in our common stock, the
Russell 1000 Index, and the Dow Jones US Compuatetices Index and assumes the reinvestment ofatids| if any. The stock price performance
included in this graph is not necessarily indicaidf future stock price performance.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURNS SINCE IPO

370

—0— Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corp

320 —0—Russell 1000 Index

——DJ US Computer Services Index

270

w
%
-
= __‘—/_/—_D
Al 170 0
120
70
1117110 3/31/11 331112 3/3113 331114 313115
ASSUMES $100 INVESTED ON NOV. 17, 2010
ASSUMES DIVIDEND REINVESTED
Company/Market/Peer Group 11/17/2010* 3/31/2011 3/31/2012 3/31/2013 3/31/2014 3/31/2015
Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corp  $ 100.0C $ 935t $ 88.91 $ 121.27  $ 225.9: $ 317.2¢
Russell 1000 Index $ 100.0C $ 113.8¢ % 122.8¢ $ 140.6( $ 172.00 $ 193.8°

DJ US Computer Services Index $ 100.0¢ $ 117.0: $ 144.0¢ $ 151.7. $ 148.2¢ $ 143.4:

* Note: BAH base values reflect the closing prdé19.25 on the first day of trading and indexebealues are as of 11/17/2010
end of day.

Item 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The selected consolidated statements of operatiatasfor fiscal 2015 , fiscal 2014 , and fiscal 2@hd the selected consolidated balance sheet ¢
of March 31, 2015 and 2014 have been derived fromaadited consolidated financial statements inetlieilsewhere in this Annual Report. The selected
consolidated statement of operations data forlfa@a2 and fiscal 2011 and the selected consolidaééance sheet data as of March 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011 have been derived from audited consolidatexhfiial statements which are not included in thisu#al Report. Our historical results are not

40




necessarily indicative of the results that mayXyeeeted for any future period. The selected finalntata should be read in conjunction with “ltem 7.
Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@idition and Results of Operations” and our consdéd financial statements and related notes
included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

(In thousands, except share and per share data) 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Consolidated Statements of Operations:

Revenue $ 5274777 $ 547869 $ 5,758,050 $ 585921 $ 5,591,291
Operating costs and expenses:

Cost of revenue 2,593,84! 2,716,11 2,871,241 2,934,37 2,836,95!

Billable expenses 1,406,52 1,487,11 1,532,591 1,542,82; 1,473,261

General and administrative expenses 752,91: 742 52 833,98¢ 903,72 881,02t

Depreciation and amortization 62,66( 72,32 74,00¢ 75,20" 80,60:

Restructuring charge _ _ _ 15,66( _

Total operating costs and expenses 4,815,94 5,018,08, 5,311,82! 5,471,78 5,271,85;

Operating income 458,82. 460,61 446,23 387,43 319,44
Interest expense (71,83) (78,030 (70,289 (48,079 (131,89))
Other, net (1,072 (1,799 (7,639 4,52( (59,489
Income before income taxes 385,91 380,78 368,31 343,87 128,06:
Income tax expense 153,34¢ 148,59¢ 149,25: 103,91¢ 43,37(
Net income $ 232,56¢ $ 232,18t $ 219,05¢ $ 239,950 $ 84,69¢
Earnings per common share (1):

Basic $ 15¢  $ 16z $ 156 $ 18: % 0.74

Diluted $ 15 $ 15, $ 148§ 17C  $ 0.6€
Weighted average common shares outstanding (1):

Basic 145,414,12 141,314,54 134,402,72 130,145,68 114,478,94

Diluted 150,375,53 148,681,07 144,854,72 140,812,01 127,448,70
Dividends declared per share $ 1.4€ $ 2.4C $ 8.3¢ $ 0.0¢ $ _

As of March 31,

(In thousands) 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 207,21 $ 259,99: $ 350,38: $ 484,36t $ 192,63:
Working capital 314,21« 338,87: 459,70t 739,21: 494,30t
Total assets 2,877,49: 2,940,81! 3,177,52! 3,314,79 3,024,02:
Long-term debt, net of current portion 1,569,27 1,585,23 1,659,61 922,92! 964,32t
Stockholders’ equity 186,49t 171,63t 226,79: 1,185,18! 907,25(

(1) Basic earnings per share for the Company bas bomputed using the weighted average numbéaoés of Class A Common Stock, Class B Non- VoBogimon Stock, and Class C
Restricted Common Stock outstanding during theogefThe Company’s diluted earnings per share has bemputed using the weighted average numberaoéstof Class A Common
Stock, Class B Non-Voting Common Stock, and Clag&eétricted Common Stock including the dilutivesetfof outstanding common stock options and otteeksbased awards. For the
purposes of calculating basic and diluted earnpegshare, the Company has utilized the two clatbad, given non-forfeitable dividends declarediomested Class A Restricted
Common Stock. The weighted average number of EaSgecial Voting Common Stock has not been includédlde calculation of either basic earnings perstor diluted earnings per
share due to the terms of such common stock.

Item 7. Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operation

The following discussion and analysis is intendelelp the reader understand our business, findrogiadition, results of operations, and liquidity
and capital resources. You should read this disons® conjunction with “ltem 6. Selected Financidéta,” and our consolidated financial statemenigla
the related notes contained elsewhere in this AhRegort.

The statements in this discussion regarding ingustitlook, our expectations regarding our futurefpemance, liquidity and capital resources, and
other non-historical statements in this discusgosm forward-looking statements. These forward-lnglétatements are subject to numerous risks and
uncertainties, including, but not limited to, thisks and uncertainties described in “ltem 1A. Risktors” and “Introductory Note — Cautionary Note
Regarding Forwar-Looking Statements”. Our actual results may diffeaterially from those contained in or implied bydorward-looking statements.
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Our fiscal year ends March 31 and, unless othennsted, references to years or fiscal are for fisesrs ended March 31. See “— Results of
Operations.”

Overview

We are a leading provider of management consulteéanology, and engineering services to the Lb8egment in the defense, intelligence, and
civil markets. Additionally, we provide managemant technology consulting services to major corama, institutions, not-for-profit organizatiorend
international clients. We are a well-known, truséed long-term partner to our clients, who seekesyertise and objective advice to address thegtmo
important and complex problems. Leveraging our ¥€8r consulting heritage and a talent base of appedely 22,50(people, we deploy our deep dom
knowledge, functional and technical expertise, exiirzg set of capabilities, and experience of intieeaclient service to help our clients achievarthe
objectives. We have a collaborative culture, sumgabby our operating model, which helps our protesss identify and respond to emerging trends scro
the markets we serve and deliver enduring resoittedr clients. Today, we serve substantially &the cabinet-level departments of the U.S. govemim
clients in selected commercial markets, and int@nal clients. Major government clients include thepartment of Defense, all branches of the U.S.
military, the U.S. Intelligence Community, and ti&gencies such as the Department of Homeland Bgdhe Department of Health and Human Services,
and the Department of the Treasury. We supporethisnts in addressing complex and pressing aingdie such as combating global terrorism, improving
cyber capabilities, transforming the healthcaréesysimproving efficiency and managing change withie government. In the commercial sector, wee
U.S. clients primarily in the financial servicegdithcare, energy, retail, and automotive markets.international clients are primarily in the MiddEast,
as well as in south-east Asia following the reagrgning of our office in Singapore.

Financial and Other Highlights

During fiscal 2015, the Company saw revenue deslfaethe full year while continuing to effectivaiyanage indirect costs. This includes managing
our capacity to balance the supply of consultitadf stith an increased market demand as evidencedriimcreasing level of funded backlog. This effex
management of indirect spending allowed the Compaityvest in new capabilities and continued inwesit in growth areas including the expansion o
commercial and international markets.

Revenue decreased 3.7% from fiscal 2014 to fisgab2s a result of lower demand, primarily drivgrilie continuing effect of macro challenges in
the federal government spending environment. Howewaintaining solid productivity and deploymentooisulting staff on billable work mitigated the
impact of these conditions on our revenue perfomaam addition, the Company reported a secondesg@l quarter of headcount increases to deploy
against existing and future funded work. Althougiadicount has increased in the most recent mohthayverage headcount over the last twelve months
declined slightly which led to fewer billable hounstotal and an overall decrease in revenue fmafi2015. The revenue decline year over year igas a
attributable to a reduction in billable expenses ttua decline in our use of subcontractors andrathect expenses incurred to perform on contracts

Operating income decreased 0.4% to $458.8 milhdistal 2015 from $460.6 million in fiscal 2014hich reflects a 30 basis point increase in
operating margin to 8.7% from 8.4% in the compargidriod. The decrease in operating income wab\attible to revenue declines over the year to date
period, mitigated by volume based reductions inpensation costs and related fringe benefits, amdésser extent a decrease in depreciation and
amortization expense. While the Company continadedus on disciplined cost management of indispeinding, there was an increase in the level of bid
and proposal activity and continued investmentseiw capabilities, new markets, and growth platfoasisompared to the prior year period.

Non-GAAP Measures

We publicly disclose certain non-GAAP financial magements, including Adjusted Operating Income uatid EBITDA, Adjusted Net Income, and
Adjusted Diluted Earnings Per Share, or Adjusteldt®d EPS, because management uses these measuresifiess planning purposes, including to
manage our business against internal projectedtsaxfioperations and measure our performance. ¥ie &djusted Operating Income, Adjusted EBITDA,
Adjusted Net Income, and Adjusted Diluted EPS aasuges of our core operating business, which egdluelimpact of the items detailed below, as these
items are generally not operational in nature. €hmem-GAAP measures also provide another basisofoparing period to period results by excluding
potential differences caused by non-operationallangual or non-recurring items. We also utilizd discuss Free Cash Flow, because management uses
this measure for business planning purposes, meagshe cash generating ability of the operatingiess, and measuring liquidity generally. We prese
these supplemental measures because we believbgbatmeasures provide investors and securit@gsis with important supplemental information with
which to evaluate our performance, long term egspotential, or liquidity, as applicable, and takle them to assess our performance on the sasise ba
as management. These supplemental performance reessus may vary from and may not be
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comparable to similarly titled measures by othenganies in our industry. Adjusted Operating IncoAjusted EBITDA, Adjusted Net Income, Adjusted
Diluted EPS, and Free Cash Flow are not recognmizeasurements under accounting principles generetigpted in the United States, or GAAP, and when
analyzing our performance or liquidity, as appliealinvestors should (i) evaluate each adjustmentir reconciliation of operating and net income to
Adjusted Operating Income, Adjusted EBITDA and Aslpd Net Income, and net cash provided by operattigities to Free Cash Flows, and the
explanatory footnotes regarding those adjustmeaish as defined under GAAP, (ii) use Adjusted Qpegdncome, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted Net
Income, and Adjusted Diluted EPS in addition taj ant as an alternative to, operating income, medrme or diluted EPS, as measures of operatingisesu
and (iii) use Free Cash Flows in addition to, aotlas an alternative to, net cash provided by dipgractivities as a measure of liquidity, eacldened
under GAAP. We have defined the aforementioned@8iP measures as follows:

. "Adjusted Operating Income" represents operaticgme before (i) certain stock option-based ahérequity-based compensation
expenses, (ii) adjustments related to the amoidizaif intangible assets, and (iii) transactiontspfees, losses, and expenses, including
fees associated with debt prepayments. We prepdjtesied Operating Income to eliminate the impadteshs we do not consider
indicative of ongoing operating performance duth&r inherent unusual, extraordinary, or non-réagrnature or because they result
from an event of a similar nature.

. "Adjusted EBITDA" represents net income befaredme taxes, net interest and other expense, gmdailation and amortization and
before certain other items, including: (i) certafock option-based and other equity-based compensatpenses, and (ii) transaction
costs, fees, losses, and expenses, including $sesiated with debt prepayments. We prepare A&JUSBITDA to eliminate the impact
items we do not consider indicative of ongoing atiag performance due to their inherent unusuataerdinary, or non-recurring nature
or because they result from an event of a simadunne.

. "Adjusted Net Income" represents net income teef@) certain stock option-based and other egb#tyed compensation expenses,
(i) transaction costs, fees, losses, and expeirsggding fees associated with debt prepaymeiifsadjustments related to the
amortization of intangible assets, (iv) amortizatar write-off of debt issuance costs and writeaifbriginal issue discount, and (v) any
extraordinary, unusual, or non-recurring itemsach case net of the tax effect calculated usiresanmed effective tax rate. We prepare
Adjusted Net Income to eliminate the impact of isemet of tax, we do not consider indicative of @ing operating performance due to
their inherent unusual, extraordinary, or non-réogrnature or because they result from an eveatsifilar nature.

. "Adjusted Diluted EPS" represents diluted EPi8udated using Adjusted Net Income as opposed tingeme. Additionally, Adjusted
Diluted EPS does not contemplate any adjustmemstttncome as required under the two-class medbatisclosed in the footnotes to
the financial statements.

. "Free Cash Flow" represents the net cash generatadperating activities less the impact of purelsasf property and equipme
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Below is a reconciliation of Adjusted Operatingdnee, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted Net Income, Adjusteituted EPS, and Free Cash Flow to the
most directly comparable financial measure caled&nd presented in accordance with GAAP.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per shareth) 2015 2014 2013
(Unaudited)
Adjusted Operating Income
Operating Income $ 458,82. $ 460,61. $ 446,23
Certain stock-based compensation expense (a) — 1,09¢ 5,86¢
Amortization of intangible assets (b) 4.22¢ 8,45( 12,51(
Transaction expenses (c) 2,03¢ — 2,72¢
Adjusted Operating Income $ 465,08 $ 470,15 $ 467,33
EBITDA & Adjusted EBITDA
Net income $ 232,56¢ $ 232,18t $ 219,05¢
Income tax expense 153,34¢ 148,59¢ 149,25:
Interest and other, net 72,90 79,82¢ 77,92:
Depreciation and amortization 62,66( 72,327 74,00¢
EBITDA 521,48 532,93 520,24
Certain stock-based compensation expense (a) — 1,094 5,86¢
Transaction expenses (C) 2,03¢ — 2,72¢
Adjusted EBITDA $ 523,52. $ 534,03 $ 528,83t
Adjusted Net Income
Net income $ 232,56¢ $ 232,18t $ 219,05¢
Certain stock-based compensation expense (a) — 1,09¢ 5,86¢
Amortization of intangible assets (b) 4.22F 8,45( 12,51(
Transaction expenses (c) 2,03¢ — 2,72t
Amortization or write-off of debt issuance costsl avwrite-off of original issue
discount 6,54¢ 6,71¢ 13,01¢
Adjustments for tax effect (d) (5,129 (6,50¢) (13,649
Adjusted Net Income $ 240,25 $ 241,94t $ 239,53(
Adjusted Diluted Earnings Per Share
Weighted-average number of diluted shares outstgndi 150,375,53 148,681,07 144,854,72
Adjusted Net Income Per Diluted Share (e) $ 16C $ 16 % 1.65
Free Cash Flow
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 309,95¢ $ 332,714 $ 464,65:
Less: Purchases of property and equipment (36,04.) (20,90 (33,119
Free Cash Flow $ 27391 $ 311,81 $ 431,54:
(@) Reflects stock-based compensation expens@pfams for Class A Common Stock and restrictedeshan each case, issued in connection with the

Acquisition of our Company by The Carlyle Groupe(ti\cquisition") under the Officers' Rollover StoBkan. Also reflects stock-based
compensation expense for Equity Incentive Plan<Cda€ommon Stock options issued in connection wighAcquisition under the Equity

Incentive Plan.
(b) Reflects amortization of intangible assets resgifiom the Acquisitior

(c) Fiscal 2015 reflects debt refinancing costsiined in connection with the refinancing transatitonsummated on May 7, 2014. Fiscal 2013

reflects debt refinancing costs incurred in conioectvith the recapitalization transaction consunmedain July 31, 2012.

(d) Reflects tax effect of adjustments at an assumedins tax rate of 409

(e) Excludes an adjustment of approximately $8illon , $3.1 million , and $9.1 million of net eangs for fiscal 2015 , 2014 , and 2013,
respectively, associated with the application efttho-class method for computing diluted earningsghare.
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Factors and Trends Affecting Our Results of Operatins

Our results of operations have been, and we exbent to continue to be, affected by the followiagtbrs, which may cause our future results of
operations to differ from our historical resultsopferations discussed under “— Results of Operation

Business Environment and Key Trends in Our Markets

We believe that the following trends and developtmé@nthe U.S. government services industry anchaankets may influence our future results of

operations:

budget deficits and the growing U.S. nationditdecreasing pressure on the U.S. governmentiacefederal spending across all federal
agencies together with associated uncertainty abewize and timing of those reductions;

changes in the relative mix of overall U.S. goweent spending and areas of spending growth, lawtier spending on homeland security,
intelligence and defense-related programs as ca®iggerations end, and continued increased speadingber-security, advanced
analytics, technology integration and healthcare;

c ost cutting and efficiency initiatives, current aémture budget reductions, continued implementatib@ongressionally mandated
automatic spending cuts, and other efforts to redii&S. government spending, which could causetslienreduce or delay funding for
orders for services or invest appropriated funda &ss consistent or rapid basis or not at aftjquéarly when considering long-term
initiatives and in light of uncertainty around Coessional efforts to craft a long-term agreementhenU.S. government's ability to incur
indebtedness in excess of its current limits amegaly in the current political environment, nssue task orders in sufficient volume to
reach current contract ceilings, alter historictgrns of contract awards, including the typicakéase in the award of task orders or
completion of other contract actions by the U.Szggnment in the period before the end of the Udsegnment's fiscal year on September
30, delay requests for new proposals and contre&tds, rely on short-term extensions and fundinguofent contracts, or reduce staffing
levels and hours of operation;

current and continued uncertainty around the timéxgent, nature and effect of Congressional ahdrdt).S. government action to addi
budgetary constraints, the outcome of Congresskfifiaits to craft a long-term agreement on the dd&vernment’s ability to incur
indebtedness in excess of its current limits ardU4tS. deficit, including, the required reductiamsler the Budget Control Act of 2011 (as
amended by the American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2ai@ the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2014)ichiprovides for automatic
spending cuts totaling approximately $1.2 trillioetween 2013 and 2025nd the impact of the expiration of the Tempoiept Limit
Extension Act on March 15, 2015, and the meanstigiwthe U.S. government addresses such expiration;

delays in the completion of the U.S. governnmehbtidget processes, which have in the past and oothe future delay procurement of
the products, services, and solutions we provide;

increased audit, review, investigation and gersgaltiny by U.S. government agencies of governroentractors' performance under
U.S. government contracts and compliance withéhms of those contracts and applicable laws;

the implementation by U.S. government agencieppfaimately $90 billion in mandated 2015 sequéstnaspending cuts, including an
estimated $45 billion in cuts to the DepartmenbDefense, as well as further reductions in Over&zagingency Operations ("OCQO")
funding, such as the future reductions from curtevels of OCO funding in President Obama's progdiseal 2016 budget;

the federal focus on refining the definition ofligrently governmental” work, including proposalditoeit contractor access to sensitive or
classified information and work assignments, whiglh continue to drive pockets of insourcing in i@rs agencies, particularly in the
intelligence market;

negative publicity and increased scrutiny of goweent contractors in general, including us, relatmgy.S. government expenditures for
contractor services and incidents involving thehaiglling of sensitive or classified information;

cost cutting and efficiency and effectivenedernt$ by U.S. civilian agencies with a focus onregased use of performance measurement,
“program integrity” efforts to reduce waste, fraard abuse in entitlement
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programs, and renewed focus on improving procurémectices for and interagency use of IT servigegduding through the use of
cloud based options and data center consolidation;

. U.S. government agencies awarding contractstenhmically acceptable/lowest cost basis, whialidcbave a negative impact on our
ability to win certain contracts;

. as a result of the U.S. government's effortetiuce outlays for contractor costs, we may semtnuing shift toward placement of our
consulting staff at client site locations insteaduar facilities, which generally results in lowkitling rates and could have a negative
impact on our revenue;

. restrictions by the U.S. government on the ghdf federal agencies to use lead system integraito response to cost, schedule and
performance problems with large defense acquisfirmigrams where contractors were performing the $gatem integrator role;

. increasingly complex requirements of the Departhof Defense and the U.S. Intelligence Communitiuding cybersecurity, managir
federal health care cost growth and focus on rafggraxisting government regulation of various sectif the economy, such as financial
regulation and healthcare;

. increased competition from other government cotdracand market entrants seeking to take advamtide trends identified aboy

. legislative and regulatory changes to limitasiam the amount of allowable executive compensatgmitted under flexibly priced
contracts following implementation of interim ruledopted by federal agencies pursuant to the BsparBudget Act of 2013 published
on June 24, 2014, which substantially further redihe amount of allowable executive compensatiateuthese contracts and extend
these limitations to a larger segment of our exeestand our entire contract base; and

. efforts by the U.S. government to address orgapizalt conflicts of interest and related issues thiedmpact of those efforts on us and
competitors.

Sources of Revenue

Substantially all of our revenue is derived fromviges provided under contracts and task ordets thiéd U.S. government, primarily by our consul
staff and, to a lesser extent, our subcontrackamsding for our contracts and task orders is géigdiaked to trends in budgets and spending acves®us
U.S. government agencies and departments. We @raeicvices under a large portfolio of contracts @nttract vehicles to a broad client base, and we
believe that our diversified contract and cliensd#essens potential volatility in our businessyéaer, a reduction in the amount of services tregve
contracted to provide to the U.S. government oramyur significant U.S. government clients couétvé a material adverse effect on our business and
results of operations. In particular, the DepartnéiDefense is one of our significant clients, &nel Budget Control Act of 2011 (as amended by the
American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012 and the Coigsiéd Appropriations Act, 2014) provides for ausdim spending cuts totaling approximately $1.2
trillion between 2013 and 2021, and requires aimaséd $500 billion in federal defense spending aweer this time period. Under the Budget Contral, A
as amended, approximately $90 billion in spending are mandated for government fiscal 2015, amd#partment of Defense has estimated its share of
these cuts at $45 billion. A reduction in the antafrservices that we are contracted to providéiéoDepartment of Defense could have a materigraev
effect on our business and results of operatiams gazen the uncertainty of when and how theseraatit reductions may be applied, we are unable to
predict the nature or magnitude of the potentigkask effect.

Contract Types
We generate revenue under the following three lgpies of contracts:

. Cost-Reimbursable ContractSost-reimbursable contracts provide for the payméatlowable costs incurred during
performance of the contract, up to a ceiling basethe amount that has been funded, plus a fewieAiacrease or decrease our
spending on allowable costs, our revenue geneaat@wst-reimbursable contracts will increase, ugnéoceiling and funded
amounts, or decrease respectively. We generatauevwender two general types of cost-reimbursahi¢racts: cost-plus-fixed-
fee and cost-plus-award-fee, both of which reimbaitowable costs and provide for a fee. The faeueach type of cost-
reimbursable contract is generally payable uponptetion of services in accordance with the termthefcontract. Cost-plus-
fixed-fee contracts offer no opportunity for payrmbayond the fixed fee. Cost-plus-awde- contracts also provide for an aw
fee that varies within specified limits based uma client’s assessment of our
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performance against a predetermined set of crjtenieh as targets for factors like cost, qualitheslule, and performance.

. Time-and-Materials Contractéinder a time-and-materials contract, we are pdixieal hourly rate for each direct labor hour
expended, and we are reimbursed for billable neltedsts and billable out-of-pocket expenses imedusf allocable indirect
costs. To the extent our actual direct labor inclg@llocated indirect costs, and associated bdlakpenses decrease or increase
in relation to the fixed hourly billing rates prod in the contract, we will generate more or f@séit, respectively, or could
incur a loss.

. Fixed-Price ContractsUnder a fixed-price contract, we agree to perfdimgpecified work for a pre-determined price. T® th
extent our actual direct and allocated indirectzdscrease or increase from the estimates upahwine price was negotiated,
we will generate more or less profit, respectivelycould incur a loss. Some fixed-price contréetge a performance-based
component, pursuant to which we can earn incepi@yenents or incur financial penalties based orpeuiormance. Fixed-price
level of effort contracts require us to providepadfied level of effort (i.e., labor hours), ovestated period of time, for a fixed
price.

The amount of risk and potential reward varies ure@eh type of contract. Under cost-reimbursabigracts, there is limited financial risk, because
we are reimbursed for all allowable costs up teiing. However, profit margins on this type of t@ct tend to be lower than on time-and-materiats a
fixed-price contracts. Under time-and-materialstcasts, we are reimbursed for the hours workedgufie predetermined hourly rates for each labor
category. In addition, we are typically reimbur$edother contract direct costs and expenses &t \dts assume financial risk on time-and-materials
contracts because our labor costs may exceed gutiaited billing rates. Profit margins on well-mged time-andnaterials contracts tend to be higher t
profit margins on cost-reimbursable contracts ag las we are able to staff those contracts witpleagho have an appropriate skill set. Under fipeide
contracts, we are required to deliver the objestiveder the contract for a pre-determined pricen@ed to time-and-materials and cost-reimbursable
contracts, fixedsrice contracts generally offer higher profit margpportunities because we receive the full benéfitny cost savings but generally inva
greater financial risk because we bear the implahy cost overruns. In the aggregate, the contyaet mix in our revenue for any given period aitfect
that period's profitability. During our fiscal ye2015 we realized the conversion of a material mistbursable contract in the U.S. government ntarke
fixed price. Additionally, we generated an inciaggixed price contract base in our commercial anternational markets. Going forward, we do not
anticipate any macro drivers that will cause oxedi price percentage to materially increase oredeser, and we expect our percentage of fixed prick @
be roughly 20% of our total revenue mix. Changesontract type as a result of re-competes andmesiness could influence the percentage/mix in an
unanticipated way.

The table below presents the percentage of totahtee for each type of contract:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013
Cost-reimbursable (1) 55% 55% 57%
Time-and-materials 25% 28% 28%
Fixed-price (2) 20% 17% 15%
1) Includes both cost-plus-fixed-fee and cossgdwardfee contract:

2 Includes fixedprice level of effort contract
Contract Diversity and Revenue Mix

We provide services to our clients through a langmber of single award contracts and contract Yeh@&nd multiple award contract vehicles. Mos
our revenue is generated under indefinite delivedgfinite quantity, or ID/IQ, contract vehicleshieh include multiple award government wide acdiasi
contract vehicles, or GWACs, and General Servicdmifistration Multiple Award Schedule Contracts G8A schedules, and certain single award
contracts. GWACs and GSA schedules are availakdd t9.S. government agencies. Any number of cattra typically compete under multiple award
ID/IQ contract vehicles for task orders to provgticular services, and we earn revenue undee tb@stract vehicles only to the extent that we are
successful in the bidding process for task ordariscal 2015 , 2014 , and 2013, our revenue u&ACs and GSA schedules collectively represented
20% , 21%, and 19% of our total revenue, respdgtiéo single task
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order under any ID/IQ contract represented more 1h&% of our revenue in fiscal 2015 . No singléride contract accounted for more than 2.6% of our
revenue in fiscal 2015 .

We generate revenue under our contracts and tdsksathrough our provision of services as bothmgcontractor and subcontractor, as well as
the provision of services by subcontractors undetracts and task orders for which we act as tmeegpcontractor. For fiscal 2015 , 2014 , and 2093%
of our revenue was generated by contracts andtaks for which we served as a prime contractro® our revenue was generated by contracts akd tas
orders for which we served as a subcontractor 2886, 23%, and 21%, respectively, of our revenuegeserated by services provided by our
subcontractors. The mix of these types of revefffeeta our operating margin. Substantially all af operating margin is derived from direct consigti
staff labor as the portion of our operating mamdgnived from fees we earn on services providedusysabcontractors is not significant. We view griowvt
direct consulting staff labor as the primary drieéearnings growth. Direct consulting staff lalgoowth is driven by consulting staff headcount gitgw
after attrition, and total backlog growth.

Our People

Revenue from our contracts is derived from servit@ivered by consulting staff and, to a lesseemxtfrom our subcontractors. Our ability to hire,
retain, and deploy talent with skills appropriataligned with client needs is critical to our alyilio grow our revenue. We continuously evaluatetivar
our talent base is properly sized and appropriatetypensated, and contains an optimal mix of skillse cost competitive and meet the rapidly evigvi
needs of our clients.We seek to achieve that résaigh recruitment and management of capacitycantpensation. As of March 31, 2015, 2014 , and
2013 we employed approximately 22,500 , 22,70@,2H500 people, respectively, of which approxinya2®,500 , 20,600 , and 22,000 , respectively,
were consulting staff.

Contract Backlog
We define backlog to include the following threengmnents:

. Funded BacklocFunded backlog represents the revenue value ofofdieservices under existing contracts for wHiaiding is
appropriated or otherwise authorized less revenequsly recognized on these contracts.

. Unfunded BacklogJnfunded backlog represents the revenue valuedafrsifor services under existing contracts for Wiiimding has
not been appropriated or otherwise authorized.

. Priced OptionsPriced contract options represent 100% of the newerlue of all future contract option periods ungldsting contracts
that may be exercised at our clients’ option amdnfoich funding has not been appropriated or otisnauthorized.

Backlog does not include any task orders undeQbntracts, including GWACs and GSA schedulesgpixto the extent that task orders have been
awarded to us under those contracts.

The following table summarizes the value of ourtcaet backlog at the respective dates presented:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013
(In millions)
Backlog:
Funded $ 2,691 $ 229C $ 2,50¢
Unfunded (1) 2,121 2,34 2,79¢
Priced options 4 54¢ 5,20t 6,227
Total backlog $ 9,36( $ 9,83¢ $ 11,53¢
() Reflects a reduction by management to themawealue of orders for services under one exigingle award ID/IQ contract the

Company has had for several years, based on dilisiséal pattern of funding under this contractloy ).S. government.

Our backlog includes orders under contracts thabine cases extend for several years. The U.S.r€smgenerally appropriates funds for our clients
on a yearly basis, even though their contracts ustinay call for performance that is expected ite tanumber of years. As a result, contracts tylgieae
only partially funded at any point during theirrteand
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all or some of the work to be performed under thetracts may remain unfunded unless and until & Qongress makes subsequent appropriations and
the procuring agency allocates funding to the @mbtr

We view growth in total backlog and consulting Stefadcount as the two key measures of our poténtgness growth. Growing and deploying
consulting staff is the primary means by which weable to recognize profitable revenue growththioextent that we are able to hire additional atiimsg
staff and deploy them against funded backlog, wegly recognize increased revenue. Total bacttgeased by 4.9% from March 31, 2014 to
March 31, 2015 and decreased 14.7% from March @13 2o March 31, 2014 . Additions to funded backihgring fiscal 2015 and 2014 total$8.7 billion
and $5.3 billion, respectivelyith the increase from 2014 to 2015 duéhte conversion of unfunded backlog to funded bagkioe award of new contracts
and task orders under which funding was approgtjated the exercise and subsequent funding ofcpdp&ons. We report internally on our backlog on a
monthly basis and review backlog upon occurrenadhin events to determine if any adjustmentsacessary.

Our largest ID/IQ contract represents 12% of ouengle base and expires on July 8, 2015 with setasklorders that extend beyond that date, the
latest ending in September 2016. The contractdingrand being replaced with a set of new multiplerd 1D/IQ vehicles. We are working to positiorr ou
work on other contracts. The loss, without replagetnof certain of these contract vehicles couleereamaterial adverse effect on our ability to ywaw
business and our operating results. We cannotqireith any certainty the portion of our backlogtthive expect to recognize as revenue in any future
period and we cannot guarantee that we will rea@gany revenue from our backlog. The primary rible$ could affect our ability to recognize such
revenue on a timely basis or at all are: progranedale changes, contract modifications, and odityatn assimilate and deploy new consulting staffins
funded backlog; cost cutting initiatives and otbEorts to reduce U.S. government spending, whaliccreduce or delay funding for orders for sersjce
and delayed funding of our contracts due to delaylse completion of the U.S. government's budgggirocess and the use of continuing resolutiornthéy
U.S. government to fund its operations. Funded logdkcludes orders under contracts for which teeqa of performance has expired, and we may not
recognize revenue on the funded backlog that irdwlich orders due to, among other reasons, thegalbmission of invoices by our subcontractors and
the expiration of the relevant appropriated fundimgccordance with a pre-determined expiratioe dath as the end of the U.S. government's figzal y
The revenue value of orders included in funded logcthat has not been recognized as revenue duerited of performance expirations has not exceeded
approximately 3.5% of funded backlog as of the enany of the four fiscal quarters preceding tisedl quarter ended March 31, 2015 . In our recent
experience, none of the following additional risksre had a material negative effect on our alitityealize revenue from our funded backlog: théateial
right of the U.S. government to cancel multi-yeantcacts and related orders or to terminate exjstontracts for convenience or default; in the adse
unfunded backlog, the potential that funding wdk he made available; and, in the case of pricéidig the risk that our clients will not exerctbeir
options.

Operating Costs and Expenses

Costs associated with compensation and relatechegpdor our people are the most significant corapbaf our operating costs and expenses. The
principal factors that affect our costs are addaigpeople as we grow our business and are awaelgaontracts, task orders, and additional workeund
our existing contracts, and the hiring of peopléhwepecific skill sets and security clearancesgsired by our additional work.

Our most significant operating costs and expensedescribed below.

. Cost of RevenueCost of revenue includes direct labor, relateglegee benefits, and overhead. Overhead consistslioéct costs,
including indirect labor relating to infrastructyraanagement and administration, and other expenses

. Billable ExpensesBillable expenses include direct subcontractor agps, travel expenses, and other expenses indarpetform on
contracts.
. General and Administrative Expens€@gneral and administrative expenses include indiagor of executive management and corporate

administrative functions, marketing and bid andoesal costs, and other discretionary spending.

. Depreciation and AmortizatioiDepreciation and amortization includes the deptriaof computers, leasehold improvements, fureitur
and other equipment, and the amortization of iratyrdeveloped software, as well as third-partytsafe that we use internally, and of
identifiable long-lived intangible assets over trestimated useful lives.
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Seasonality

The U.S. government's fiscal year ends on SepteBtbef each year. It is not uncommon for U.S. gomeent agencies to award extra tasks or
complete other contract actions in the weeks bafarend of its fiscal year in order to avoid tbssl of unexpended fiscal year funds. In additiomalgo
have generally experienced higher bid and propmssb in the months leading up to the U.S. goventséiscal year end as we pursue new contract
opportunities being awarded shortly after the d@&.ernment fiscal year end as new opportunitieegpected to have funding appropriated in the
U.S. government's subsequent fiscal year. We mame@ to experience this seasonality in futuréquis; and our future periods may be affected by it.
While not certain, changes in the government'sifneind spending patterns have altered historemd@nality trends, supporting our approach to niag:
the business on an annual basis.

Seasonality is just one of a number of factors,yrafrwhich are outside of our control, which mafeaf our results in any period. See "ltem 1A. Risk
Factors."

Critical Accounting Estimates and Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial caadiaind results of operations are based on ourtidased financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principlrsegally accepted in the United States, or GAAR pileparation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with GAAP requires manageto make estimates and assumptions that affeceported amounts of assets and liabilities and
the disclosure of contingencies at the date ofitfancial statements as well as the reported ansaefievenue and expenses during the reportinggberi
Management evaluates these estimates and assus@ti@n ongoing basis. Our estimates and assuragtare been prepared on the basis of the most
current reasonably available information. Actualules may differ from these estimates under diffeesssumptions or conditions.

Our significant accounting policies, including ttritical policies and practices listed below, arerenfully described and discussed in the notebeo t
consolidated financial statements. We considefdih@wving accounting policies to be critical to anderstanding of our financial condition and resolft
operations because these policies require the diffistilt, subjective or complex judgments on trertof our management in their application, ofteraa
result of the need to make estimates about theteffanatters that are inherently uncertain.

Revenue Recognition and Cost Estimation

Substantially all of our revenue is derived fronmizacts to provide professional services to the gavernment and its agencies. In most cases, we
recognize revenue as work is performed. We recegmizenue for cost-reimbursable-plus-fixed-fee i@mt$ with the U.S. government as hours are worked
based on reimbursable and allowable costs, recoieeiredirect costs and an accrual for the fixeddemponent of these contracts. Executive compenmsati
that we determine to be allowable for cost reimbnmsnt based on management's estimates is recogszedenue, net of reserves. Management's
estimates in this regard are based on a numbectdfré that may change over time, including exeeutbompensation survey data, our and other govert
contractors' experiences with the DCAA audit paiin our industry, and relevant decisions of tsoand boards of contract appeals. Many of our
U.S. government contracts include award fees, whietearned based on the client’s evaluation opetfiormance. We have significant history with the
client for the majority of contracts on which wareaward fees. That history and management's ei@buand monitoring of performance form the baseiz
our ability to estimate such fees over the lifehaf contract. Based on these estimates, we re@gniard fees as work on the contracts is performed.
Revisions to these estimates may result in inceeasdecreases to revenue and income, and areteeflie the financial statements in periods in Whiey
are identified. Historically, revisions to thesdimstes have not had a material effect on our testfiloperations.

Revenue for time-and-materials contracts is recmghas services are performed, generally on this basontract allowable labor hours worked
multiplied by the contract-defined billing ratedupallowable direct costs and indirect cost allmres associated with materials used and othectdire
expenses incurred in connection with the perforrafdche contract.

For fixed-price contracts, we primarily recognizeenue on the percentage-of-completion basis withrpss toward completion of a particular
contract based on actual costs incurred relativetst estimated costs to be incurred over thedifthe contract. On some fixed-price contractswey use
an alternative input method to calculate the pdrcemplete, such as labor hours or labor dollaings Tethod is used when a contract contains sogmifj
up-front material purchases resulting in costsiirezithat are not representative of the actualnessgon the contract. Profits on fixed-price cariraesult
from the difference between the incurred costs tsedlculate the percentage of completion anddlienue earned. These methods are followed where
reasonably dependable estimates of revenue arglwadér the contract can be made. If we are utalasonably estimate revenue or cost, the coatplet
contract method is used. Historically, we have batda to reasonably estimate total contract revamdecosts and such estimates are regularly rediewe
Recorded revenue and costs are subject to re\asitine contract progresses. Such revisions malf iesocreases or decreases to revenue and incamae,
are reflected
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in the financial statements in the periods in whtoky are first identified. If our estimates indieghat a contract loss will occur, a loss provis®mrecorded

in the period in which the loss first becomes pldband reasonably estimable. Estimating costsrumgielong-term contracts is complex and involves
significant judgment. Factors that must be congidén making estimates include labor productivitd availability, the nature and technical complexit

the work to be performed, potential performancay&lwarranty obligations, availability and timioffunding from the client, progress toward comiplet
and recoverability of claims. Adjustments to ora@iestimates are often required as work progremsgsdditional information becomes known, even
though the scope of the work required under théraohmay not change. Any adjustment as a resutabfange in estimates is made when facts develop,
events become known, or an adjustment is otheméseanted, such as in the case of a contract neatiifin. We have procedures and processes in mace t
monitor the actual progress of a project agairtsiheses and our estimates are updated if circurnetaare warranted. Historically, revisions to our
estimates have not had a material effect on outteesf operations.

Business Combinations

The accounting for the Company's business combimatonsists of allocating the purchase pricertgitde and intangible assets acquired and
liabilities assumed based on their fair valueshlhie excess recorded as goodwill. Certain faueraheasurements include inputs that are unobservabl
requiring management to make judgments and estintlag¢ can be affected by contract performanceoémet factors over time, which may cause final
amounts to differ materially from original estimsit§V/e have one year from the acquisition date ¢cadslitional information obtained to adjust the fai
value of the acquired assets and liabilities winiity result in changes to the recorded values witbffsetting adjustment to goodwiill.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, werent into a contingent consideration arrangemeodimection with a business acquisition which
required a fair value measurement using inputs asgbrojected cash flows and volatility. The usdiffiErent values for these inputs could have aemait
impact on the valuation. Any adjustment to the Yailue of contingent consideration is recordedamings. See Note 18 to our consolidated financial
statements for further information about the vatrabf the contingent consideration liability ame inputs used in the fair value measurement.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets Impairment

We test goodwill for impairment at the reportingtdavel on an annual basis and more frequentiyitvent occurs or circumstances change that
would more likely than not reduce the fair valueaokporting unit below its carrying value. A sifigant amount of management judgment is required to
determine if an event representing an impairmetticator has occurred during the year, includingrmitlimited to: a decline in forecasted cash flpas
sustained, material decline in the stock priceraadket capitalization; a significant adverse chaingbe business climate or economy; or unantiepat
competition. An adverse change in any of thesefaatould have a significant impact on the recaviéity of goodwill and other intangible assets.

As the consolidated entity represents the only aomept that constitutes a business whereby disingtecial information is available, we concluded
that we have one reporting unit, which is the sameur single operating segment. We test goodarilifipairment using the quantitative method (pritgar
based on market capitalization). We test the tredee for impairment using the relief from royaltgetimod. Our other amortizable intangible assets are
tested by comparing revenue projections to actuadsassessing qualitative factors. We perform paual testing for impairment of goodwill, the trade
name, and other amortizable intangible assets damfary 1 of each year.

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2015, 20dd 2013 , we did not record any impairmentagfdyvill, our trade name or other amortizable
intangible assets. Further, we do not consideraditlye goodwill, trade name, or other amortizahtamgible assets at risk of impairment.

Share-Based Payments

We use the Black-Scholes option-pricing model tiedrine the estimated fair value for stock optiddstical inputs into the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model include the following: option exermeigrice, fair value of the stock price, expectéal dif the option, annualized volatility of the stpannual
rate of quarterly dividends on the stock, and thle-iree interest rate.

During fiscal 2015, the Company’s Board of Direstauthorized and declared recurring cash dividentee amount of $0.11 per share (declared in
the first three quarters) and $0.13 per share gdedlin the fourth quarter) to holders of Booz Alléolding’s Class A Common Stock and Class B Non-
Voting Common Stock. Therefore, an annualized dini@lyield between 1.66% and 2.04% was used in ldekEScholes optiopricing model for all gran
made during the fiscal year. Implied volatilityaalculated as of each grant date based on ouribatwolatility along with an assessment of thstdiical
volatility of a peer group of publicly traded conmies. Until the historical volatility of the Compars available for a period consistent with the eoted
option term, we will continue to compare to a pg@up volatility data to estimate expected volgtifor future option grants. Other than the expédife of
the option, volatility is the most sensitive inpatour option grants. To be consistent with alleotimplied calculations, the same peer group used t
calculate other implied metrics is also
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used to calculate implied volatility. While we aret aware of any news or disclosures by our péatsnhay impact their respective volatility, theseairisk
that peer group volatility may increase, potenjialcreasing any prospective future compensatigeese that will result from future option grants.

The risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Sehaption-pricing model is determined by referegdhre U.S. Treasury yield curve rates with the
remaining term equal to the expected life assunéteadate of grant.

Forfeitures are estimated based on our historitalyais of attrition levels. Forfeiture estimates apdated quarterly for actual forfeitures. Wendo
expect this assumption to change materially, asiatt levels associated with new option grantsehast materially changed.

As a public company, we use the closing price af@ass A Common Stock on the grant date for vadugiurposes.
Accounting for Income Taxes

Provisions for federal, state, and foreign incomes are calculated from the income reported offilmacial statements based on current tax law and
also include the cumulative effect of any changesx rates from those previously used in detemgjnieferred tax assets and liabilities. Such prongs
differ from the amounts currently receivable or @alg because certain items of income and experseeognized in different time periods for purposks
preparing financial statements than for incomepiasposes.

Significant judgment is required in determiningdnte tax provisions and evaluating tax positions.astablish reserves for uncertain tax positions
when, despite the belief that our tax positionssagportable, there remains uncertainty in a taitjpm taken in our previously filed income taxwets. For
tax positions where it is more likely than not taaax benefit will be sustained, we record thgdat amount of tax benefit with a greater than 50%
likelihood of being realized upon settlement wittaging authority that has full knowledge of alleant information. To the extent we prevail in taeg for
which accruals have been established or are refjtarpay amounts in excess of reserves, our effetaix rate in a given financial statement peri@y foe
materially impacted.

The carrying value of our net deferred tax assetaraes that we will be able to generate suffidiginire taxable income in certain tax jurisdictidas
realize the value of these assets. If we are urntaljenerate sufficient future taxable income msthjurisdictions, a valuation allowance is recdrdben it
is more likely than not that the value of the defdrtax assets is not realizable.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting StandardsBd&ASB) issued a new standard that will repladsteg revenue recognition standards and
significantly expand the disclosure requirementsdéoenue arrangements. In April 2015, the FASBpsed a one-year delay in the effective date of the
standard to January 1, 2018, with an option thatlavpermit companies to adopt the standard as aartpe original effective date. Early adoptioropto
the effective date is not permitted. A final deaisbn the effective date is expected in 2015. Tewe standard will be effective for the Company bagig
on April 1, 2017 (i.e., beginning with the firstayter fiscal 2018 interim financial statementspepril 1, 2018 if the one-year delay is enacted. Tbe/
standard may be adopted retrospectively for albpsrpresented, or adopted using a modified re¢iise approach. Under the retrospective apprdheh,
fiscal 2017 and 2016 financial statements woulddjasted to reflect the effects of adopting the seamdard in those periods. Under the modified
retrospective approach, the new standard would lomlgdopted for the period beginning April 1, 264 hew contracts and those contracts that areetot y
complete at April 1, 2017, with a cumulative catghadjustment recorded to beginning retained egsniior existing contracts that still require penfi@ance
We are still in the process of determining whiamnsition method to utilize in order to adopt thevretandard and still assessing what effect the tamlopf
this standard may have on the timing of our revaegegnition and our financial statements.

Recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FAEBg fiscal 2015 and through the filing date dat and are not believed by management to
have a material impact on the Company's presehnistorical consolidated financial statements.
Segment Reporting

We report operating results and financial datane operating and reportable segment. We manadeusimress as a single profit center in order to
promote collaboration, provide comprehensive flomal service offerings across our entire clienebasd provide incentives to employees based on the
success of the organization as a whole. Althougtaiceinformation regarding served markets and fional capabilities is discussed for purposes of
promoting an understanding of our complex busingesnanage our business and allocate resourcis ebhsolidated level of a single operating segment
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Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiectade the accounts of the Company and its wholiyred subsidiaries, and have been prepared
in accordance with accounting principles generatlgepted in the United States, or GAAP. All intenpany balances and transactions have been elird
in consolidation.

The Company'’s fiscal year ends on March 31 andssr¢herwise noted, references to fiscal yearsoalfiare for fiscal years ended March 31. The
accompanying consolidated financial statementseptabe financial position of the Company as of 8faB1, 2015 and 2014 and the Company’s results of
operations for fiscal 2015 , fiscal 2014 , anddls2013 .

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth items from our cdidated statements of operations for the periodicated:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014
Versus Versus
2015 2014 2013 Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013
(In thousands)
Revenue 5,274,771 547869 $ 5,758,05! (B.7% 4.9%
Operating costs and expenses:

Cost of revenue 2,593,84! 2,716,11: 2,871,241 4.5% (5.4%
Billable expenses 1,406,52 1,487,11! 1,532,591 (5.49% (3.0%
General and administrative expenses 752,91: 742,52 833,98( 1.4% (11.0%
Depreciation and amortization 62,66( 72,32% 74,00¢ (13.49% (2.9%
Total operating costs and expenses 4,815,94! 5,018,08; 5,311,82! (4.0% (5.5%
Operating income 458,82; 460,61 446,23 (0.4% 3.2%
Interest expense (71,83) (78,03() (70,284 (7.9% 11.C%
Other, net (1,072 (1,799 (7,639 (40.2% (76.5%
Income before income taxes 385,91t 380,78 368,31 1.2% 3.4%
Income tax expense 153,34¢ 148,59¢ 149,25: 3.2% (0.4%
Net income 232,56¢ 232,18t $ 219,05¢ 0.2% 6.C%

Fiscal 2015 Compared to Fiscal 2014

Revenue

Revenue decreased to $5,274.8 million from $5,4i8lon , or a 3.7% decrease, as a result of losmand, primarily driven by the continuing
effect of macro challenges in the federal goverrtrspending environment. However, maintaining sphaductivity and deployment of consulting staff on
billable work mitigated the impact of these corati on our revenue performance. In addition, thea@my reported a second sequential quarter of

headcount increases to deploy against existinduwtnce funded work. Although headcount has incrdasehe most recent months, the average headcount

over the last twelve months declined which ledetodr billable hours in total and an overall decedasevenue for fiscal 2015. The revenue decleary
over year was also attributable to a reductionillalide expenses due to a decline in our use of@utbactors and other direct expenses incurre@itimpn
on contracts. Conversions to funded backlog duisaal 2015 totaled $5.7 billion in comparison @ 3billion for the comparable year. The revenue

conversion was a result of the conversion of unéahidacklog to funded backlog, the award of newreets and task orders under which funding was
appropriated, and the exercise and subsequentigiodipriced options.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue decreased to $2,593.8 million f#@716.1 million , or a 4.5% decrease. This deereass primarily due to a decrease in salaries anc

salary-related benefits of $96.6 million and a dase in employer retirement plan contributions5#.8 million. The decrease in salaries and salelgted
benefits was primarily due to reduced headcoudirgct consulting staff throughout fiscal 2015. Teerease in employer retirement plan contributioas
due to a decrease in the Company's expected dis@st employer contribution percentage due toange to the matching program effective April 1,
2014, as well as the reduced headcount noted aBoat of revenue as a percentage of revenue wa%dnd 49.6% in fiscal 2015 and fiscal 2014 ,

respectively.

Billable Expenses
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Billable expenses decreased to $1,406.5 milliomf#i,487.1 million , or a 5.4% decrease. The oldegirease was primarily due to decreases in
subcontractor-related expenses and other direetnsgs of $91.4 million incurred to perform on caats. Direct subcontractor related expenses demieas
due to lower demand. Billable expenses as a pexgentf revenue was 26.7% and 27.1% in fiscal 20@5iacal 2014 , respectively.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increaseds®.$illion from $742.5 million , or a 1.4% inceea This increase was primarily due to an
increase in incentive and stock-based compensati$8.5 million and an increase in professionasfard other business expenses of $12.0 milliors Thi
was partially offset by decreases in employeresaignt plan contributions of $2.9 million. The dex® in employer retirement plan contributions waes d
to a decrease in the Company's expected discrefienaployer contribution percentage due to a changematching program effective April 1, 2014, as
well as reduced headcount. General and adminigtraipenses as a percentage of revenue were 14B%3&6% for fiscal 2015 and fiscal 2014 ,
respectively.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization decreased to $62libmirom $72.3 million , or a 13.4% decreasenparily due to a reduction in amortization of
intangible assets, as well as a decrease in defimtexpense resulting from the effect of lowagitad expenditures in prior years.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased to $71.8 million froBi@million , or a 7.9% decrease, primarily assuleof the Second Amendment to the Credit
Agreement consummated in May 2014. The Compangased its borrowing under Term Loan A by approxalya$168.4 million, the proceeds of which
were used to pay outstanding principal on the Tleoan B. As the interest rates for Term Loan A aredr than those for Term Loan B, total interest
expense decreased for fiscal 2015 as comparesicta £014.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased to $153.3 million f#d#8.6 million , or a 3.2% increase, due to amgase in pre-tax income and to an increase in the
effective tax rate in fiscal 2015 from 39.0% to2%.. The increase in the effective tax rate prilpadlates to income tax credits recognized dufiscal
2015 that were lower than that recognized in fi@¥l4, as well as an increase in foreign tax ex@ens

Fiscal 2014 Compared to Fiscal 2013

Revenue

Revenue decreased to $5,478.7 million from $5,768llion , or a 4.9% decrease. The decrease wasapily driven by reductions in headcount due
to lower demand in an uncertain federal budgetrenment and a reduction in billable expenses. Revémfiscal 2014 was additionally impacted by the
October 2013 government shutdown and weather-tetadsures. While lower headcount led to feweiabiké hours in total, we experienced a slight
improvement in productivity of consulting staff astbe prior year, which helped reduce the impactumh reduced billable hours. The decrease in teven
was partially offset by an increase in inorganieeraue of $103.0 million from the Company's acgigeibf BES. Conversions to funded backlog during
fiscal 2014 totaled $5.3 billion in comparison f@4billion for the comparable period. The decraasevenue conversion was due to challenging and
uncertain market conditions which contributed tovaer conversion of unfunded backlog to funded bagkthe reduced award of new contracts and task
orders under which funding was appropriated, apdiicline in exercise and subsequent funding oégroptions.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue decreased to $2,716.1 million f#@871.2 million , or a 5.4% decrease. This deereass primarily due to a decrease in salaries anc
salaryrelated benefits of $97.3 million, a decrease ipleyer retirement plan contributions of $56.9 noiflj and a decrease in incentive compensation
of $4.9 million. The decrease was patrtially offisgincreases in other direct consulting staff egesrof $5.3 million. The decrease in salaries atahs
related benefits and incentive compensation wasagrily due to reduced headcount in senior dirensatiing staff. The decrease in employer retirement
plan contributions was due to a decrease in thepaogis expected discretionary employer contribuitmriiscal 2014 as well as the reduced headcount
noted above. Cost of revenue as a percentage erfiuewas 49.6% and 49.9% in fiscal 2014 and fia@4B , respectively.
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Billable Expenses

Billable expenses decreased to $1,487.1 milliomffi,532.6 million , or a 3.0% decrease. The oVderease was primarily due to decreases in
subcontractorelated expenses and other billable expenses 09 $5illion incurred to perform on contracts. Dirsabcontractor related expenses decre
due to lower demand in an uncertain federal budgeironment and a decline in contract related paseh for the government. Billable expenses as a
percentage of revenue was 27.1% and 26.6% in f&¥&4 and fiscal 2013, respectively.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses decreasedtSpmillion from $834.0 million , or a 11.0% dease. This decrease was due to decreases in
salaries and salary-related benefits of $45.4 onijla decrease of $16.5 million in employer reteatrplan contributions, and a decrease in incentive
compensation of $13.4 million. The decrease inreand salary-related expenses and incentive ensaion was primarily driven by the net reduction
our headcount. The decrease in employer retireplantcontributions was due to a decrease in thepaogis expected discretionary employer contribution
percentage for fiscal 2014 as well as the redueadl¢ount noted above. The remaining decrease vea® diecreases in stock based compensation of $3.4
million and decreases in business-related tramsaetipenses, such as expenses incurred in fist8l&ociated with the Company's July 2012 debt
recapitalization and acquisitions and decreaspsafessional fees and other expenses due to the&uyis continued focus on cost management. General
and administrative expenses as a percentage afueweere 13.6% and 14.5% for fiscal 2014 and fi2064B, respectively.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization decreased to $728®mirom $74.0 million , or a 2.3%ecrease due to a decrease in capital expenddurieg fisca
2014.

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased to $78.0 million fro®.$illion , or an 11.0% increase primarily duatfull year of interest expense on additional
principal incurred in connection with the Compardebt recapitalization consummated on July 31, 2012

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense decreased to $148.6 million $&49.3 million , or a 0.4% decrease primarily ttuan increase in pre-tax income more than
offset by a decrease in effective tax rate in fi@€d.4 from 40.5% to 39.0% . The decrease in tfect¥e tax rate primarily relates to federal atates
income tax credits recognized in fiscal 2014, whiethuced the effective tax rate by 1.5%.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have historically been able to generate sufftadash to fund our operations, debt paymentstalapipenditures, and discretionary funding needs.
We had $207.2 million and $260.0 million in caskl @ash equivalents as of March 31, 2015 and 20dgpgectively. However, due to fluctuations in cash
flows, including as a result of the trends and tyments described above under "—Factors and Tr&fidsting Our Results of Operations” relating to
U.S. government cost-cutting, reductions or delaytke U.S. government appropriations and spenglingess and other budgetary matters, it may be
necessary from time-to-time in the future to bortavder our senior secured loan facilities to meshaemands. See Note 10 to our consolidated fadanc
statements for additional information regardingrbaings under our revolving credit facility. We aipate that cash provided by operating activities,
existing cash and cash equivalents, and borrovapggity under our revolving credit facility will lsifficient to meet our anticipated cash requiretséor
the next twelve months, which primarily include:

. operating expenses, including salal
. working capital requirements to fund the growtloof busines
. capital expenditures which primarily relate e purchase of computers, business systems, figrind leasehold improvements to

support our operations;
. debt service requirements for borrowings undersamior secured loan facilities; ¢

. cash taxes to be ps
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From time to time we evaluate alternative usegkmess cash resources once our operating casiméletls and required debt amortization have been
met. Some of the possible uses of our remainingexcash at any point in time may include fundeguasitions, further investment in our business and
voluntary debt prepayments, as well as initiativésnded to return value to shareholders in thefof payment of recurring and special dividends simak¢
repurchases. The Company paid $1.46 in dividendshze to shareholders of record in fiscal 2015D@cember 12, 2011, the Board of Directors
authorized the repurchase of up to $30.0 millioowfshares. On January 27, 2015, the share regee@uthorization was increased to $180.0 million .
Following our repurchase of 1,000,000 shares of@lass A Common Stock on November 5, 2014 and ditiadial 1,000,000 shares of our Class A
Common Stock on February 2, 2015, the Company etlyrhas $126.5 million remaining under the repasghprogram. Any determination to pursue one
or more of the above alternative uses for excess isasubject to the discretion of our Board ofebiors, and will depend upon various factors, idicig
our results of operations, financial conditionpliijty requirements, restrictions that may be ingabby applicable law, our contracts, and our sesgourec
credit agreement, as amended, and other factorsederslevant by our Board of Directors.

Our debt totaled $1,626.3 million and $1,658.9ionllas of March 31, 2015 and 2014 , respectively. @bt bears interest at specified rates and is
held by a syndicate of lenders (see Note 10 irconsolidated financial statements).

Our senior secured loan facilities consist of aB®8 million Tranche A term facility, or Term Lo@g and an $841.2 million Tranche B term facility,
or Term Loan B. As of March 31, 2015 , we had $998illion and $841.2 million principal outstandingder the Term Loan A facility and Term Loan B
facility, respectively. As of March 31, 2014 , wach$661.6 million and $1,009.6 million principaltstanding under the Term Loan A facility and Term
Loan B facility, respectively, of our prior credécility.

On May 7, 2014, the Company entered into the Seéaonendment to the Credit Agreement, dated as of JL) 2012 (as previously amended by the
First Amendment to the Credit Agreement, datedf@sugust 16, 2013). Following the Second Amendmthd,interest rates for the Term Loan A facility
and Term Loan B facility remain unchanged. The 8dodmendment extended the maturity date of the Tlezam A and the revolving credit facility to
May 31, 2019. The maturity date for the Term Loafa@lity remained unchanged. The Company also @eeiits existing debt covenants to provide for
greater operational and financial flexibility. Seéndebtedness."

The following table summarizes the cash distrilngicecognized in the consolidated statement of fiasis:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013
Recurring dividends (1) $ 67,84t $ 57,06: $ 48,73¢
Special dividends (2) 147,24¢ 288,73 1,073,73:
Dividend equivalents (3) 47,11( 56,13¢ 59,47:
Total distributions $ 262,20¢ $ 401,94( $ 1,181,94

(1) Amounts represent recurring dividends that veerelared and paid for during each quarter of Fi26a5 , fiscal 2014 , and fiscal 2013 .

(2) Amounts represent aggregate special divideh84.00 per share ( $1.00 paid on August 29, 208210 per share ( $1.00 paid November 29, 2013 anc
$1.00 paid February 28, 2014) and $8.00 per shéite50 paid June 29, 2012 and $6.50 paid Augus2@®112) that were declared and paid for during fisca
2015, fiscal 2014 , and fiscal 2013, respectively

(3) Dividend equivalents are distributions madeption holders equal to the special dividends dediand paid.

On May 21, 2015, the Company announced a regukateyly cash dividend in the amount of $0.13 parshThe quarterly dividend is payable on
June 30, 2015 to stockholders of record on Jun2d1sb.

For each special dividend declared, the Board oédors, acting as the Administrator of the Off&¢dRollover Stock Plan and the Equity Incentive
Plan (EIP), as amended, is required to make ardetation under the respective plan's antidilutioovgsion to adjust the outstanding options. For&he0
special dividends authorized and declared Octo®e?@13, January 31, 2014, and July 30, 2014, olafethe Rollover Options received a cash payment
equal to the amount of the special dividend orettercise of the option during the options' manda¢xercise period. Holders of EIP options will rieeea
cash payment equal to the amount of the speciaetid on the date the dividend was paid or thengsif the EIP option, whichever is later. In theet
the Board of Directors elects to grant option haddecash payment equal to the amount of the dpieidend, the Company accrues a stock-based
compensation liability as the respective optiotdsls compensation expense is recorded in the séateof operations. This obligation will be setttadthe
options' mandatory exercise date for Rollover optiand on the later of the date the dividend id paivesting for the EIP options. As of

56




March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014 , the Compamgutatied a total recorded and unrecorded stock-bammgensation liability of $35.8 million and $73.1
million , respectively, related to the special demds paid in July and December 2009, June andsh@§12, November 2013, and February and August
2014.

The Company paid accrued interest on the DPO & @dlion during fiscal 2015 and 2014 , respectyvel

Cash Flows

Cash received from clients, either from the paynoéimivoices for work performed or for advancegktess of costs incurred, is our primary sourt
cash. We generally do not begin work on contraots funding is appropriated by the client. Billinignetables and payment terms on our contracts vary
based on a number of factors, including whethectmract type is cost-reimbursable, time-and-nitgror fixed-price. We generally bill and collezsh
more frequently under cost-reimbursable and tingaaterials contracts, as we are authorized tabithe costs are incurred or work is performed. In
contrast, we may be limited to bill certain fixedee contracts only when specified milestones uditlg deliveries, are achieved. In addition, a nendf
our contracts may provide for performance-basedngsys, which allow us to bill and collect cash ptimcompleting the work.

Accounts receivable is the principal componentwfworking capital and is generally driven by rewergrowth with other short-term fluctuations
related to the payment practices of our clients. &agounts receivable reflect amounts billed todients as of each balance sheet date. Our clients
generally pay our invoices within 30 days of theoice date. At any month-end, we also include itcobaats receivable the revenue that was recognized i
the preceding month, which is generally billed yarlthe following month. Finally, we include in@unts receivable amounts related to revenue at@nue
excess of amounts billed, primarily on our fixedeprand cost-reimbursable-plus-award-fee contrdtts.total amount of our accounts receivable cap va
significantly over time, but is generally sensitteerevenue levels. Total accounts receivablegditind unbilled combined, net of allowance for dub
accounts) days sales outstanding or DSO, whichaleellate by dividing total accounts receivable &yemue per day during the relevant fiscal quaves
59 and 60 as of March 31, 2015 and 2014 , respedgtiv

The table below sets forth our net cash flowslfierperiods presented:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013

(In thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 309,95¢ $ 332,71 % 464,65
Net cash used in investing activities (60,57%) (13,55¢) (190,45)
Net cash used in financing activities (302,16() (409,55)) (408,186
Total decrease in cash and cash equivalents $ (52,77 $ (90,390 $ (133,98

Net Cash from Operating Activities

Net cash from operations is primarily affected g tverall profitability of our contracts, our ayjlto invoice and collect from clients in a timely
manner, and our ability to manage our vendor paysné&tet cash provided by operations was $310.0amilh fiscal 2015 compared to $332.7 million in
the same prior year period, or a 6.8% decreased&@bease in net cash provided by operations vimmsply due to the following:

e Areduction in the volume of outstanding inv@de our customers as compared to the prior yetireaSompany continued to have strong
collections of billed accounts receivable.

e Areduction in outstanding payments to our vent

*  The payout of $27.5 million associated with the @amy's deferred compensation p

e An decrease in income taxes paid due to the tirofregstimated tax paymer

< Declines in compensation related liabilities priityarelated to changes in our expected discretipeanployer retirement contributiol

Net Cash from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $60.6iaonilin fiscal 2015 compared to $13.6 million iretkame prior year period, or a 346.9% increase.
The increase in net cash used in investing ad#vitias primarily due to cash paid for businessiaitiuns during fiscal 2015.
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Net Cash from Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities was $302 Baniin fiscal 2015 compared to $409.6 milliontlre same prior year period, or a 26.2% decrease.
The decrease in net cash used in financing aetbvitias primarily due to a decrease in special dzgiends paid in fiscal 2015 as compared to fig€Hl4,
as well as a decrease in debt principal paymerftsdal 2015 as compared to fiscal 2014, as ate$tihe Second Amendment to the Credit Agreement
consummated on May 7, 2014. These decreases widlpaffset by an increase in repurchases of wmm stock in fiscal 2015 as compared to fiscal :
mainly due to a repurchase of 2,000,000 sharear€tass A Common Stock from an affiliate of Thel@a Group in fiscal 2015.

Indebtedness

On May 7, 2014 the Company entered into the Seéanendment to the Credit Agreement, dated as of 32012 (as previously amended by the
First Amendment to the Credit Agreement, datedfa@sugust 16, 2013). Following the Second Amendmth#,rates for Term Loan A and Term Loan B
remain unchanged. The Second Amendment extendeuahgity date of Term Loan A and the revolvingditéacility to May 31, 2019. The maturity date
for Term Loan B remained unchanged at July 31, 20h® Company also amended its existing debt cowerta provide for greater operational and
financial flexibility. As of March 31, 2015 , ther€lit Agreement, as amended, provided the Compatiiyan$830.0 million Term Loan A facility and a
$841.2 million Term Loan B facility, and a $500.@lman revolving credit facility with a $100.0 mithn sublimit for letters of credit.

We occasionally borrow under our revolving creditifity in anticipation of cash demands. On Septen#, 2014, the Company's wholly-owned
subsidiary Booz Allen Hamilton Inc. accessed $30illion of its $500.0 million revolving credit fdiy to support month-end transactions. The Company
repaid the $30.0 million borrowed from the revolyicredit facility on September 30, 2014. On Fehyd, 2015, the Company's wholly-owned subsidiary
Booz Allen Hamilton Inc. accessed $50.0 milliontsf$500.0 million revolving credit facility to spprt month-end transactions. The Company repaid the
$50.0 million borrowed from the revolving creditfiity on March 6, 2015.

The Credit Agreement, as amended, requires quapsarcipal payments of 1.25% of the stated printgmount of Term Loan A, with annual
incremental increases to 1.875% , 2.50% , 3.12&A61,13.0% , prior to Term Loan A's maturity datéafy 31, 2019. As a result of paying approximately
$168.4 million of Term Loan B principal in connewtiwith the Second Amendment, no additional priacfayments are required until the remaining
balance is due on Term Loan B's maturity date yf 31, 2019. The revolving credit facility matures May 31, 2019, at which time any outstanding
principal balance is due in full.

The interest rate on borrowings under Term Loas BIBOR plus 2.50% spread. The spread ranges fro0@P2to 2.75% based on the Company's
total leverage ratio. The interest rate on borrgwinnder Term Loan B is LIBOR plus 3.0% spread with75% floor. The spread ranges from 2.00% to
3.00% based upon either an ABR or LIBOR borrowiRige revolving credit facility margin and commitmdeé are subject to the leveraged based pricing
grid, as set forth in the Credit Agreement, as atednAs of March 31, 2015 and 2014 , we were cgetitly liable under open standby letters of cradd
bank guarantees issued by our banks in favor af fharties that totaled $5.3 million and $2.4 roilli, respectively. These letters of credit and bank
guarantees primarily support insurance and bidpgmfbrmance obligations. At March 31, 2015 and 20ddproximately $5.2 million and $2.4 million of
these instruments reduce our available borrowimgieuthe revolving credit facility. The remaindee guaranteed under a separate $5.0 million facilit
established in fiscal 2015, $4.9 million of whichsvavailable to us at March 31, 2015 . As of M&th2015 , we had $494.8 million of capacity aJada
for additional borrowings under the revolving ctddcility.

The loans under the Credit Agreement, as amendedgeaured by substantially all of our assets ame rof such assets will be available to satisfy the
claims of our general creditors. The Credit Agrestnas amended, contains customary representai@hwarranties and customary affirmative and
negative covenants. The negative covenants aretino the following, in each case subject to deaceptions: a maximum net total leverage ratio;
minimum net interest coverage ratio; limitationsimtlebtedness and liens; mergers, consolidatioasnalgamations, or liquidations, wind-ups or
dissolutions; dispositions of property; restricgyments; investments; transactions with affiliasede and lease back transactions; change in fiscads;
negative pledges; restrictive agreements; limitegion line of business; limitations on speculatiedging and limitations on changes of names and
jurisdictions. In addition, we are required to meettain financial covenants at each quarter eachety Consolidated Net Total Leverage and Consalit
Net Interest Coverage Ratios. AsMarch 31, 2015 , we were compliant with these canésn

During fiscal 2015 , interest payments of $21.0ioriland $29.0 million were made for the Term Lédaand Term Loan B facilities, respectively.
During fiscal 2014 , interest payments of $19.0ioriland $41.9 million were made for the Term L@aand Term Loan B facilities, respectively. As of
March 31, 2015 , no amounts were drawn on the vewplredit facility.

The total outstanding debt balance is recordetdéraccompanying consolidated balance sheets meaofiortized discount of $13.7 million and $12.3
million as of March 31, 2015 and 2014 , respecyivel
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Capital Structure and Resources

Our stockholders’ equity amounted to $186.5 millamnof March 31, 2015, an increase of $ 14.9 oniliompared to stockholders’ equity of $171.6
million as of March 31, 2014 . The increase wamarily due tonet income of $232.6 million in fiscal 2015 , $5@8lion in excess tax benefits for the
exercise of stock options, and stock-based compiensaxpense of $26.2 million , partially offset $215.1 million in recurring and special dividend
payments and a $62.1 million increase in treastargks

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of March 31, 2015 , we did not have any off-baksheet arrangements.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual gdtions that require us to make future cash paysranof March 31, 2015 . For contractual
obligations, we included payments that we haveraouditional obligation to make.

Payments Due by Period

Less Than 1to3 3to5 More Than
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 years
(In thousands)
Long-term debt (a) $ 1,640,06 $ 57,06 $ 176,37 $ 1,406,621 $ —
Operating lease obligations 241,72: 70,15¢ 74,62: 48,477 48,46¢
Interest on indebtedness 210,03: 53,29( 100,45( 56,29: —
Deferred payment obligation (b) 76,65¢ — 76,65¢ — —
Liability to option holders (c) 35,85¢ 31,73 3,63t 487 —
Tax liabilities for uncertain tax positions (d) 58,44 57,91t 323 20¢€ —
Total contractual obligations $ 2,262,760 $ 270,15¢ $ 432,06( $ 1,512,08 $ 48,46¢

(a) See Note 10 to our consolidated financial statesfemtadditional information regarding debt anchtetl matter

(b) Includes $59.4 million deferred payment obligati@iance, plus current and future interest acci

(c) Reflects liabilities to holders of stock opt®issued under our OfficeiRollover Stock Plan and the Equity Incentive PEsyamended, related to
reduction in the exercise price of such optiona essult of special dividends paid in July and Detser 2009, June and August 2012, November
2013, and February and August 2014.

(d) Includes $20.6 millioof tax liabilities offset by amounts owed under tiegerred payment obligation. The remainder isteel&o other tax liabilitie:
which may not result in a cash outlay within thatngear.

In the normal course of business, we enter inteegents with subcontractors and vendors to prqwidéucts and services that we consume in our
operations or that are delivered to our clientesehproducts and services are not considered uitiooiad obligations until the products and serviees
actually delivered, at which time we record a lig@pfor our obligation.

Capital Expenditures

Since we do not own any of our facilities, our ¢talpéxpenditure requirements primarily relate t® plurchase of computers, business systems,
furniture, and leasehold improvements to supparioperations. Direct facility and equipment costied to clients are not treated as capital expsnQar
capital expenditures for fiscal 2015 and 2014 v§3®.0 million and $20.9 million , respectively, ahé majority of such capital expenditures related
facilities infrastructure, equipment, and inforneatitechnology. Expenditures for facilities infrastiure and equipment are generally incurred to aupp
new and existing programs across our business.|8@#arecur capital expenditures for information teclogy to support programs and general enterprise
information technology infrastructure.

Commitments and Contingencies

We are subject to a number of reviews, investigaticlaims, lawsuits, and other uncertainties edlé our business. For a discussion of these jtems
refer to Note 20 to our consolidated financialestagnts.
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Item 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MakRisk

Our exposure to market risk for changes in intenegsts relates primarily to our outstanding delot eesh equivalents, which consist primarily of fs
invested in U.S. government insured money-markebaats and prime money-market funds. As of March2®15 and 2014 , we had $207.2 million and
$260.0 million , respectively, in cash and cashalants. The interest expense associated withevar loans and any loans under our revolving credit
facility will vary with market rates.

Our exposure to market risk for changes in inten&sts related to our outstanding debt will impagt senior secured loan facilities. A hypothetical
1% increase in interest rates would have increagerkest expense related to the term facilitiesenmair senior secured loan facilities by approxetya$8.7
million in fiscal 2015 and $8.1 million in fiscaD24 , and likewise decreased our income and casls flA hypothetical increase of LIBOR to 4%, the
average historical three-month LIBOR, would havad@ased interest expense related to all termtiasilunder our senior secured loan facilities by
approximately $57.9 million in fiscal 2015 and $5&illion in fiscal 2014 , and likewise decreased mcome and cash flows. The year over year deerea
in interest expense is primarily due to the Secdmé&ndment to the Credit Agreement consummated in B0d.4. The Company increased its borrowing
under Term Loan A, the proceeds of which were tisgray outstanding principal on the Term Loan Bithesinterest rates for Term Loan A are lower than
those for Term Loan B, total interest expense dewe@ for fiscal 2015 as compared to fiscal 2014.

The return on our cash and cash equivalents ba@moéMarch 31, 2015 and 2014 was less than 1%refdre, although investment interest rates
may continue to decrease in the future, the coomdipg impact to our interest income, and likewiseur income and cash flow, would not be material.

We do not use derivative financial instrumentsun iovestment portfolio and have not entered imp laedging transactions.
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Item 8.

Financial Statements and Supplementary Dz

INDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent RegistePeittlic Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 20d26h4

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Fiéears Ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive IncomihéoFiscal Years Ended March 31, 2015, 2014 ad@& 20
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Fidears Ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' EquityHerFiscal Years Ended March 31, 2015, 2014 ad@ 20

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Report of Ernst & Young LLP,
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporatas of March 31, 2015 and 2014, and the re
consolidated statements of operations, compreheirstome, stockholders’ equity and cash flows fmteof the three years in the period ended Marc¢h 31
2015. These financial statements are the respditsitfithe Company’s management. Our responsjbiditto express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstials of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBgUnited States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonatdeirance about whether the financial statemeatses of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportingh@unts and disclosures in the financial statesnéut audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made ayagement, as well as evaluating the overall fishstatement presentation. We believe that ouitewud
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referedlove present fairly, in all material respedts,¢onsolidated financial position of Booz Allenrkiion
Holding Corporation at March 31, 2015 and 2014, thedconsolidated results of its operations andash flows for each of the three years in theogeri
ended March 31, 2015, in conformity with U.S. gasfigraccepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blogunited States), Booz Allen Hamilton Holding
Corporation’s internal control over financial repog as of March 31, 2015, based on criteria esiadd in Internal Contrdirtegrated Framework issued
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of thea@ivay Commission (2013 framework) and our repatedMay 21, 2015 expressed an unqualified
opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

McLean, Virginia
May 21, 2015
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Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

Accounts receivable, net of allowance

Deferred income taxes

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depiecia

Deferred income taxes

Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization

Goodwill
Other long-term assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses
Accrued compensation and benefits

Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current portion

Income tax reserve

Deferred income taxes

Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 20)

Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock, Class A — $0.01 par value — authdri€0,000,000 shares; issued, 150,237,675 shiare
March 31, 2015 and 143,962,073 shares at MarcB®Y; outstanding, 147,238,282 shares at March &

2015 and 143,352,448 shares at March 31, 2014

Non-voting common stock, Class B — $0.01 par valuauthorized, 16,000,000 shares; issued and

outstanding, 0 shares at March 31, 2015 and 58308&s at March 31, 2014

Restricted common stock, Class C — $0.01 par vahsuthorized, 5,000,000 shares; issued and outstar

0 shares at March 31, 2015 and 935,871 sharesrahN34a, 2014

Special voting common stock, Class E — $0.003 parev— authorized, 25,000,000 shares; issued and

outstanding, 1,851,589 shares at March 31, 2015l##4#,814 shares at March 31, 2014

Treasury stock, at cost — 2,999,393 shares at M2t¢cR015 and 609,625 shares at March 31, 2014

Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
The accompanying notes are an integral part obtlEssolidated Financial Statements.
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March 31,
2015

March 31,
2014

(Amounts in thousands, except
share and per share data)

$ 207,21 $ 259,99
857,31( 916,73

14,53 29,68

84,14 49,55¢

1,163,20: 1,255,97
111,36 129,42

14,75¢ —

219,38 220,88

1,304,23 1,273,78:

64,54° 60,73

$ 2,877,49. $ 2,940,81:
$ 57,060 $ 73,68t
481,81! 488,80°

279,23 331,44(

30,87 23,16¢

848,99 917,10
1,569,27; 1,585,23

58,44« 57,40

— 8,231

214,28! 201,21(
2,690,99! 2,769,18

1,50z 1,44

— 6

— 9

6 13

(72,29) (10,159

174,98t 144,26

104,45 42,68¢

(22,159 (6,630)

186,49t 171,63

$ 2,877,49. $ 2,940,81




BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
Revenue $ 527477 $ 5,478,69. $ 5,758,05!
Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of revenue 2,593,84! 2,716,11. 2,871,241
Billable expenses 1,406,52' 1,487,11! 1,532,59i
General and administrative expenses 752,91 742,52° 833,98t
Depreciation and amortization 62,66( 72,320 74,00¢
Total operating costs and expenses 4,815,941 5,018,08; 5,311,82!
Operating income 458,82 460,61 446,23
Interest expense (71,837 (78,030 (70,28¢)
Other, net (2,072 (1,799 (7,639
Income before income taxes 385,91¢ 380,78 368,31:
Income tax expense 153,34¢ 148,59¢ 149,25:
Net income $ 232,56¢ $ 232,18¢ $ 219,05¢
Earnings per common share (Note 3):
Basic $ 15¢ $ 16z $ 1.5¢
Diluted $ 152 $ 15¢ $ 1.4¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part obtlEssolidated Financial Statements.
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BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013
(Amounts in thousands)

Net income $ 232,56¢ $ 232,18¢ $ 219,05!

Change in postretirement plan costs, net of tax (15,529 7,151 (5,072

Comprehensive income $ 217,04t $ 239,33¢ $ 213,98!

The accompanying notes are an integral part obtlEssolidated Financial Statements.
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BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013

(Amounts in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities

Net income $ 232,56¢  $ 232,18t $ 219,05¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal/by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 62,66( 72,327 74,00¢
Stock-based compensation expense 26,16 20,06¢ 24,84
Deferred income taxes (2,549 (26,37) (48,08¢)
Excess tax benefits from the exercise of stockoojti (50,800 (38,185 (26,86()
Amortization of debt issuance costs and loss omguishment 11,58: 11,68: 17,22«
Losses on dispositions and impairments 1,541 1,02 1,10¢
Gain on sales of businesses — — (259)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 60,53 110,30t 125,12!
Income taxes receivable / payable 36,45¢ (1,909 104,87
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (1,599 (5,929 10,00¢
Other long-term assets (8,240 (4,779 2,72¢
Accrued compensation and benefits (44,329 (72,88) (26,837
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses (35,449 39,17¢ (23,760
Accrued interest 5,262 — (3,569
Income tax reserves 1,03¢ 38¢ 1,73¢€
Other current liabilities 5,127 (1,090 11,36
Other long-term liabilities 9,97t (3,31¢) 1,93¢
Net cash provided by operating activities 309,95¢ 332,71t 464,65:
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment (36,04) (20,905 (33,119
Cash paid for business acquisitions, net of caghiesd (24,539 3,56° (157,96
Proceeds from sales of businesses — — 62E
Escrow receipts — 3,78¢ —
Net cash used in investing activities (60,57%) (13,55¢) (190,45)
Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock 5,02( 5,07¢ 6,37:
Stock option exercises 6,09¢ 14,62( 14,97
Excess tax benefits from the exercise of stockoogti 50,80( 38,18¢ 26,86(
Repurchases of common stock (62,140 (3,709 (1,067%)
Cash dividends paid (215,09 (345,807) (1,122,45)
Dividend equivalents paid to option holders (47,110 (56,139 (49,765
Debt issuance costs (8,610 (6,223) (29,607
Repayment of debt (279,562 (355,562 (993,25()
Proceeds from debt issuance 248,43t 300,00( 1,739,75!
Net cash used in financing activities (302,160) (409,55)) (408,189)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (52,77) (90,390 (133,989
Cash and cash equivalents—beginning of year 259,99: 350,38: 484,36¢
Cash and cash equivalents—end of year $ 207,217 % 259,99: $ 350,38«

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest $ 50,07 $ 61,05( $ 58,84

Income taxes $ 12291 $ 178,41. $ 90,14¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part obtlEssolidated Financial Statements.
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(Amounts in thousands, except
share data)

Balance at March 31, 2012
Issuance of common stock
Stock options exercised
Excess tax benefits from the

exercise of stock options
Share exchange

Repurchase of common stock

Recognition of liability relatec
to future stock option
exercises (Note 17)

Net income

Change in postretirement ple
costs, net of tax
Comprehensive income

Dividends paid (Note 16)
Stock-based compensation

expense
Balance at March 31, 2013

Issuance of common stock
Stock options exercised
Excess tax benefits from the

exercise of stock options
Share exchange

Repurchase of common stock

Recognition of liability relatec
to future stock option
exercises (Note 17)

Net income

Change in postretirement ple
costs, net of tax
Comprehensive income

Dividends paid (Note 16)

Stock-based compensation
expense

Balance at March 31, 2014
Issuance of common stock
Stock options exercised

Excess tax benefits from the
exercise of stock options

Share exchange
Repurchase of common stock

Recognition of liability relatec
to future stock option
exercises (Note 17)

Net income

Change in postretirement ple
costs, net of tax

Comprehensive income
Dividends paid (Note 16)

Stock-based compensation
expense

Balance at March 31, 2015

BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY

Class B Class C Class E
Class A Non-Voting Restricted Special Voting Treasury Accumulated
Common Stock Common Stock Common Stock Common Stock Stock Additional Other Total
Paid-In Retained Comprehensive  Stockholders’

Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Equity
128,726,32¢ $1,287 2,487,125 $ 2t 1,533,02C $ 15 10,140,061 $ 3C (333,775) $ (5,379) $ 898,54 $ 299,37¢ $ (8,719 $ 1,185,18!
1,182,004 12 0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — 6,361 — — 6,37¢
5,204,89( 52 0 — 0 — (2,661,545, 8) 0 — 14,93! — — 14,977
0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — 26,86( — — 26,86(
1,344,22€ 12 (1,035,525 (10) (308,701, 3) 0 = 0 = = = = =
0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — (72,068)  (1,067) — — — (1,067)
0 = 0 — 0 — 0 = 0 = (121,90%) = = (121,908
0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — — 219,05¢ — 219,05¢
0 = 0 = 0 — 0 — 0 — — — (5,079) (5,072)
213,98t
0 = 0 = 0 = 0 = 0 = (728,795 (393,66:) = (1,122,45)
0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — 24,84: — — 24,84:
136,457,44. $1,36¢ 1,451,60C $ 1t 1,224,31¢ $ 12 7,47852: $ 22 (405,843) $ (6,449 $ 120,83t $ 124,77 $ (13,78)) $ 226,79
1,047,160 1c 0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — 5,06¢ — — 5,07¢
5,299,501 54 0 — 0 — (3,053,708 9) 0 — 14,57t — — 14,62(
0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — 38,18t — — 38,18t
1,157,96¢ 12 (869,520) ) (288,448, 3 0 — 0 — — — — —
0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — (203,782) (3,709 — — — (3,709
0 = 0 = 0 = 0 = 0 = (22,939 = = (22,93Y)
0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — — 232,18¢ — 232,18¢
0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — — — 7,151 7,151
239,33¢
0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — (31,52) (314,27} — (345,80
0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — 20,06t — — 20,06t
143,962,07:  $1,44( 582,080 $ 6 935871 $ 9 4,424,814 $ 13 (609,625) $(10,15%) $ 144,26¢ $ 42,68t $ (6,636 $ 171,63¢
1,365,008 14 0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — 5,00€ — — 5,02
3,392,641 38 0 — 0 — (2,573,225, ) 0 — 6,078 — — 6,09¢
0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — 50,80( — — 50,80(
1,517,951 18 (582,080) (6) (935,871, ) 0 — 0 — — — — —
0 — 0 — 0 — 0 —  (2,389,768) (62,140 — — — (62,140
0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — (13,03 — — (13,037
0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — — 232,56¢ — 232,56¢
0 = 0 = 0 = 0 = 0 = — — (15,529 (15,529
217,04t
0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — (44,299 (170,801 — (215,09
0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — 0 — 26,16! — — 26,16!
150,237,67¢ $1,50: 0 $ — 0 $ — 185158¢ $ 6 (2,999,393 $(72,299) $ 174,98! $ 104,45 $ (22,159 $ 186,49t

The accompanying notes are an integral part obtlEmsolidated Financial Statements.
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BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in tables in thousands, except share andepshare data or unless otherwise noted)
March 31, 2015

1. BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Our Business

Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation, includirig wholly owned subsidiaries, or Holding or thenGaany, is an affiliate of The Carlyle Group,
or Carlyle, and was incorporated in Delaware in 898. The Company provides management consutBegnology, and engineering services to the
government in the defense, intelligence, and ondlkets. Additionally, the Company provides its mg@ment and technology consulting services to major
corporations, institutions, not-for-profit organtivms, and international clients. The Company repoperating results and financial data in one ajpeg
segment. The Company is headquartered in McLeagirN&, with approximately 22,500 employees as af¢h 31, 2015 .

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemieotade the accounts of the Company and its wholiyied subsidiaries, and have been prepared
in accordance with accounting principles generatlgepted in the United States, or U.S. GAAP. Alicompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

The Company'’s fiscal year ends on March 31 andsgrb¢herwise noted, references to fiscal yearsogfiare for fiscal years ended March 31. The
accompanying consolidated financial statementseptabe financial position of the Company as of 8faB1, 2015 and 2014 and the Company'’s results of
operations for fiscal 2015 , fiscal 2014 , anddls2013 .

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith U.S. GAAP requires management to make egtisiand assumptions that affect the reps
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosui@afingent assets and liabilities at the datdefinancial statements, and the reported amodmes/enue
and expenses during the reporting periods. Areéisedfinancial statements where estimates may thevmost significant effect include contractual and
regulatory reserves, valuation and lives of targgéid intangible assets, contingent consideragitated to business acquisitions, impairment of {twep
assets, accrued liabilities, revenue recognitionuls and other incentive compensation, stock-besegbensation, realization of deferred tax assets,
provisions for income taxes, and postretiremenigakibns. Actual results experienced by the Compaay differ materially from management's estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Substantially all of the Company’s revenue is degliffom services and solutions provided to the gdsernment and its agencies, primarily by the
Company’s consulting staff and, to a lesser extiicontractors. The Company generates its revieomethe following types of contractual arrangensent
cost-reimbursable-plus-fee contracts, time-and-ried$econtracts, and fixed-price contracts.

Revenue on cost-reimbursable-plus-fee contracexizgnized as services are performed, generalgdbas the allowable costs incurred during the
period plus any recognizable earned fee. The Coynpamsiders fixed fees under cost-reimbursable-fédascontracts to be earned in proportion to the
allowable costs incurred in performance of the i@moit For cost-reimbursable-plus-fee contractsiti@tide performance-based fee incentives, whieh ar
principally award fee arrangements, the Companggmeizes income when such fees are probable andadsé. Estimates of the total fee to be earned are
made based on contract provisions, prior experigrttesimilar contracts or clients, and managenseataluation of the performance on such contracts.
Contract costs, including indirect expenses, abgestito audit by the Defense Contract Audit AgermmyDCAA, and, accordingly, are subject to possibl
cost disallowances. Executive compensation thadetermine to be allowable for cost reimbursemesefian management's estimates is recognized as
revenue, net of reserves. Management's estimatbsiregard are based on a number of factorshgtchange over time, including executive
compensation survey data, our and other governotgnitactors' experiences with the DCAA audit pi@giin our industry, and relevant decisions of tour
and boards of contract appeals.

Revenue earned under time-and-materials contrmcézognized as hours are worked based on cordtigdbillable rates to the client. Costs on time-
and-materials contracts are expensed as incurred.
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Revenue on fixed-price contracts is primarily ratiegd using the percentage of completion methoddas actual costs incurred relative to total
estimated costs for the contract. On some fixedeprontracts the Company may use an alternativé mpthod to calculate the percent complete, sach a
labor hours or labor dollars. This method is uséémva contract contains significant, up-front matgrurchases resulting in costs incurred thanate
representative of the actual progress on the ctntraeither method, these estimated costs aratagdiuring the term of the contract, and may tesul
revision by the Company of recognized revenue atichated costs in the period in which the changesstimated costs are identified. Profits on fixeite
contracts result from the difference between iredigosts used to calculate the percentage of ctionpknd revenue earned.

Contract accounting requires significant judgmeidtive to assessing risks, estimating contra@meg and costs, and making assumptions for
schedule and technical issues. Due to the sizeatute of many of the Company’s contracts, devappotal revenue and cost at completion estimates
requires the use of significant judgment. Contecasts include direct labor and billable expenseslcation of allowable indirect costs, and watya
obligations. Billable expenses is comprised of suli@cting costs and other “out of pocket” cost tiften include, but are not limited to, travdated
costs and telecommunications charges. The Comgaognizes revenue and billable expenses from thaxssactions on a gross basis because it is the
primary obligor on our contracts with customersséyaptions regarding the length of time to complileéecontract also include expected increases irewag
and prices for materials. Estimates of total canitravenue and costs are monitored during the ¢drtime contract and are subject to revision astimract
progresses. Anticipated losses on contracts aoginézed in the period they are deemed probableande reasonably estimated.

The Company’s contracts may include the delivergt obmbination of one or more of the Company’siseruefferings. In these situations, the
Company determines whether such arrangements wilfipte service offerings should be treated as spainits of accounting based on how the elements
are bid or negotiated, whether the customer caepdceparate elements of the arrangement, anéldtenship between the pricing on the elements
individually and combined.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hantighig liquid investments having an original matyiof three months or less. The Compangast
equivalents consist primarily of institutional mgmaarket funds. The Company maintains its cashcastl equivalents in bank accounts that, at times,
exceed the federally insured limits. The Compars/riat experienced any losses in such accounts.

Valuation of Accounts Receivable

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful ant®against certain billed receivables based upeteatest information regarding whether
invoices are ultimately collectible. Assessing ¢o#ectability of customer receivables requires agement judgment. The Company determines its
allowance for doubtful accounts by specifically lgaing individual accounts receivable, historicabbdebts, customer credit-worthiness, current enéno
conditions, and accounts receivable aging trendtuation reserves are periodically re-evaluatedaatjdsted as more information about the ultimate
collectability of accounts receivable becomes atdd. Upon determination that a receivable is uactible, the receivable balance and any associated
reserve are written off.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject@wmpany to concentrations of credit risk consisnprily of cash equivalents and accounts
receivable. The Company’s cash equivalents arergiynevested in Prime or U.S. government moneykegfunds, which minimizes the credit risk. The
Company believes that credit risk, for accountgirable is limited as the receivables are primaniith the U.S. government.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, anldalances are presented net of accumulated dafiweciThe cost of software purchased or
internally developed is capitalized, as appropriBepreciation is calculated using the straight-limethod over the estimated useful lives of thetass
Furniture and equipment is depreciated over fivietoyears, computer equipment is depreciatedfoueryears, and software purchased or developed for
internal use is depreciated over three to five ydagasehold improvements are amortized over theestof the useful life of the asset or the le@sm.
Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense@sead.

Rent expense is recorded on a straight-line basistbe life of the respective lease. The diffeechetween the cash payment and rent expense is
recorded as deferred rent in either accounts payatid other accrued expenses or other teng-liabilities in the consolidated balance sheg¢pending o
when the amounts will be recognized. The Compaogives incentives for tenant improvements on aexéits leases. The cash expended on such
improvements is recorded as property and equiparahamortized over the life of the associated aesdétase term, whichever is shorter. Incentiwes f
tenant improvements are recorded as deferrednaithier accounts payable and other accrued expenseher long-term liabilities
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in the consolidated balance sheets depending on thleeamounts will be recognized. Then they arertired on a straight line basis over the lease .term
Business Combinations

The accounting for the Company’s business comlmnatconsists of allocating the purchase pricengibde and intangible assets acquired and
liabilities assumed based on their fair valueshilie excess recorded as goodwill. The Compangh@gear from the acquisition date to use additiona
information obtained to adjust the fair value of ticquired assets and liabilities which may reéauthanges to their recorded values with an offsgtt
adjustment to goodwill.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, them@any entered into a contingent consideration gaarent in connection with a business
acquisition which required a fair value measurenusimig inputs such as projected cash flows andilitlaSee Note 18 to our consolidated financial
statements for further information about the vatrabf the contingent consideration liability ame inputs used in the fair value measurement.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets primarily consist of the Compaingde name, customer relationships, and otherteaige intangible assets. Customer relations
are amortized on an accelerated basis over thegxpkife based on projected future cash flowsppfraximately seven to nine years. The Companyetra
name is not amortized, but is tested on at leashanal basis as of January 1 and more frequdrtiterim indicators of impairment exist. The traggme
is considered to be impaired if the carrying vadieeeds its estimated fair value. The Company tieecelief from royalty method to estimate the fair
value. The fair value of the asset is the presalutevof the license fees avoided by owning thetassé¢he royalty savings. During the fiscal yeansied
March 31, 2015, 2014 , and 2013 the Company didetmrd any impairment of intangible assets.

Goodwill

The Company assesses goodwill for impairment desst an annual basis on January 1 unless intadioators of impairment exist. Goodwill is
considered to be impaired when the net book val@ereporting unit exceeds its estimated fair valilee Company operates as a single operating ségmen
and as a single reporting unit for the purposevafiating goodwill. As of January 1, 2015, the Camyp performed its annual impairment test of gooldwil
by comparing the fair value of the Company (pritiyasaised on market capitalization) to the carryiafpe of equity, and concluded that the fair vadtithe
reporting unit was greater than the carrying amadbating the fiscal years ended March 31, 20151420and 2013 the Company did not record any
impairment of goodwill.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews its long-lived assets, inclggiroperty and equipment and intangible assetsirfpairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounth@fssets may not be fully recoverable. If thal wf the expected undiscounted future net cashlis
less than the carrying amount of the asset, adagsognized for any excess of the carrying amouat the fair value of the asset. During the figears
ended March 31, 2015, 2014 , and 2013 the Comgaiyot record any impairment charges.

Income Taxes

The Company provides for income taxes as a “C” @@ton on income earned from operations. The Commsubject to federal, state, and foreign
taxation in various jurisdictions.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recordeddognize the expected future tax benefits orscofsévents that have been, or will be, reported in
different years for financial statement purposes tfor tax purposes. Deferred tax assets anditiabibre computed based on the difference bettreen
financial statement carrying amount and tax balsassets and liabilities using enacted tax ratedans for the years in which these items are ebgokio
reverse. If management determines that some pastiati of a deferred tax asset is not “more likigflgn not” to be realized, a valuation allowance is
recorded as a component of the income tax provisisaduce the deferred tax asset to an appropeiatein that period. In determining the needdor
valuation allowance, management considers allipesiind negative evidence, including historicah@ags, projected future taxable income, future reak
of existing taxable temporary differences, taxabd®me in prior carryback periods, and prudentsifda tax-planning strategies.

The Company periodically assesses its tax posifamnall periods open to examination by tax autfesibased on the latest available information.
Where it is not more likely that not that the Commga tax position will be sustained, the Comparmyores its best estimate of the resulting tax lighil
penalties, and interest in the consolidated firgratatements. These uncertain tax positions amrded as a component of income tax expense. As
uncertain tax positions in periods open to exarionadre closed out, or as new information becormadable, the resulting change is reflected in the
recorded liability and income tax expense. Persmdiied interest recognized related to the reseoragstertain tax positions are recorded as a copmaf
income tax expense.
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Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is the change in equity afsiniess enterprise during a period from transast@om other events and circumstances from
nonowner sources, and is presented in the consatidéatements of comprehensive income. Accumutztezt comprehensive income (loss) as of
March 31, 2015 and 2014 consisted of net unrealzesks on the Company’s defined and postretiretmamefit plans.

Share-Based Payments

Share-based payments to employees are recognitieel dtonsolidated statements of operations baségeimgrant date fair values with the expense
recognized on an accelerated basis over the vgstinigd. The Company uses the Black-Scholes ogtiaring model to determine the fair value of its
awards at the time of the grant.

Defined Benefit Plan and Other Postretirement Beiisf

The Company recognizes the underfunded statusfioledebenefit plans on the consolidated balancetsh&ains and losses and prior service costs
and credits that have not yet been recognized gfroet periodic benefit cost are recognized in amdated other comprehensive income (loss), nebof t
effects, and will be amortized as a component bpreodic cost in future periods. The measurerdatg, the date at which the benefit obligations are
measured, is the Company’s fiscal year end.

Self-Funded Medical Plans

The Company maintains self-funded medical insuraBe#-funded plans include a health maintenangarazation, high-deductible, and traditional
choice. Further, self-funded plans also includegniption drug and dental benefits. The Compangndscan incurred but unreported claim liabilitytte
accrued compensation and benefits line of the dimleded balance sheets for self-funded plans baseth actuarial valuation. Data that drives thisrexte
are primarily based on claims and enrollment dataiged by a third party valuation firm for medi@aid pharmacy related costs.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company accounts for its deferred compensatamin accordance with the terms of the underlyilagn agreement. To the extent the terms of
the contract attribute all or a portion of the extpe future benefit to an individual year of thepboyee’s service, the cost of the benefits is raca in
that year. Therefore, the Company estimates theofdsture benefits that are expected to be palexpenses the present value of those costs iretirea
services are provided. As of March 31, 2015, tlier® liability associated with the Company's defdrcompensation plan.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be receivedeiban asset or paid to transfer a liability inaderly transaction between market participantbet
measurement date. In determining fair value, wesictem the principal or most advantageous markethiich the asset or liability would transact, and if
necessary, consider assumptions that market geantits would use when pricing the asset or liability

The accounting guidance for fair value measuremestblishes a three level fair value hierarchy phiaritizes the inputs used in measuring fair
value as follows: observable inputs such as quotiegs in active markets (Level 1); inputs othertlguoted prices in active markets that are obb&va
either directly or indirectly (Level 2); and unobs&ble inputs in which there is little or no markietta, which requires the Company to develop its ow
assumptions (Level 3). Assets and liabilities dassified in their entirety within the fair valugeharchy based on the lowest level input thatgsificant to
the fair value measurement. See Note 18 for additimformation on the Company’s fair value meaments.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting StandardsrBd&ASB) issued a new standard that will repladstimg revenue recognition standards and
significantly expand the disclosure requirementsévenue arrangements. In April 2015, the FASBpsed a one-year delay in the effective date of the
standard to January 1, 2018, with an option thatldvpermit companies to adopt the standard as aartiie original effective date. Early adoptioropto
the effective date is not permitted. A final demisbn the effective date is expected in 2015. Téwe standard will be effective for the Company begig
on April 1, 2017 (i.e., beginning with the firstayter fiscal 2018 interim financial statementsPeril 1, 2018 if the one-year delay is enacted. Tbw
standard may be adopted retrospectively for albpsrpresented, or adopted using a modified reéi8pe approach. Under the retrospective apprdaeh,
fiscal 2017 and 2016 financial statements woulddjasted to reflect the effects of adopting the stamdard in those periods. Under the modified
retrospective approach, the new standard would lealgdopted for the period beginning April 1, 28d hew contracts and those contracts that areetot y
complete at April 1,
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2017, with a cumulative catalp adjustment recorded to beginning retained egsrfior existing contracts that still require pemi@nce. Management is s
in the process of determining which transition roeitto utilize in order to adopt the new standard still assessing what effect the adoption of stsdarc
may have on the timing of our revenue recognitiot aur financial statements.

Other recent accounting pronouncements issuedeF AISB during fiscal 2015 and through the filingeddid not and are not believed by
management to have a material impact on the Congprgsent or historical consolidated financialesteents.

3. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Company computes basic and diluted earningsh@@e amounts based on net income for the pepiedented. The Company uses the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding dtivingeriod to calculate basic earnings per shafeP&. Diluted EPS adjusts the weighted average
number of shares outstanding to include the didugiffect of outstanding common stock options ahérmstock-based awards.

The Company currently has outstanding shares afsGlaCommon Stock and Class E Special Voting Com8tonk. During fiscal 2015, the
Company converted all issued and outstanding sledi@kass B Non-Voting Common Stock and Class Ciesd Common Stock into shares of Class A
Common Stock on a one-for-one basis. Class E Spéailng Common Stock shares are not included endhlculation of EPS as these shares represent
voting rights only and are not entitled to partatipin dividends or other distributions. Unvestdais€ A Restricted Common Stock holders are entitled
participate in non-forfeitable dividends or othétdbutions. These unvested shares participatéiderCompany's dividends declared and paid in each
quarter of fiscal 2015, 2014 , and 2013 . As s&f?5 is calculated using the two-class method vidyezarnings are reduced by distributed earninggedls
as any available undistributed earnings allocableolders of unvested restricted shares. A redatioih of the income used to compute basic andeatilu
EPS for the periods presented are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013

Earnings for basic computations (1) $ 229,09: $ 229,08. $ 209,99:
Weighted-average Class A Common Stock outstanding 144,809,90 139,275,59 131,068,84
Weighted-average Class B Non-Voting Common Sto¢ktanding 222,12¢ 1,019,05. 2,080,05!
Weighted-average Class C Restricted Common Stoisitamaing 382,08! 1,019,89 1,253,83;

Total weighted-average common shares outstandimigafsic computations 145,414,12 141,314,54 134,402,72
Earnings for diluted computations (1) $ 229,10. $ 229,08. $ 209,99:

Dilutive stock options and restricted stock 4,961,41 7,366,531 10,451,99

Average number of common shares outstanding fatedilcomputations 150,375,53 148,681,07 144,854,72
Earnings per common share

Basic $ 15¢ $ 16z $ 1.5¢€

Diluted $ 152 % 152 $ 1.4~

(1) During fiscal 2015 , 2014 , and 2013 approx&ha®.2 million , 1.3 million , and 1.2 million stes of participating securities were paid dividends
totaling $3.2 million , $3.1 million , and $9.1 i , respectively. For fiscal 2015 there wereigtributed earnings of $256,000 and $248,000 afémtto
the participating class of securities in basic dihasted earnings per share, respectively. The atkxt undistributed earnings and the dividends paidprise
the difference between net income presented oodhsolidated statements of operations for fiscAb2nd earnings for basic and diluted computations,
while only the dividends paid for fiscal 2014 ar@ll3 comprise the difference from net income preskoh the consolidated statements of operations, as
there were no undistributed earnings.

The EPS calculation for fiscal 2015 , 2014 , an@i®6xcludes 306,000, 1,072,000 , and 328,000 mpas their impact was anti-dilutive.
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4, GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill

As of March 31, 2015 and 2014 , goodwill was $1,204illion and $1,273.8 million , respectively. Tinerease in the carrying amount of goodwill is

primarily attributable to the Company's businesgugitions. The Company performed an annual impanttest of goodwill as of January 1, 2015 and
2014, noting no impairment.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consisted of the following:

As of March 31, 2015 As of March 31, 2014
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying
Value Amortization Value Value Amortization Value
Amortizable intangible assets
Customer relationships and other amortizi
intangible assets $ 196,35¢ $ 167,17 $ 29,18. $ 187,75¢ % 157,07 $ 30,687
Total $ 196,35¢ $ 167,177 $ 29,18 $ 187,75¢ $ 157,07: $ 30,68
Unamortizable intangible assets
Trade name $ 190,200 % — % 190,20t % 190,20t % — % 190,20(
Total $ 386,55¢ $ 167,177 $ 219,38: $ 377,95¢ $ 157,07. $ 220,88

Intangible assets are primarily amortized on arlacated basis over periods ranging from 7 yea@syears. The weighted-average remaining period
of amortization for all customer relationships i6 gears.

The Company performed an annual impairment tegteofrade name as of January 1, 2015 and 2014gnedi impairment.

Amortization expense for fiscal 2015 , 2014 , afd2was $10.7 million , $14.8 million , and $14.8lion , respectively. The following table
summarizes the estimated annual amortization eepfenguture periods indicated below:

For the Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2016 $ 10,72:
2017 9,33(
2018 3,88¢
2019 2,67i
2020 1,46¢
Thereafter 1,09¢
Total amortization expense $ 29,18

5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

Accounts receivable, net consisted of the following
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March 31,

2015 2014
Current
Accounts receivable—billed $ 318,46: $ 395,50¢
Accounts receivable—unbilled 539,20: 522,68!
Allowance for doubtful accounts (357) (1,457
Accounts receivable, net 857,31( 916,73
Long-term
Unbilled receivables 18,49¢ 22,87
Total accounts receivable, net $ 875,80¢ $ 939,61

Unbilled amounts represent sales for which billihgse not been presented to customers at yeaifbade amounts are usually billed and collected
within one year. Long-term unbilled receivables aticipated to be billed and collected within gear, which are primarily related to retainage,
holdbacks, and long-term rate settlements to edbilt contract closeout, are included in otheglterm assets as accounts receivable in the aceyimga
consolidated balance sheets. The Company recogaipeavision (benefit) for doubtful accounts (indilug certain unbilled reserves) of $(1.0) milligh,3
million , and $544,000 for fiscal 2015 , 2014 afid 2, respectively. Because the Company's accounts/edade are primarily with U.S. Government anc
agencies, the Company does not have material estsaccounts receivable credit risk.

6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET
The components of property and equipment, net aefellows:

March 31,

2015 2014
Furniture and equipment $ 134,37¢ $ 104,46:
Computer equipment 57,72 49,46¢
Software 43,881 25,38(
Leasehold improvements 152,66 201,16¢
Total 388,64« 380,47¢
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (277,276 (251,05)
Property and equipment, net $ 111,360 $ 129,42°

Property and equipment, net, includes $4.9 miliod $6.6 million of internally developed softwamnet of depreciation as of March 31, 2015 and
2014 , respectively. Depreciation and amortizaégpense relating to property and equipment foafig®15 , 2014 , and 2013 was $52.7 million , $57.6
million , and $59.5 million , respectively. Durifigcal 2015 and 2014 , the Company reduced thesgrost and accumulated depreciation and amortizatio
by $16.3 million and $17.3 million , respectivelgr zero net book value assets deemed no longssrince.

7. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accounts payable and other accrued expenses aahsithe following:

March 31,
2015 2014
Vendor payables $ 215,99 $ 265,07¢
Accrued expenses 265,82( 223,72¢
Total accounts payable and other accrued expenses $ 481,81 $ 488,80

Accrued expenses consisted primarily of the Comsai@gerve related to potential cost disallowamceoinjunction with government audits. Refer to
Note 20 for further discussion of this resei

8. ACCRUED COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

Accrued compensation and benefits consisted diofleving:
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March 31,

2015 2014

Bonus $ 82,237 $ 75,42%
Retirement 29,28¢ 43,40¢
Vacation 115,65’ 117,62
Stock-based compensation liability (Note 17) 31,73: 39,92:
Deferred Compensation (1) — 27,54°
Other 20,32¢ 27,517
Total accrued compensation and benefits $ 279,23¢ % 331,44(

(1) The Company maintained a deferred compensptam or EPP, established in January 2009, fobémefit of certain employees. The EPP allowed
eligible participants to defer all or a portiontb&ir annual performance bonus, reduced by amauititbeld for the payment of taxes or other dedungtio
required by law. The Company made no contributiorthe EPP, but maintained participant accountsiéderred amounts and interest earned. The deferrec
balance was paid during the three months endedriieme31, 2014. The EPP is no longer active as otiMal, 2015.

9. DEFERRED PAYMENT OBLIGATION

Pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger, oMiiger Agreement, dated as of May 15, 2008, abdeguently amended, The Carlyle Group
indirectly acquired all of the issued and outstagditock of the Company. In connection with thisgaction, on July 31, 2008 the Company establiahed
Deferred Payment Obligation, or DPO, of $158.0ionill, payable 8.5 years after the Closing Dates, dewy settled claims. Pursuant to the Merger
Agreement, $78.0 million of the $158.0 million DR@s required to be paid in full to the selling gtenlders. On December 11, 2009, in connection avith
recapitalization transaction, $100.4 million waglga the selling shareholders, of which $78.0 imillwas the repayment of that portion of the DP@hw
approximately $22.4 million representing accruderiest.

The remaining $80.0 million is available to indefgrthe Company for certain pre-acquisition tax aogeéncies, related interest and penalties, and
other matters pursuant to the Merger Agreement. dmgunts remaining after the settlement of clairtishe paid out to the selling shareholders. As of
March 31, 2015 and 2014 , the Company has recé@8éd million and $56.8 million , respectively, fore-acquisition uncertain tax positions, of which
approximately $20.6 million and $19.6 million , pestively, may be indemnified under the remainingilable DPO. During fiscal 2015 , the Company
accrued additional interest for certain pre-acgoisiuncertain tax positions, thereby increasirggégbtimated amount to be indemnified under the irénga
available DPO and decreasing the DPO amount taloktp the selling shareholders. Offsetting thisrdase in the DPO amount is interest accruedatea r
of 5% per six-month period on the unpaid DPO bzdanet of any settled claims or payments, whick $&0.0 million as of March 31, 2015 and 2014 .
Accordingly, the $60.7 million and $61.7 million DFbalance recorded as of March 31, 2015 and 2fdspectively, within other long-term liabilities,
except the current portion of accrued interest rgpavhich is recorded within short-term liabilitiespresents the residual balance estimated taidetg
the selling shareholders based on consideraticomfngent tax claims, accrued interest and ottedters.

A reconciliation of the principal balance of the OB the amount recorded in the consolidated balaheets for the periods presented are as follows:

March 31,
2015 2014
Deferred payment obligation $ 80,00C $ 80,00(
Indemnified pre-acquisition uncertain tax positions (20,58¢) (19,55¢)
Accrued interest 1,304 1,304
Amount recorded in the consolidated balance sheets $ 60,71¢ $ 61,74¢

During fiscal 2015 and 2014 respectively, the Comygaaid $8.0 million in each year of accrued insete the selling shareholders.

10. DEBT

Debt consisted of the following:
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March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Interest Outstanding Interest Outstanding
Rate Balance Rate Balance
Term Loan A 2.68% $ 796,02 2.65% $ 660,31
Term Loan B 3.7%% 830,31: 3.7%% 998,60:
Total 1,626,33! 1,658,91
Less: Current portion of long-term debt (57,067) (73,689
Long-term debt, net of current portion $ 1,569,27. $ 1,585,23

On May 7, 2014, the Company entered into the Seéonendment to the Credit Agreement, dated as ¢f3L) 2012 (as previously amended by the
First Amendment to the Credit Agreement, datedfa@sugust 16, 2013). Pursuant to the Second Amendnies Company increased its borrowing under
Term Loan A by approximately $168.4 million , th@geeds of which were used to pay outstanding ip@hon the Term Loan B. The rates for Term Loan
A and Term Loan B, as amended, remain unchangedS€hond Amendment also extended the maturityaddterm Loan A and the revolving credit
facility to May 31, 2019. The maturity date for et.oan B remained unchanged at July 31, 2019. Tdmepany also amended its existing debt covenants
to provide for greater operational and financiekibility.

As of March 31, 2015 , the Credit Agreement, asrated, provided the Company with an $830.0 milli@mi Loan A and an $841.2 million Term
Loan B, and a $500.0 million revolving credit fagil with a sublimit for letters of credit of $1@million . The outstanding obligations under thedt
Agreement, as amended, are secured by a secudtgshin substantially all of the assets of thenfany, subject to certain exceptions set forthhéGredi
Agreement, as amended, and related documentation.

In connection with the Second Amendment, the Compacelerated the amortization of ratable portiointhe Debt Issuance Costs, or DIC, and
Original Issue Discount, or OID, associated with gior senior secured loan facilities of $1.2 imill. These expenses are reflected in other expaas@
the consolidated statement of operations for fi2edb . Furthermore, the Company expensed thiry gabt issuance costs of $2.0 million that did not
qualify for deferral, which are reflected in gerderad administrative costs in the consolidatecest@nt of operations for fiscal 2015 .

We occasionally borrow under our revolving creditifity in anticipation of cash demands. During fiseal years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 ,
the Company's wholly-owned subsidiary Booz Allermilton Inc. accessed a total of $80.0 million aB@@0 million , respectively, of its $500.0 million
revolving credit facility. As of March 31, 2015 a@814 , no amounts were outstanding on the revgleradit facility.

The Credit Agreement, as amended, requires quapsarcipal payments of 1.25% of the stated printgmount of Term Loan A, with annual
incremental increases to 1.875% , 2.50% , 3.12&A61,13.0% , prior to Term Loan A's maturity datéMafy 31, 2019. As a result of paying approximately
$168.4 million of Term Loan B principal in connewtiwith the Second Amendment, no additional priacfayments are required until the remaining
balance is due on Term Loan B's maturity date yf 31, 2019. The revolving credit facility matures May 31, 2019, at which time any outstanding
principal balance is due in full.

The following table summarizes required future debicipal repayments:

Payments Due By March 31,

Total 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter
Term Loan A $ 798,87 $ 57,06 $ 7781 % 98,56: $ 349,63 $ 215,80 $ =
Term Loan B 841,18¢ — — — — 841,18¢ —
Total $ 1,640,060 $ 57,06 $ 77,811 % 98,56: $ 349,63 $ 1,056,98 $ =

The interest rate on borrowings under Term Loas BIBOR plus 2.50% spread. The spread ranges fro00P2to 2.75% based on the Company's
total leverage ratio. The interest rate on borrgwionder Term Loan B is LIBOR plus 3.0% spread with75% floor. The spread ranges from 2.00% to
3.00% based upon either an ABR or LIBOR borrowiRige revolving credit facility margin and commitmdeé are subject to the leveraged based pricing
grid, as set forth in the Credit Agreement, as aiedn

During fiscal 2015 , interest payments of $21.0ioriland $29.0 million were made for Term Loan#da erm Loan B, respectively. During fiscal
2014 , interest payments of $19.0 million and $4tiion were made for Term Loan A and Term Loarr&pectively.
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The total outstanding debt balance is recordetératcompanying consolidated balance sheets, neiaofiortized discount of $13.7 million afi2.3

million as of March 31, 2015 and 2014 , respecyivék of March 31, 2015 and 2014 , the Company waempliance with all of the Credit Agreement's
debt covenants.

11. DEFERRED FINANCING COSTS

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoofibebt Issuance Costs, or DIC, for the periogsented are as follows:

March 31,
2015 2014
Beginning of year $ 25,67C $ 31,82(
Amortization (5,339 (6,719
Accelerated amortization of DIC related to May 2®efinancing Transaction and August 2013
Repricing Transactioh (2,137 (610
Additional DIC related to May 2014 Refinancing Tsantion and August 2013 Repricing
Transactiort 203t 1,17¢
End of year $ 21,24C % 25,67(

tIncluded in "Amortization of debt issuance costd lss on extinguishment" in the consolidated stete of cash flows.
2Included in "Debt issuance costs" in the consadidatatement of cash flows.

Costs incurred in connection with the May 7, 20Bfifancing Transaction were $4.0 million , of whigh0 million was recorded as other long-term
assets and will be amortized and reflected in @stieexpense in the consolidated statements of tipesaver the term of the loans. Amortizationtodge
costs will be accelerated to the extent that aepgyment is made on the Credit Agreement. The rénggamount of $2.0 million , which was not defekre
was recorded as general and administrative expémsies consolidated statements of operationsstafi2015.

Costs incurred in connection with the August 16L2Repricing Transaction were $2.8 million , of efhi1.2 million was recorded as other Idegn
assets and will be amortized and reflected in @gieexpense in the consolidated statements of topesaver the term of the loans. Amortizationludge
costs will be accelerated to the extent that aepayment is made on the Credit Agreement. The rénggamount of $1.6 million , which was not defekre
was recorded as general and administrative expémsies consolidated statements of operationssrafi2014.

Absent any prepayment accelerations of DIC or ffezeof changes in interest rates, the followiagglé summarizes the estimated annual amortiz
expense of DIC using the effective interest ratéhoe, as a component of interest expense, forutuee fiscal periods indicated below:

DIC Amortization Expense

Total 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter
Term Loan A $ 6,01z $ 1,73: $ 1,62: $ 1,46 $ 1,10¢ $ 87 $ =
Term Loan B 7,501 1,611 1,67¢ 1,752 1,83( 63C —
Revolver 7,727 1,85¢ 1,85¢ 1,85¢ 1,85:¢ 31C =
Total $ 21,240 $ 5,201 $ 5,15: § 5,06 $ 4,791 $ 1,027 $ —
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12. INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax expense were as fellow

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013
Current

U.S. Federal $ 133,400 $ 148,90¢ $ 161,83t
State and local 22,49; 26,06: 35,50:
Total current 155,89: 174,97( 197,34:

Deferred
U.S. Federal (2,93¢) (22,540 (40,657)
State and local 39t (3,83)) (7,43¢6)
Total deferred (2,549 (26,377) (48,089
Total $ 153,34¢ $ 148,59¢ $ 149,25!

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxttte amount computed by applying the statutoryrf@decome tax rate to income from continuing

operations before income taxes for each of theethears ended March 31 is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013
Income tax expense computed at U.S. federal stgtrate (35%) $ 135,07. $ 133,27! 128,90¢
Increases (reductions) resulting from:
Changes in uncertain tax positions 1,03¢ 1,83¢ 1,477
State income taxes, net of the federal tax benefit 15,03¢ 13,847 17,03¢
Meals and entertainment 1,51z 1,13¢ 1,36t
Other 68¢€ (1,496 468
Income tax expense from operations $ 153,34¢ $ 148,59¢ 149,25:
Significant components of the Company’s net deteimeome tax (liability) asset were as follows:
March 31,
2015 2014
Deferred income tax assets:
Accrued expenses 92,747 % 96,55¢
Accrued compensation 36,95¢ 40,19¢
Stock-based compensation 25,537 34,53:
Pension and postretirement insurance 44,03( 31,77¢
Property and equipment 14,03t 7,758
Net operating loss & Capital loss carryforwards 268 532
Deferred rent and tenant allowance 13,70( 11,25¢
Other 7,771 6,97¢
Total gross deferred income tax assets 235,04! 229,57!
Less: Valuation allowance — —
Total net deferred income tax assets 235,04! 229,57!
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Accrued compensation-IRC Section 481(a) (20,039 (20,08¢)
Unbilled receivables (104,01 (98,129
Intangible assets (81,48¢) (80,059
Debt issuance costs (4,395 (6,650)
Other (5,817 (3,200
Total deferred income tax liabilities (205,749 (208,119
Net deferred income tax asset $ 29,297 $ 21,45¢
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Deferred tax balances arise from temporary diffeesrbetween the carrying amount of assets anditiedband their tax basis and are stated at the
enacted tax rates in effect for the year in whighdifferences are expected to reverse. A valuatiowance is provided against deferred tax asseén it
is more likely than not that some or all of theadedd tax asset will not be realized. In deterngnfrthe Company's deferred tax assets are reddizab
management considers all positive and negativeeaeig including the history of generating book ey, future reversals of existing taxable tempporar
differences, projected future taxable income, atageany tax planning strategies. The Companyekes it is more likely than not that the resultfubdire
operations will generate sufficient taxable incaimeealize the net deferred tax assets.

As of March 31, 2015the Company has a minimal amount of State netatipg loss, or NOL, carryforwards. The State NQ@irgforwards expire i
2028. The Company believes that it is more likabrt not that the Company will generate sufficiamaible income to fully realize the tax benefithud t
State NOL carryforwards.

Uncertain Tax Positions

The Company maintains reserves for uncertain takipos related to income tax benefits recogniddakse reserves involve considerable judgment
and estimation and are evaluated by managemerd basthe best information available including chesan tax laws and other information. As of
March 31, 2015, 2014 , and 2013 the Company l@sded $58.4 million , $57.4 million , and $57.0lion respectively, of reserves for uncertain tax
positions which includes potential tax benefit$656.2 million , $55.0 million , and $55.7 millioespectively, that, if recognized, would impact #ffective
tax rate. Of the $58.4 million , $57.4 million ,ca#i57.0 million of reserves for uncertain tax posis as of March 31, 2015 , 2014 , and 2013 reedgt
approximately $20.6 million , $19.6 million , and85 million respectively, may be indemnified unttee remaining available DPO.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoofipotential tax benefits for the periods presérgeas follows:

March 31,
2015 2014 2013

Beginning of year $ 54,96¢ $ 55,67¢ $ 54,89t
Federal benefit from change in reserve — — —
Increases in prior year position 27 364 1,074
Increases in current year position 203 — —
Settlements with taxing authorities 32 (2,079 (11)
Lapse of statute of limitations — 3 (279
End of year $ 55,16¢ $ 54,96¢ $ 55,67¢

The Company recognized accrued interest and pesatiapproximately $840,000 , $1.1 million and %980 for fiscal 2015 , 2014 , and 2013,
respectively, related to the reserves for uncettairpositions in the income tax provision. Incldde the total reserve for uncertain tax positiares accrue
penalties and interest of approximately $3.3 millj&2.4 million and $1.3 million at March 31, 2012014 , and 2013 respectively.

The Company did not have any material settlemenpse of statute of limitations during fiscal y@815 . The Company is subject to taxation in the
United States and various state and foreign juigmis. As of March 31, 2015 , the Company's teargended July 31, 2008 and forward are open and
subject to examination by the tax authorities. jiinsdictions currently under examination are nmmsidered to be material. It is reasonably possitze
during
the next twelve months the Company’s liability €mrcertain tax positions, mostly relating to prieripd restructurings, may be reduced significantly
(approximately $57.9 million including interest apenalties) primarily due to the lapse in statintethtions.

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Defined Contribution Plan

The Company sponsors the Employees’ Capital Accatiom Plan, or ECAP, which is a qualified definexhizibution plan that covers eligible U.S.
and international employees. ECAP provides forithistions, subject to certain vesting provisiomsparticipants by reason of retirement, death bdisg
or termination of employment. Effective April 1,29, the Company transitioned from a discretionanpleyer contribution to an annual matching
contribution of up to 6% of eligible annual incoaee determined by the Internal Revenue Code foE@®P. Total expense recognized under ECAP for
fiscal 2015 , 2014 , and 2013 was $110.7 milli§d65.6 million , and $237.1 million , respectivedynd the Company-paid contributions were $124.8
million , $205.2 million , and $242.6 million , qsctively.
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Defined Benefit Plan and Other Postretirement Beitéflans
The Company maintains and administers a postregintmedical plan and a defined benefit retireméant for current, retired, and resigned officers.

The Company established a non-qualified define@fiigplan for all Officers in May 1995, or the Retil Officers' Bonus Plan, which pays a lump-
sum amount of $10,000 per year of service as aicédffprovided the Officer meets retirement vestieguirements. The Company also provides a fixed
annual allowance after retirement to cover finanoianseling and other expenses. The Retired @ffi@onus Plan is not salary related, but rathbaged
primarily on years of service.

In addition, the Company provides postretirememttheare benefits to former Officers under a mddicdemnity insurance plan, with premiums paid
by the Company. This plan is referred to as théc®&ffMedical Plan.

The Company recognizes a liability for the defiledhefit plans' underfunded status, measures tlireeddbenefit plans' obligations that determine its
funded status as of the end of the fiscal year raodgnizes as a component of accumulated othepredransive income the changes in the defined kdenefi
plans' funded status that are not recognized apaoemts of net periodic benefit cost.

As of March 31, 2015, the Company adopted new tityrtables published by the Society of Actuariebjch reflects improved life expectancies and
projected mortality improvements. The result wasnanease to the benefit obligation of our defibedefit plans of $9.6 millionOur defined benefit plar
benefit obligation increased by an additional $8iBion as a result of the decrease in the discoar® assumption by 50 basis points.

The components of net postretirement medical expfarghe Officer Medical Plan were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013
Service cost $ 4,08t $ 4,748 $ 3,89z
Interest cost 3,56¢ 3,66( 3,147
Net actuarial loss 582 2,72¢ 1,531

Total postretirement medical expense $ 8,23t $ 11,13 $ 8,57¢

The weighted-average discount rate used to deterthinyear-end benefit obligations was as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2015 2014 2013
Officer Medical Plan 4.25% 4.7% 4.7%%

Retired Officers’ Bonus Plan 4.25% 4.7%% 4.7%%

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates for the Offitagtical Plan at March 31, 2015 and 2014 were bowe:

Pre-65 initial rate 2015 2014
Healthcare cost trend rate assumed for next year 7.00% 7.25%
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed tiingethe ultimate trend rate) 5.0(% 5.0(%
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 202: 202z
Post-65 initial rate 2015 2014
Healthcare cost trend rate assumed for next year 6.75% 7.00%
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed tiingethe ultimate trend rate) 5.0(% 5.0(%
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 202: 202z

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates have a signifeffect on the amounts reported for the healéhptans. A one-percentage-point change in
assumed healthcare cost trend rates calculatefdarch 31, 2015 would have the following effects:

1% Increase 1% Decrease
Effect on total of service and interest cost $ 1497 $ (1,189

Effect on postretirement benefit obligation 19,96¢ (15,779
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Total defined benefit plan expense, consistingeofise, interest, and net actuarial gain associattidthe Retired Officers' Bonus Plan was $686,000
$768,000, and $743,000 for fiscal 2015 , 2014, 2013 , respectively. Benefits paid associatel thi¢ Retired Officers’ Bonus Plan were $1.3 millio
$1.1 million , and $361,000 for fiscal 2015 , 20&hd 2013 , respectively. The end-of-period beémbligation of $4.3 million and $4.7 million as of
March 31, 2015 and 2014 , respectively, is incluidggostretirement obligations within other longrteliabilities in the accompanying consolidatedapaie
sheets.

Accumulated other comprehensive loss as of Margl2@15 includes unrecognized gross actuarial [6$2%9.6 million , reduced by taxes of $10.1
million , that has not yet been recognized in regtqulic pension cost for the Retired Officers’ BerRlan and the Officer Medical Plan. Accumulatdteot
comprehensive loss as of March 31, 2014 , includescognized net actuarial gain of $6.7 millioret of taxes of $4.4 million , that has not yet been
recognized in net periodic pension cost for tharBetOfficers’ Bonus Plan and the Officer Medictii®

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensiveria@xpected to be recognized as components oenedjr cost in fiscal 2016 are $3.5 million
of net actuarial (gain) loss, $0 of net prior seevtost (credit), and $0 of net transition (asskligation.

The changes in the benefit obligation, plan asseid funded status of the Officer Medical Plan waséollows:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013
Benefit obligation, beginning of the year $ 75,90 $ 78,73t % 63,58t
Service cost 4,08¢ 4. 74¢ 3,892
Interest cost 3,56¢ 3,66( 3,147
Net actuarial (gain) loss 26,29 (9,436 9,891
Benefits paid (2,537) (1,802) (1,780)
Benefit obligation, end of the year $ 107,317 $ 75,90 $ 78,73¢
Changes in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of the year $ — — 3 —
Employer contributions 2,532 1,80z 1,78(C
Benefits paid (2,537) (1,802) (1,780)
Fair value of plan assets, end of the year $ — % — % —

As of March 31, 2015 and 2014 , the unfunded stattise Officer Medical Plan was $107.3 million &itb.9 million, respectively, which is include
in other long-term liabilities in the accompanyitmnsolidated balance sheets.

Funded Status for Defined Benefit Plans

Generally, annual contributions are made at sunbdiand in amounts as required by law and may, firmmto time, exceed minimum funding
requirements. The Retired Officers’ Bonus Plamisiafunded plan and contributions are made as hemeé paid. As of March 31, 2015 and 2014 , there
were no plan assets for the Retired Officers’ Bdhlam and therefore, the accumulated liability 4838million and $4.7 million , respectively, is unted.
The liability will be distributed in a lump-sum pgagnt as each Officer retires.

The expected future medical benefit payments aliatieic contributions are as follows:

For the Fiscal Year Ending March 31,

2016 2,672
2017 3,03(
2018 3,36¢
2019 4,027
2020 4,45¢
2021-2024 27,29:
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14. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

All amounts recorded in other comprehensive losgalated to the Companysst-retirement planThe following table represents a rollforward of
amounts recognized in accumulated other compreletess, net of tax:

March 31,
2015 2014 2013
Beginning of year $ (6,636 $ (13,78) $ (8,71%)
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reifieations (15,879 5,49¢ (5,996
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other peehensive loss 35C 1,652 924
Net current-period other comprehensive income Jloss (15,52 7,151 (5,072)
End of year $ (22,159 $ (6,630 $ (23,787
The following table presents the reclassificationsof accumulated other comprehensive loss tinceme:
March 31,
2015 2014 2013
Amortization of net actuarial loss includechiet periodic benefit cost (See Note 13)
Total before tax $ 577 $ 2,72¢  $ 1,52¢
Tax benefit (227) (1,076 (600)
Net of tax $ 35C $ 165 $ 924
15. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Other long-term liabilities consisted of the follmg:
March 31,
2015 2014
Deferred rent $ 34,73 % 28,527
Stock-based compensation liability (Note 17) — 25,96¢
Deferred payment obligation 59,41« 60,44«
Postretirement benefit obligation 111,62 80,527
Other (1) 8,61¢ 5,74¢
Total other long-term liabilities $ 214,28" % 201,21

(1) Balance at March 31, 2015 includes a contingamtout liability of $4.5 million related to busss acquisitions. Refer to Note 18 for further asoon.

In fiscal 2015 and 2014 , the Company recordedekdbased compensation liability of $31.7 milliamde$65.9 million , respectively, including $31.7
million and $39.9 million , respectively, expectedbe paid within one year, related to specialdénds paid in July and December 2009, June andshugu
2012, November 2013, and February and August ZRaHover options vested and not yet exercisedulmatid have had an exercise price below zero as a
result of the dividend were reduced to one certh thie remaining reduction to be paid in cash ugxercise of the options. Payments of the special

dividends to the Company's Amended and RestateiyHguentive Plan, or EIP, option holders is lidk® vesting. Refer to Note 17 for further discassi
of the special dividends.

16. STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY

Common Stock

Holders of Class A Common Stock, Class C Restri€teohmon Stock, and Class E Special Voting CommonkSre entitled to one vote for each
share as a holder. The holders of the Voting Com8tonk shall vote together as a single class. Didehs of Class B Non-Voting Common Stock have no
voting rights.
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Class C Restricted Common Stock was restrictebana holder’s shares vested as set forth in thiewo Plan. Refer to Note 17 for further
discussion of the Rollover Plan.

When shares of Class B Non-Voting Common StocklasCC Restricted Common Stock are sold on the oeket, they become Class A Common
Stock shares. At the annual meeting of stockholdeld on July 31, 2014, the stockholders approveposal to amend and restate the certificate of
incorporation, which had the effect of convertitigssued and outstanding shares of Class B NoirRgd@€ommon Stock and Class C Restricted Common
Stock into shares of Class A Common Stock on aforrene basis. The conversion was effected on AutBis2014 when the Company filed its third
amended and restated certificate of incorporatiith thie Secretary of State of the State of Delawasea result of the conversion, there were noeshef
Class B Non-Voting Common Stock and Class C Rastti€ommon Stock outstanding at such time.

Class E Special Voting Common Stock representsdling rights that accompany the Rollover Optidrsllover Options have a fixed vesting and
exercise schedule to comply with IRS section 409p0n exercise, the option will convert to Class #n@non Stock, and the corresponding Class E Sj
Voting Common Stock will be repurchased by the Canypand retired. Refer to Note 17 for further désian of the Rollover Options.

Each share of common stock, except for Class Ei@péating Common Stock, is entitled to participagually in dividends, when and if declared by
the Board of Directors from time to time, such diamds and other distributions in cash, stock, op@rty from the Company’s assets or funds become
legally available for such purposes subject toaimidend preferences that may be attributable ébgured stock that may be authorized. The Company’s
ability to pay dividends to stockholders is limitesl a practical matter by restrictions in the dragreements governing the Senior Credit Facilities

The authorized and unissued Class A Common Staulestare available for future issuance upon shatieroexercises, without additional
stockholder approval.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In connection with the Compargyinitial public offering in November 2010, the Cpamy established a tax qualified Employee Stocklfage Plan, «
ESPP, which is designed to enable eligible empkye@eriodically purchase shares of the Compa@ildss A Common Stock up to an aggregate of
10,000,000 shares at a five percent discount franiair market value of the Company’s common stdtie ESPP provides for quarterly offering periods,
the first of which commenced on April 1, 2011. Hoe year ended March 31, 2015, 213,825 Class AramiStock shares were purchased by employees
under the ESPP. As of the program's inception,81835 shares have been purchased by employees.

Share Repurchase Program

On December 12, 2011, the Board of Directors apmta@v$30.0 million share repurchase program, foiéed from cash on hand. A special
committee of the Board of Directors was appointedvaluate market conditions and other relevartbfa@nd initiate repurchases under the program fro
time to time. On January 27, 2015, the Board oé&wrs approved an increase to the share repurab#serization to $180.0 millionThe share repurche
program may be suspended, modified or discontimtieahy time at the Company’s discretion withoubpriotice. On November 5, 2014, the Company
entered into an agreement with an affiliate of Taelyle Group to repurchase 1,000,000 shares o€tass A common stock pursuant to the repurchase
program. The shares were repurchased at a prit25010 per share as part of a private non-undeenritansaction. On February 2, 2015, the Company
entered into a similar agreement with an affiliatéhe Carlyle Group to repurchase an addition@0Q,000 shares of our Class A common stock purgoant
the repurchase program. The shares were repurcfrasethe Underwriter at a price of $28.36 per shés of March 31, 2015 , the Company has $126.5
million remaining under the repurchase program.

Dividends

The following table summarizes the cash distrilngicecognized in the consolidated statement of ftasis:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013
Recurring dividends (1) $ 67,84¢ $ 57,06 $ 48,73t
Special dividends (2) 147,24¢ 288,73¢ 1,073,73.
Dividend equivalents (3) 47,11( 56,13¢ 59,47:
Total distributions $ 26220 $§ 40194 $§ 1,181,94
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(1) Amounts represent recurring quarterly dividetidg were declared and paid for during each queftiscal 2015 , fiscal 2014 , and fiscal 2013 .

(2) Amounts represent aggregate special dividen84.60 per share ( $1.00 paid on August 29, 2020 per share ( $1.00 paid November 29, 2013 anc
$1.00 paid February 28, 2014) and $8.00 per shéite50 paid June 29, 2012 and $6.50 paid Auguse@I?) that were declared and paid for during fisca
2015, fiscal 2014 , and fiscal 2013 , respectively

(3) Dividend equivalents are distributions madeption holders equal to the special dividends adedland paid.

On May 21, 2015, the Company announced a regukateqly cash dividend in the amount of $0.13 parshThe quarterly dividend is payable on
June 30, 2015 to stockholders of record on Jun@aTs.

For each special dividend authorized and declahedBoard of Directors, acting as the Administratbthe Officers' Rollover Stock Plan and the
Equity Incentive Plan (EIP), as amended, is reguioemake a determination under the respectivéptanidilution provision to adjust the outstanding
options. Refer to Note 17 for further discussionhaf special dividends.

The total payout of the dividend and the dividegdiealents have been presented as a financingtgatiithin the consolidated statement of cash
flows.

17. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The following table summarizes stock-based compg@msaxpense recognized in the consolidated statenué operations:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013
Cost of revenue $ 8,65: $ 567: $ 7,061
General and administrative expenses 17,51 14,39 17,78(
Total $ 26,16: $ 20,06 $ 24,84

The following table summarizes the total stock-lblasempensation expense recognized in the consatidaatements of operations by the following
types of equity awards:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013
Equity Incentive Plan Options $ 4897 $ 7251 % 13,14¢
Class A Restricted Common Stock 21,26¢ 12,17: 8,41z
Rollover Options — 57¢ 2,97(
Class C Restricted Stock — 59 311
Total $ 26,16: $ 20,06t $ 24,84

As of March 31, 2015 and 2014 , there was $27.8aniaind $16.4 million of total unrecognized comgetion cost related to unvested stock-based
compensation agreements. The unrecognized compansast as of March 31, 2015 is expected to bg &rhortized over the next four years. Absent the
effect of accelerating stock compensation cosafgr departures of employees who may continue tbinékeir equity awards, the following tables
summarize the unrecognized compensation cost, ¢ighted average period the cost is expected torloetized, and the estimated annual compensation
cost for the future periods indicated below (exeludny future awards):

Unrecognized Compensation Weighted Average Remaining

Cost Period to be Recognized
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Equity Incentive Plan Options $ 4478 $ 8,24¢ 2.83 3.10
Class A Restricted Common Stock 23,41¢ 8,15 2.71 2.02
Total $ 27,89 $ 16,40¢
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Total Unrecognized Compensation Cost

Total 2016 2017 2018 2019
Equity Incentive Plan Options $ 4478 $ 2,63¢ $ 1,23 $ 48C $ 12:
Class A Restricted Common Stock 23,41¢ 14,32( 6,64¢ 2,38: 66
Total $ 27,89: % 16,95¢ $ 788. $ 2,860 $ 18¢

Equity Incentive Plan

The Equity Incentive Plan, or EIP, was createdonnection with the Merger Agreement for employewss directors of Holding. The Company
created a pool of options, or EIP Options, to duwpwn for future grants that would be governed teyEHP. All options under the EIP are exercisabperu
vesting, for shares of common stock of Holding.

Stock options are granted at the discretion oBtbard of Directors or its Compensation Committeg expire ten years from the grant date. Options
generally vest over a five -year period based upqguired service and performance conditions. Sign February 1, 2012, the Board of Directordor i
Compensation Committee updated vesting conditionstbck options, whereby stock options only vestrua required service condition. The Company
calculates the pool of additional paid-in capisd@ciated with excess tax benefits using the “sfiragimethod.”

In addition to options, the Board of Directors afgants restricted stock awards to members of ttesdBas compensation for services rendered to the
Company. These awards generally vest over one year.

During fiscal 2015, the Company issued two equitgals in the form of restricted stock to certainiseexecutives and newly hired officers of the
Company. These awards will vest over a four -yesiogl.

The aggregate grant date fair value of the EIPdDptissued during fiscal 2015 , 2014 , and 2018s, $1.7 million , $4.9 million , and $4.2 million ,
respectively, and is being recorded as expensetbgeresting period. The total fair value of EIPtiOps vested during fiscal 2015 and 2014 was $14.0
million and $17.5 million , respectively. The totatrinsic value of EIP options exercised durirgcéil 2015 and 2014 was $15.0 million and $31.8onilj
respectively. As of March 31, 2015 and 2014 , theses 12,753,436 and 9,197,629 options, respegtiaghilable for future grant under the EIP.

Adoption of Annual Incentive Plan

On October 1, 2010, the Board of Directors adoptedw compensation plan in connection with theahgublic offering to more appropriately align
the Company’s compensation programs with thosénufesly situated companies. The amount of the ahincentive payment will be determined based on
performance targets established by the Board @dbirs and a portion of the bonus may be paiddrfahm of equity (including stock and other awards
under the EIP). If the Board of Directors electsiake payments in equity, the value of the overatird will be increased by 20% , related to theipor
paid in equity. Equity awards vest based on thegmes of time, subject to the officer’'s continuegkyment by the Company. The portion to be paitha
form of equity will be recognized in the accompamgytonsolidated statements of operations basedammn date fair value over the vesting period oé¢hr
years. The portion to be paid in cash is accruabhaduring the fiscal year in which the employpesvide service and paid out during the first ¢eraof
the subsequent fiscal year.

Grants of Class A Restricted Common Stock and iRestrStock Units

On May 2, 2014, the Board of Directors granted 866,shares of Class A Restricted Stock to certiins executives. The aggregate value of this
award was estimated at $21.0 million based ontthek price of $23.45 on the grant date. This aweitidvest over a four year period subject to the
executives' continued employment with the Company.

On June 23, 2014, the Board of Directors granté&j(®% shares of Class A Restricted Stock to certewny hired partners. The aggregate value was
estimated at $4.2 million based on the stock @fc21.57 on the grant date. This award will vestrdour years based upon required service and
performance conditions.

On July 1, 2014 the Board of Directors granted 886 Restricted Stock Units in conjunction with fenual Incentive Plan adopted on October 1,
2010, or Annual Incentive Plan. The amount of theual incentive payment was determined based dorpgnce targets established by the Compensation
Committee and a portion of the incentive paymerdraed under the Annual Incentive Plan was paitiénféorm of Restricted Stock Units. A Restricted
Stock Unit represents a contingent right to receive share of Class A Common Stock upon vesting.Réstricted Stock Units will vest based on the
passage of time, subject to the participant’s coeiil employment with the Company. The aggregatevahs estimated at $10.1 millibased on the stoc
price of $21.57 on the grant date.

On July 1, 2014, the Board of Directors grantedG@héef Executive Officer 23,282 shares of ClasseéstRcted Stock. The amount of the annual
incentive payment was determined based on perfarentangets established by the Compensation
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Committee and a portion of the bonus awarded utdeAnnual Incentive Plan to the Chief Executivéi€@f was paid in the form of Class A Restricted
Stock. The aggregate value of this award was etgirat $0.5 million based on the stock price of.$2bn the grant date.

On August 8, 2014, the Board of Directors grante@25 shares of Class A Restricted Stock to certeambers of the Board of Directors. The
aggregate value of this award was estimated atrllién based on the stock price of $21.18 onghant date.

On September 2, 2014, the Board of Directors gtait238 shares of Class A Restricted Stock to amember of the Board of Directors. The
aggregate value was estimated at $0.2 million besdtie stock price of $22.69 on the grant date.

On February 5, 2015, the Board of Directors grait&@3 shares of Class A Restricted Stock to a reewitthe Board of Directors. The aggregate
value of this award was estimated at $ 0.05 milbased on the stock price of $29.17 on the graet da

The total fair value of restricted stock sharegeesluring fiscal 2015 and 2014 was $15.0 milliad &8.7 million , respectively.
Officers’ Rollover Stock Plan

The Rollover Plan was adopted as a mechanism tde@ampany Officers to exchange a portion of tpedtvious equity interests in the pre-
acquisition Company for equity interests in the @amy. Among the equity interests that were eligibleexchange were common stock and stock rights,
both vested and unvested.

Unvested stock rights that would have vested irB286re exchanged for 2,028,270 shares of new Cl&sstricted Stock issued by the Company at
an estimated fair value of $10.00 on August 1, 200% aggregate grant date fair value of the GlaBestricted Stock issued of $20.3 million was rded
as expense over the vesting period. For the fisgml ended March 31, 2014 , 136,200 cumulativeeshair Class C Restricted Stock vested. Aslafch 31
2015 all shares of class C Restricted Stock wdhgvasted. At March 31, 2015 and 2014 , 3,971, &8@res of Class C Restricted Stock were authorized
but unissued under the Plan. Notwithstanding thegfoing, Class C Restricted Stock was intendea tissued only in connection with the exchange s
described above.

In addition to the conversion of the stock rightattwould have vested in 2008 to Class C Restrigtedk, Options were issued in exchange for old
stock rights held by the U.S. government consultiagners of the pre-acquisition Company. The Relldptions were granted based on the retirement
eligibility of the Officer. For the purposes of geeoptions, there were two categories of Officeetirement eligible and non-retirement eligibl&o§e
individuals who were considered retirement eligidieo were given the opportunity to make a one-gteetion to be treated as non-retirement eligible
determination of retirement eligibility was madeods set point in time and could not be changeaifature date. The aggregate grant date fair \ailtiee
Rollover Options issued of $127.1 million was ref=at as compensation expense over the vesting p&adidver Options granted to retirement eligible
Officers had different vesting and exercise scheslthan those granted to non-retirement eligibfe€s. The total grant date fair value of Rollover
Options vested during fiscal 2014 was $16.2 millidine Rollover Options were fully vested as of MaB1, 2015 . Rollover Options granted to retirefen
eligible Officers were fully exercised as of Margh, 2015 . Rollover Options granted to non-retiretradigible Officers are scheduled to be fully esised
in fiscal 2016.

As permitted under the terms of the EIP and Rolld&lans, the Compensation Committee as Administidtthe Plans, authorized the withholding of
taxes not to exceed the minimum statutory withimgdimount, through the surrender of shares of Glagsmmon stock issuable upon the exercise of
Rollover Options and the vesting or accelerateting®f Restricted Stock. For those holders whatelé to participate, the trade dates were as listéuk
table below. As a result of these transactionsCiipany repurchased a total of 388,824 sharesegondded them as treasury shares at a cost of $8.6
million , detailed as follows:

Total Shares Withheld to Cover Taxes

Trade Date Shares Cost Total

April 1, 2014 2,111 $22.32 $ 47,11¢
May 21, 2014 3,266 $22.17 72,40,
June 30, 2014 212,445 $21.24 4,512,33
September 12, 2014 159,179 $22.85 3,637,24
March 1, 2015 943 $29.76 28,06
March 31, 2015 10,880 $28.94 314,86
Total 388,824 $ 8,612,02i
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Methodology

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricingehto determine the estimated fair value forlstoased awards. The fair value of the
Company’s stock is based on the closing price erNibw York Stock Exchange.

During fiscal year 2015, the Company’s Board ofedtors authorized and declared three regular qiiadash dividends of $0.11 per share and one
quarterly cash dividend of $0.13 per share. Theegfan annualized dividend yield between 1.66%20d4% was used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model for all grants issued during the fiscal y8dre Company has excluded any special dividends fhe annualized dividend yield because of their
classification as special dividends and their necurring nature. The Company plans to continuengasecurring dividends in the near term and assgssi
its excess cash resources to determine the bedbwayize its excess cash flow in order to mégbbjectives. One way the Company may utilize egce
cash includes the payment of special dividends.Jdmpany does not anticipate or forecast the payofespecial dividends and therefore does not ohelu
special dividends in the annual dividend yield vihiise company uses to calculate the fair valudazksoptions, as the Company does not pay thesgaspe
dividends on a regular basis.

Implied volatility is calculated as of each graatelbased on our historical volatility along withassessment of the historical volatility of a pgeug
of publicly traded companies. Other than the exgrblife of the option, volatility is the most seig input to our option grants. To be consisteithall
other implied calculations, the same peer group tsealculate other implied metrics is also usedaiculate implied volatility.

The risk-free interest rate is determined by refeeeto the U.S. Treasury yield curve rates withrémaining term equal to the expected life assumed
at the date of grant. The average expected lifalmulated based on the Company's historical egpeei with respect to its stock plan activity in camation
with an estimate of when vested and unexercisedrophares will be exercised. Forfeitures werenestitd based on the Company’s historical analysis of
Officer and Vice-President attrition levels anduatforfeiture rates by grant date.

The weighted average assumptions used in the Babkles option-pricing model for stock option aveancere as follows:

For The Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013
Dividend yield 1.9% 2.19% 2.07%
Expected volatility 30.42% 30.97% 33.12%
Risk-free interest rate 1.60% 1.36% 1.44%
Expected life (in years) 5.00 6.64 7.00
Weighted-average grant date fair value $5.55 $4.59 $4.69

Special Dividends

The Board of Directors, acting as the Administratbthe Officers' Rollover Stock Plan and the Egliitcentive Plan (EIP), as amended have
discretion in how to effect the required adjustnterikeep option holders whole in the event of #rithistion of dividends that trigger certain antiedion
clauses within the respective plans. In the evenBoard of Directors elects to grant option haldecash payment equal to the amount of the special
dividend, the Company accrues a stock-based corapendiability as the EIP options are scheduleti¢osested. Rollover Options are fully vested,
therefore the liability associated with these amics fully recorded on the consolidated balanemshThe obligation will be settled on the options'
mandatory exercise date for Rollover Options antherater of the date the dividend is paid ormestor the EIP options. The stock-based compenisati
liability includes all special dividends declared.

On October 29, 2013, the Board of Directors autteatiand declared a special cash dividend of $le08hare. The dividend was paid on November
29, 2013 to stockholders of record on Novembe2013. On January 31, 2014, the Board of Directotsaized and declared a special cash dividend of
$1.00 per share. The dividend was paid on Febr2&r2014 to stockholders of record on Februan20@4. On July 30, 2014, the Board of Directors
authorized and declared a special cash divide$d @0 per share. The dividend was paid on Augus2@®4 to stockholders of record on August 11, 2014
For each special dividend declared, the Board cédddrs, acting as the Administrator of the Off¢dRollover Stock Plan and the EIP, made a
determination to adjust outstanding Rollover ané Eptions for the special dividend to prevent tihatidn of the benefit or potential benefit of thptions.
The adjustment was in the form of a $1.00 divideqdivalent. Holders of the Rollover options wilteéve a cash payment equal to the amount of the
special dividend on the exercise of the optionmythe options' mandatory exercise period. Holdé&P options will receive a cash payment equah&o
amount of the special dividend payable on the laft¢ne date the dividend was paid or the vestirntip® EIP option, whichever is later.

On June 30, 2014 vested EIP option holders receveayment of $4.4 million , related to the spediaidends declared
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in fiscal years 2013 and 2014. On August 29, 208sted outstanding EIP option holders received ideld equivalent payment of $4.5 million related to
the special dividend declared in fiscal year 2@/.September 30, 2014, Rollover Options holdersived a dividend equivalent payment of $37.8 millio
related to special dividends declared in fiscary@®10, 2013, 2014, and 2015. On March 31, 204&ged EIP option holders received a payment of $0.1
million, related to the special dividends declairefiscal years 2013, 2014, and 2015.

Payment of the dividend equivalents were accoufteds modifications resulting in incremental bénefthe option holders resulting in additional
compensation expense of $0.6 million . Total conspéion expense recorded in conjunction with theneyt of all dividend equivalent to holders of
unvested EIP options for the fiscal year ended M&d; 2015 was $1.0 million . Future compensatimst celated to payment of the dividend equivalémts
holders of EIP options not yet recognized in tlaeshent of operations is $0.5 million and is expetb be recognized over 2.25 years.

As of March 31, 2015 and 2014 , the Company cafedla total recorded and unrecorded stock-baseg@emsation liability of $35.8 million and
$73.1 million , respectively, related to the spedigidends paid in July and December 2009, JurttAargust 2012, November 2013, and February and
August 2014, as follows:

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Rollover Rollover
EIP Options Options Total EIP Options Options Total
Current portion of liability* $ 3,697 $ 28,03 $ 31,73: $ 3,67 $ 36,247 $ 39,92:
Long-term portion of liability’ — — — — 25,96¢ 25,96¢
$ 3,697 $ 28,03t $ 31,73: $ 3,67t $ 62,21 $ 65,88¢

*Included in accrued compensation and benefits (Rpte
2Included in other long-term liabilities.

As of March 31, 2015, $4.1 million related to EDBtions will be recorded as liabilities as the opsi vest over the next four years. As of March 31,
2014 , there was an unrecorded liability of $7.2iom related to EIP options. There is no unrecdrtiebility related to Rollover options as of Mar8h,
2015 or 2014, as the Rollover options are fullyteds

The following table summarizes unvested restristedk activity for the periods presented:

Weighted
Average Grant
Number of Date
Shares Fair Value
Unvested Restricted Stock Awards
Unvested at March 31, 2014 1,296,01. 17.0¢
Granted 1,617,06 22.6:2
Vested 693,22¢ 17.3¢
Forfeited 1,83¢ 21.57
Unvested at March 31, 2015 2,218,01 21.02
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The following table summarizes stock option acjidr the periods presented:

Officers’ Rollover Stock Plan Options
Retirement Eligible:

Options outstanding at March 31, 2014
Granted

Forfeited

Expired

Exercised

Options outstanding at March 31, 2015
Non-Retirement Eligible:

Options outstanding at March 31, 2014
Granted

Forfeited

Expired

Exercised

Options outstanding at March 31, 2015
Equity Incentive Plan Options

Options outstanding at March 31, 2014
Granted

Forfeited

Expired

Exercised

Options outstanding at March 31, 2015

* Amount reduced for $ 4.642 dividend issued Decenii, 2009, $ 1.087 dividend issued July 27, 28Q%0 dividend issued May 29, 2012,

$6.50 dividend issued July 30, 2012.

** Reflects exercise price adjustment of $6.36 gramnt for the $6.50 dividend per share issued 30/y2012.

The following table summarizes unvested stock otir the periods presented:

Equity Incentive Plan Options
Unvested at March 31, 2014
Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Unvested at March 31, 2015

and the

Weighted

Average

Number of Exercise

Options Price
728,55( $ 0.01 *
728,55( 0.01 *
J— *
3,696,10. $ 0.01 *
1,838,97 0.01 *
1,857,121 ¢ 0.01 *

7,050,960 $ 9.3¢

306,26: 23.3¢

246,71( 13.3¢

833,71: 7.3C
6,276,80! ¢ 10.1¢  **

Weighted

Average Grant

Number of Date

Options Fair Value

3,403,05¢ $ 5.7¢

306,26: 5.5¢E

1,232,68! 6.0C

246,71( 5.31

2,229,92! g 5.6¢




The following table summarizes stock options ouldilag at March 31, 2015 :

Weighted Weighted
Stock Weighted Average Stock Weighted Average
Options Average Remaining Options Average Remaining
Range of exercise prices Outstanding Exercise Price Contractual Life  Intrinsic Value Exercisable Exercise Price Contractual Life Intrinsic Value
(In years) (In years)
Officers’ Rollover Stock
Plan
$0.01 1,857,126 $0.01 ) 0.25 $53,727 1,857,126 $0.01 0.25 $53,727
Equity Incentive Plan
$4.28 - $29.38 6,276,805 $10.19 (9 5.71 $ 117,66: 4,046,880 $7.81 4.91 $85,511

(1) Amount reduced for $ 4.642 dividend issued Demer 11, 2009, $ 1.087 dividend issued July 279260.50 dividend issued May 29, 2012 and the
$6.50 dividend issued July 30, 2012.

(2) Reflects exercise price adjustment of $6.36gpent for the $6.50 dividend per share issued 30)y2012.

18. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The accounting guidance for fair value measuremesttblishes a three-tier value hierarchy, whidbripizes the inputs used in measuring fair value
as follows: observable inputs such as quoted piicastive markets (Level 1); inputs other thantgdaorices in active markets that are observalieei
directly or indirectly (Level 2); and unobservabiputs in which there is little or no market datdnich requires the Company to develop its own
assumptions (Level 3).

A financial instrument's level within the fair valtnierarchy is based on the lowest level of inpat ts significant to the fair value measuremehe T
financial instruments measured at fair value ingbeompanying consolidated balance sheets coristst following:

Recurring Fair Value Measurements
as of March 31, 2015

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 48,94: $ — 3 — 3 48,94

Money market funds (1) — 158,27! — 158,27!
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 48,94: $ 158,27! % — $ 207,21
Liabilities:

Contingent earnout liability (2) — — 4,50( 4,50(
Total liabilities $ — 3 — 3 4500 $ 4,50(

Recurring Fair Value Measurements
as of March 31, 2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 37,88t $ — % — % 37,88t
Money market funds (1) — 222,10t — 222,10t
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 37,88¢ $ 222,10¢ $ — 3 259,99:

(1) Level 2 cash and cash equivalents are investesireynmarket funds that are intended to maintaialales net asset value of $1.00 per share by
investing in liquid, high quality U.S. dollatenominated money market instruments. Therefoeefain value approximates the carrying value. Dejpenon
our short-term liquidity needs, we make regulangfars between money market funds and other cashabents.
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(2) On October 9, 2014, the Company entered irtordingent consideration arrangement in conneatiitim a business acquisition. Under the arrangement,
the Company agreed to pay up to a maximum of $8omiin cash to the seller if certain financial foemance thresholds are achieved in calendar years
2016 and 2017. The fair value of the contingensa®ration liability as of March 31, 2015 was $ilion and is a Level 3 fair value measurement
recorded within other long-term liabilities. It waalued using a Monte Carlo simulation and the ikgyt besides projected cash flows was volatility,
estimated as 30% based on the asset volatilitpmiparable publicly-traded companies. An increaser@hse) in volatility in isolation would resultan

lower (higher) fair value measurement. After thidahrecording of this liability as a part of tipeirchase accounting, there were no subsequentehiamg

fair value recorded during the six months endeddi&d, 2015. Any future changes in the fair valfithis contingent consideration liability will be
recognized in earnings during the applicable period

The fair value of the Company's debt instrumens@pmates its carrying value at March 31, 2015 kfadch 31, 2014 . The fair value of debt is
determined based on interest rates available tatrwlith terms and maturities similar to the Compamxisting debt arrangements (Level 2 inputs).

The following table presents a summary of changeke fair value of the Company's contingent earhabhility categorized as Level 3 for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2015:

Contingent Earnout

Liability
Balance at March 31, 2014 $ —
Issuances 4,50(
Balance at March 31, 2015 $ 4,50(

19. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Carlyle Group is the largest shareholder ofGbepany. On November 5, 2014, the Company entatedn agreement with an affiliate of The
Carlyle Group to repurchase 1,000,G0@res of our Class A common stock pursuant toefmerchase program described in Note 16 aboveshaes wer
repurchased at a price of $25.10 per share agfpamrivate non-underwritten transaction. On Faby2, 2015, the Company entered into an undenriti
agreement with an affiliate of the Carlyle Grouptlee selling stockholder, and Morgan Stanley & OoC, or the underwriter, pursuant to which (i) the
selling stockholder sold 12,000,000 shares of das<CA Common Stock to the underwriter and (ii) @mmpany repurchased 1,000,000 shares of our Clas:
A common stock from the underwriter. The sharesewepurchased at a price of $28.36 per share fiemnderwriter.

From time to time, and in the ordinary course ddibass: (1) other Carlyle portfolio companies erghg Company as a subcontractor or service
provider, and (2) the Company engages other Caplytfolio companies as subcontractors or serviogigers. Revenue and cost associated with these
related parties for fiscal 2015 were $1.1 milliod&857,000 , respectively. Revenue and cost asdowith these related parties for fiscal 2014ewer
$444,000 and $368,000 , respectively. Revenue astthssociated with these related party transacfanfiscal 2013 were $739,000 and $657,000 ,
respectively.

In addition, investment vehicles affiliated with& Rarlyle Group participated in a lender syndidatine Company’s outstanding debt in the amounts
of $47.0 million and $55.5 million at March 31, Z0and 2014 , respectively. The participation byhsmeestment vehicles in the syndication of the
Company's debt during fiscal 2015 and 2014 was doren arm'’s length basis.

On July 31, 2008, the Company entered into a manageagreement, or Management Agreement, with Talie¥ US, L.L.C., or TC Group, a
company affiliated with Carlyle. In accordance witle Management Agreement, TC Group provides thegamy with advisory, consulting and other
services and the Company pays TC Group an aggragatel fee of $1.0 million plus expenses. In addjtthe Company made a one-time payment to TC
Group of $20.0 million for investment banking, fircdal advisory, and other services provided toGbenpany in connection with the acquisition of Booz
Allen Hamilton, Inc. in 2008 by The Carlyle Grougor fiscal 2015 , 2014 , and 2013, the Companyriree! $1.0 million per year in advisory fees.
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20. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Leases

The Company leases office space under noncancelpbtating leases that expire at various datesigfir@026. The terms for the facility leases
generally provide for rental payments on a gradliatale, which are recognized on a straight-liresbaver the terms of the leases, including redsgna
assured renewal periods, from the time the Companirols the leased property. Lease incentivesem@ded as a deferred credit and recognized as a
reduction to rent expense on a straight-line bagis the lease term. Rent expense was approxims@2@ million , net of $696,000 of sublease income
$103.5 million , net of $2.5 million of subleasedme, and $105.9 million , net of $5.5 million obfease income, for fiscal 2015, 2014 , and 2013,
respectively.

Future minimum operating lease payments for norelabte operating leases and future minimum incamn@&dncancelable sublease rentals are
summarized as follows:

Operating Operating
Lease Sublease
For the Fiscal Year Ending March 31, Payments Income

2016 $ 70,15¢ $ 19¢
2017 43,01« 47
2018 31,60¢ 17
2019 26,30¢ 1C
2020 22,17 4
Thereafter 48,46 —
$ 241,72: $ 27¢

Rent expense is included in occupancy costs, a coem of general and administrative expenses,@srsbn the consolidated statements of
operations, and includes rent, sublease income tinwh parties, real estate taxes, utilities, pagkisecurity, repairs and maintenance, and staragfs.

As a result of the July 2008 acquisition, the Comypassigned a total of nine leases to Booz & Cac¢lvhas subsequently changed its name to
Strategy&. The Company remains liable for two |sa®e facilities located in Chicago and London unithe terms of the original leases should Strategy&
default on its obligations. All other leases assifjto Strategy& have expired. There were no evafrdgfault under these leases as of March 31, 2015
2014 , and the maximum potential amount of undistedifuture payments is $9.3 million . The Chicéemse expires in November 2015 and the London
lease expires in March 2017. Based on the Compasgsssment of the likelihood of future paymentamounts have been recorded related to the
Company’s contingent liability on such leases.

Letters of Credit and Third-Party Guarantees

As of March 31, 2015 and 2014 , the Company wasirgently liable under open standby letters of @#radd bank guarantees issued by our banks in
favor of third parties that totaled $5.3 millionda$2.4 million , respectively. These letters ofdit@and bank guarantees primarily support insuramcebid
and performance obligations. At March 31, 2015 2084 , approximately $5.2 million and $2.4 milliohthese instruments reduce the available
borrowings under the revolving credit facility. Tremainder are guaranteed under a separate $3idnnficility established in fiscal 2015, $4.9 rioh of
which was available to the Company at March 315201

Government Contracting Matters

For fiscal 2015, 2014 , and 2013 , approximat&09 98% , and 99% , respectively, of the Compargienue was generated from contracts where
the end client was an agency or department of tBe §bvernment, including contracts where Boozm\plerformed in either a prime or subcontract
position, and regardless of the geographic locatiamhich the work was performed. Contracts with thS. government are subject to extensive legal an
regulatory requirements and, from time to time entthe ordinary course of business, agencies ofltBe government investigate whether the Company’s
operations are conducted in accordance with trezpgirements and the terms of the relevant conttgctsing investigative techniques such as subpoena
or civil investigative demands. U.S. governmengestigations of the Company, whether related tdtwapany’s U.S. government contracts or conducted
for other reasons, could result in administratoreil, or criminal liabilities, including repaymesitfines, or penalties being imposed upon the Comnpa
could lead to suspension or debarment from futu& Qlovernment contracting. Management believieastadequately reserved for any losses that may be
experienced from any investigation of which itvgaae. The Defense Contract Management Agency Aditnitiive Contracting Officer has negotiated
annual final indirect cost rates through fiscalry2@07. Audits of subsequent years may result &t @ductions and/or penalties. Management beligves
has adequately reserved for any losses that may be
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experienced from any such reductions and/or pesaléis of March 31, 2015 and 2014 , the Companydw@sded a liability of approximately $205.3
million and $189.8 million , respectively, for itsirrent best estimate, amounts to be refundedsimimers for potential adjustments from audits vienes
of contract costs incurred subsequent to fiscal 26a7.

Litigation
The Company is involved in legal proceedings angstigations arising in the ordinary course of bass, including those relating to employment
matters, relationships with clients and contractiotellectual property disputes, and other busineatters. These legal proceedings seek variousdies)
including claims for monetary damages in varyingants that currently range up to $40 million or anspecified as to amount. Although the outcome of
any such matter is inherently uncertain and masnaterially adverse, based on current informaticanagement does not expect any of the currently

ongoing audits, reviews, investigations, or litigatto have a material adverse effect on the Coripdimancial condition and results of operatioAs.of
March 31, 2015 and 2014 , there are no materiabatsaaccrued in the consolidated financial statésnestated to these proceedings.

Six former officers and stockholders who had degghthe company prior to the acquisition have fdedtal of nine suits in various jurisdictions,
with original filing dates ranging from July 3, 20¢hrough December 15, 2009, against us and cestaior current and former directors and officdiisree
of these suits were amended on July 2, 2010 amdftitther amended into one consolidated complairfeptember 7, 2010. Another two of the original
ninesuits were consolidated into one complaint on Sepe&r 24, 2014. Each of the suits arises out o&tuiisition and alleges that the former stockhal
are entitled to certain payments that they woulteh@ceived if they had held their stock at thestwhthe acquisition. Some of the suits also altbgéthe
acquisition price paid to stockholders was insigfit. The various suits assert claims for breaatootract, tortious interference with contract,amte of
fiduciary duty, civil Racketeer Influenced and Qgotr Organizations Act, or RICO, violations, viotats of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act,
and/or securities and common law fraud. Three edé¢tsuits have been dismissed with all appealsistdth The two suits that were consolidated in® on
action on September 24, 2014 were settled on ApriR015. One of the remaining suits has been di&ediby the United States District Court for the
Southern District of California and is on appedbbe the United States Court of Appeals for thetNi@ircuit. The other three remaining suits thateve
previously consolidated on September 7, 2010 haea kismissed by the United States District Caurtife Southern District of New York, but are still
subject to appeal by the plaintiffs. As of March 2015 , the aggregate alleged damages soughase four remaining suits was approximately $291.7
million (which is sought to be trebled pursuanRI€O) plus punitive damages, costs, and fees. Adasth 31, 2014 , the aggregate alleged damages
sought was approximately $348.7 million ( $291.8iom of which is sought to be trebled pursuanRI€O) plus punitive damages, costs, and fees.

Although the outcome of any of these cases is @ntruncertain and may be materially adverse,dasecurrent information, management does
not expect them to have a material adverse effecuo financial condition and results of operations

21. BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company reports operating results and finawigitd in one operating and reportable segmentCbinepany manages its business as a single
profit center in order to promote collaboratiompyide comprehensive functional service offering®ss its entire client base, and provide incentiges
employees based on the success of the organizatiarwhole. Although certain information regardsegved markets and functional capabilities is
discussed for purposes of promoting an understgrafithe Company’s complex business, the Compamages its business and allocates resources at the
consolidated level of a single operating segment.

F-33




22. UNAUDITED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

Revenue
Operating income

Income before income taxes

Net income

Earnings per common share:

Basic (1)
Diluted (1)

Revenue
Operating income

Income before income taxes

Net income

Earnings per common share:

Basic (1)
Diluted (1)

23. SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

2015 Quarters

The following schedule summarizes valuation andifyirag accounts for the periods presented:

Allowance for doubtful accounts:

Beginning balance

Provision for doubtful accounts
Allowance for doubtful accounts from acquisitions
Charges against allowance
Ending balance
Tax valuation allowance:

Beginning balance

Deductions and other adjustments

First Second Third Fourth
1,322,29 1,304,84 $ 1,304,68! 1,342,94
139,02 121,98: 105,25¢ 92,56(
119,04¢ 104,97: 86,61¢ 75,28(
71,11¢ 65,28¢ 52,80° 43,36
0.4¢ 04: % 0.3t 0.2¢
0.47 04z $ 0.3t 0.2¢

2014 Quarters

First Second Third Fourth
1,427,69. 1,378,021 $ 1,273,15! 1,399,83;
138,67¢ 135,66 97,03« 89,23’
118,01! 113,79¢ 78,18 70,79:
70,31 67,81: 47,167 46,89t
0.51 0.4¢ $ 0.32 0.32
0.4¢ 0.4t % 0.31 0.3C

(1) Earnings per share are computed independentiyaich of the quarters presented and thereforenatasum to the total for the fiscal year.
Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013
1457 $ 18¢ 79¢
(2,100 1,621 397
— — 32
— (352 (2,040
357 % 1,457 18¢
— 3 — 36,33t
— — (36,33
— % — —

Ending balance
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participatioawfChief Executive Officer and Chief Financiafi©ér, has evaluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures, as definedilasRl3a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, as of the end of the period aeder
by this Annual Report. Based on that evaluatiom,Ghief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officconcluded that, as of the end of the period reml/e
by this Annual Report, our disclosure controls pratedures were effective as of March 31, 2015.

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control overFinancial Reporting and Attestation Report of theRegistered Public Accounting Firm

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finahagorting. Our internal control system was
designed to provide reasonable assurance to ouagearent and board of directors regarding the riétiabf financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes.

Our management conducted an assessment of théwaffexss of our internal control over financial@gjng as of March 31, 2015. This assessment
was based on the criteria set forth by the CommifeSponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Caaion ininternal Control — Integrated Framework
(2013 framework) Based on this assessment, management has cahthadeas of March 31, 2015, our internal contnadr financial reporting was
effective.

Our independent registered public accounting fiem issued a report on the effectiveness of oumateontrol over financial reporting, which is
below.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal coowe financial reporting, as defined in Rules 13¢)land 15d-15(f) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, that occurred in the fourth fiscal quadkthe period covered by this Annual Report thaterially affected, or are reasonably likely to entlly
affect, our internal control over financial repodi
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Report of Ernst & Young LLP,
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm,
Regarding Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation

We have audited Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corgia’s internal control over financial reporting @sMarch 31, 2015, based on criteria established i
Internal Control - Integrated Framework issuedi®y €Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of thedway Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO
criteria). Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporatianinanagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial reporting, amd f
its assessment of the effectiveness of internatrabover financial reporting included in the acqumying Management’s Annual Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsipilg to express an opinion on the company’s interaatrol over financial reporting based on ouriaud

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8d@nited States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonakdeirance about whether effective internal cowtret financial reporting was maintained in all mmite
respects. Our audit included obtaining an undeditgnof internal control over financial reportiragsessing the risk that a material weakness etésti)g
and evaluating the design and operating effects®oéinternal control based on the assessedatigkperforming such other procedures as we comslder
necessary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @gess designed to provide reasonable assuranadiregthe reliability of financial reporting a
the preparation of financial statements for extiepoiaposes in accordance with generally accepteduwading principles. A company’s internal contrgko
financial reporting includes those policies andcgidures that (1) pertain to the maintenance ofrdsaat, in reasonable detail, accurately andi/fedflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assdtsecdompany; (2) provide reasonable assurancérétmsactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordanitie generally accepted accounting principles, dnad teceipts and expenditures of the company ang be
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngen@ent and directors of the company; and (3) peové@dsonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usedisposition of the company’s assets that coaleha material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or détaisstatements. Also, projections of any evatunatf
effectiveness to future periods are subject taidiethat controls may become inadequate becauseanfges in conditions, or that the degree of campé
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corpdien maintained, in all material respects, effegtinternal control over financial reporting as oédh
31, 2015 based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsda# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@nited States), the consolidated balance sheets
of Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation as of Mha 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014 and the relatedalmlated statements of operations,
comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, antl fasvs for each of the three years in the periodesl March 31, 2015 of Booz Allen Hamilton Holding
Corporation and our report dated May 21, 2015 esqwe an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

McLean, Virginia

May 21, 2015

62




Item 9B. Other Information.
None.

PART Il

Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govenae.

Information related to our directors is set fortidar the caption “Election of Directors” of our RydStatement for our Annual Meeting of
Stockholders scheduled for July 30, 2015. Suchrindédion is incorporated herein by reference.

Information relating to our Executive Officers ixiuded in Part | of this Annual Report under thpton “Executive Officers of the Registrant.”

Information relating to compliance with Section 46¢f the Exchange Act is set forth under the ceptSection 16(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance” of our 2015 Proxy Statem8uich information is incorporated herein by refeeenc

Information related to our code of ethics is settfainder the caption “Corporate Governance ance@information Concerning the Board of
Directors and its Committees” of our 2015 Proxyt&tgent. Such information is incorporated hereimeédgrence.

Information relating to the Audit Committee and Bibaf Directors determinations concerning whethereamber of the Audit Committee is a
“financial expert” as that term is defined undemit407(d)(5) of Regulation S-K is set forth under ¢aption “Corporate Governance and General
Information Concerning the Board of Directors atsdGommittees” of our 2015 Proxy Statement. Su@brimation is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11.  Executive Compensatior

Information relating to this item is set forth undiee captions “Compensation Discussion and AngJ{/8Director Compensation,” “Compensation
Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” d8dmpensation Committee Report on Executive Corsgon” of our 2015 Proxy Statement. Such
information is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ahbBnagement and Related Stockholder Matte

Equity Compensation Plans

The following table presents information concerrting securities authorized for issuance pursuaotitequity compensation plans as of March 31,
2015:

Number of
Securities
Remaining
Number of Weighted Available for
Securities to Be Average Future Issuance
Issued Upon Exercise Under Equity
Exercise of Price of Compensation
Outstanding Outstanding Plans (Excluding
Options, Options, Securities
Warrants and Warrants and Reflected in
Rights Rights Column (a))
Plan Category (@) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by securityhislde 8,597,971 (1)(2) $ 7.87 12,753,43
Equity compensation plans not approved by secuoitigrs — N/A —
Total 8,597,970 (1)(2) $ 7.81 12,753,43

(1) Column (a) includes: 464,047 shares that theemn granted as restricted stock units (RSUs) dr88®31 shares granted as options under our equity
compensation plans. The weighted average pricelummn (b) does not take into account shares ispuesliant to RSUs.
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(2) Upon the exercise of all outstanding options, witissue approximately 8,133,766 shares of Clagnfmon Stock and will redeem approxima
165 fractional shares for cash.

Information relating to the security ownership eftain beneficial owners and management is incliledir 2015 Proxy Statement under the caption
“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Ownersld&anagement” and is incorporated herein by refagen

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence

Information relating to this item is set forth undiee captions “Certain Relationships and RelatdyPTransactions” and “Corporate Governance and
General Information Concerning the Board of Direstand its Committees” of our 2015 Proxy Statem®nth information is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Servict

Information relating to this item is set forth undiee caption “Independent Registered Public ActiogrFirm Fees” of our 2015 Proxy Statement.
Such information is incorporated herein by refeeenc

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule

(a) The following documents are filed as part @ thnnual Report:
(1) Our financial statements filed herewith are sethfan Item 8 of this Annual Repc

(2) Financial statement schedules have been ahlitteause either they are not applicable or theineddjinformation is included in the
financial statements or the notes thereto.

(3) The attached list of exhibits in the “Exhibitdex” immediately following the signature pages to thimAal Report is filed as part of tl
Annual Report and is incorporated herein by refegen

64




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be signedson it
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authdrizeWashington, DC, on this 21st day of May, 2015

BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING CORPORATION
(Registrant)

By: /s/ Horacio D. Rozanski
Name: Horacio D. Rozanski
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the SecuritiesoA&B34, this report has been signed by the follgwersons in the capacities and on the datesaitetic

Signature Title Date

/s/ Horacio D. Rozanski President, Chief Executive Officer and Director May 21, 2015
Horacio D. Rozanski (Principal Executive Officer)
/sl Kevin L. Cook Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officada May 21, 2015
Kevin L. Cook Treasurer (Principal Financial and Accounting GHfic
/sl Ralph W. Shrader Chairman of the Board May 21, 2015
Ralph W. Shrader

Director May 21, 2015
Joan Lordi C. Amble
/s/ Peter Clare Director May 21, 2015
Peter Clare
/sl lan Fujiyama Director May 21, 2015
lan Fujiyama
/s/ Mark Gaumond Director May 21, 2015
Mark Gaumond

Director May 21, 2015
Allan M. Holt
/sl Arthur E. Johnson Director May 21, 2015
Arthur E. Johnson
/sl Gretchen W. McClain Director May 21, 2015

Gretchen W. McClain
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/s/ Philip A. Odeen Director May 21, 2015
Philip A. Odeen

/sl Charles O. Rossotti Director May 21, 2015
Charles O. Rossotti
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Index

Description

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

10.1

10.2%

10.3t

10.4%

10.571

10.61

10.7%

10.8t

10.9t

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May @882by and among Booz Allen Hamilton Inc., BooteAlHamilton Holding Corporation
(formerly known as Explorer Holding Corporationpd Allen Hamilton Investor Corporation (formerlpdwn as Explorer Investor
Corporation), Explorer Merger Sub Corporation amB& Company Inc. (Incorporated by reference tbibix 2.1 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-6U45))

Spin Off Agreement, dated as of May 15, 2008, by among Booz Allen Hamilton Inc., Booz & Companyléings, LLC, Booz & Company
Inc., Booz & Company Intermediate | Inc. and BooZ&mpany Intermediate Il Inc. (Incorporated by refee to Exhibit 2.2 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Ridle333-167645))

Amendment to the Agreement and Plan of Merger hadspin Off Agreement, dated as of July 30, 209&rx among Booz Allen Hamilton
Inc., Booz Allen Hamilton Investor Corporation (fioerly known as Explorer Investor Corporation), Expt Merger Sub Corporation, Booz &
Company Holdings, LLC, Booz & Company Inc., BooZ&mpany Intermediate | Inc. and Booz & Companyrimediate Il Inc.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.3 to thempany’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File 383-167645))

Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorponeof Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation (larporated by reference to Exhibit
3.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report for the peoded September 30, 2014 on Form 10-Q (File Bib-321972))

Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of Booz Allemitttan Holding Corporation (Incorporated by refezerto Exhibit 3.2 to the
Company'’s Quarterly Report for the period endeddbamer 31, 2010 on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-34972))

Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement (locatgx by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Compsuériodic Report on Form 8-K
filed on January 30, 2015) (File No. 001-34972))

Form of Stock Certificate (Incorporated by referte Exhibit 4.5 to the Company’s Registration &tant on Form S-1 (File No. 333-
167645))

Management Agreement, among Booz Allen Hamiltondithg Corporation (formerly known as Explorer HolgliG@orporation), Booz Allen
Hamilton Inc., and TC Group V US, LLC, dated aslaliy 31, 2008 (Incorporated by reference to ExHibi6 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-167645))

Second Amended and Restated Equity Incentive RIBoaz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation (Incorgded by reference to Exhibit 10.2
to the Company’s Quarterly Report for the periodezhSeptember 30, 2014 on Form 10-Q (File No. Q®I~3)) T

Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation Officers’dover Stock Plan (Incorporated by reference thigik 10.8 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 33364&)) T

Form of Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation Roler Stock Option Agreement (Incorporated by refiee to Exhibit 10.9 to the
Company'’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Ride333-167645))t

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Equityehitive Plan of Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corpacet (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.10 to the Company’s Registration Stateno® Form S-1 (File No. 333-167645))t

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Equityehitive Plan of Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corpacet (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.11 to the Company’s Registration Stateno® Form S-1 (File No. 333-167645))t

Form of Subscription Agreement (Incorporated berefice to Exhibit 10.12 to the Company’s RegisiraStatement on Form S-1 (File No.
333-167645))

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Directordemthe Equity Incentive Plan of Booz Allen Hamiltbolding Corporation (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s Riegtion Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-167p645

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Employeedenthe Equity Incentive Plan of Booz Allen Hamiltblolding Corporation
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to@wnpany’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Ride333-167645))
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10.10t

10.11t

10.12t

10.13t

10.14t

10.15t

10.16t

10.17t

10.18t

10.19t

10.20t

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24t

10.25t

10.26t

Amended and Restated Booz Allen Hamilton Holdingg@eation Annual Incentive Plan (Incorporated bigrence to Exhibit 10.10 to the
Company'’s Quarterly Report for the period ended&aper 30, 2014 on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-34972))

Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation Officersefrement Plan (Incorporated by reference to ExHiBi16 to the Company'Registratiol
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-167645))

Officer's Comprehensive Medical and Dental Plansdgkporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to then@any’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (File No. 333-167645))

Retired Officer's Comprehensive Medical and Deftains (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10d.the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-167645))

Group Variable Universal Life Insurance*

Group Personal Excess Liability Insurance (Incoapexat by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the CompaRggistration Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 333-167645))

Annual Performance Program (Incorporated by refaaéa Exhibit 10.22 to the Company’s Registratitet&nent on Form S-1 (File No. 333-
167645))

Form of Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation Bator and Officer Indemnification Agreement (Inaongted by reference to Exhibit
10.23 to the Company’s Registration Statement amF®-1 (File No. 333-167645))

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Equityehtove Plan of Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corpaaat (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.23 to the Company’s Annual Report fog trear ended March 31, 2011 on Form 10-K (File 004.-34972))

Officer Transition Policy (Incorporated by refererto Exhibit 10.24 to the Company’s Annual Reportthe year ended March 31, 2011 on
Form 10-K (File No. 001-34972))

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Equityehitive Plan of Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corpacet (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.25 to the Company’s Quarterly Reporttfoz period ended December 31, 2011 on Form 10H@ . 001-34972))

Credit Agreement among Booz Allen Hamilton Inc.ttees Borrower, the several lenders from time tcetiparties thereto, Bank of America,
N.A., as Administrative Agent, Collateral Agent dsduing Lender, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner &i8nincorporated and Credit Suisse
Securities (USA) LLC, as Joint Lead Arrangers, Melynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, ditsSuisse Securities (USA) LLC,
Barclays Bank PLC, Citigroup Global Markets IncSBIC Securities (USA) Inc., J.P. Morgan Securitie€] Morgan Stanley Senior Fundir
Inc. and Sumimoto Mitsui Banking Corporation, amtiBookrunners, Credit Suisse Securities (USA) |.B€ Syndication Agent, Barclays
Bank PLC, Citigroup Global Markets Inc., HSBC Sdtess (USA) Inc., J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, Mongatanley Senior Funding, Inc.,
Sumimoto Mitsui Banking Corporation and The Bank okyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., as Co-Documentationefsts, dated as of July 31, 2012
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tlempany’s Periodic Report on Form 8-K filed on Auglis2012 (File No. 001-34972))

Guarantee and Collateral Agreement, among BoozAlamilton Investor Corporation, Booz Allen Hamilttnc., and the Subsidiary
Guarantors party thereto, in favor of Bank of AroariN.A., as Collateral Agent, dated as of JulyZI1,2 (Incorporated by reference to Exh
10.2 to the Company’s Periodic Report on Form 8lkédfon August 1, 2012 (File No. 001-34972))

First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as afusti 16, 2013, among Booz Allen Hamilton Inc., asrBwer, Booz Allen Hamilton
Investor Corporation, Booz Allen Hamilton EnginegriHolding Co., LLC, Booz Allen Hamilton Engineggiservices, LLC, SDI Technology
Corporation, ASE, Inc. and , Booz Allen Hamiltotdmational, Inc., as Guarantors,, Bank of Ameri¢#., as Administrative Agent,
Collateral Agent and New Refinancing Tranche B Téender, and the other Lenders and financial imstihs from time to time party thereto.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to trwmpany’s Periodic Report on Form 8-K filed on Aug2®, 2013 (File No. 001-34972))

Form of Employment Agreement (Incorporated by mfee to Exhibit 10.27 to the Company’s Annual Refmrthe year ended March 31,
2014 on Form 10-K (File No. 001-34972))

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the Améradel Restated Equity Incentive Plan of Booz Alamilton Holding Corporation
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to@wenpany’s Annual Report for the year ended MarcH2814 on Form 10-K (File No. 001-
34972))

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under tineefidded and Restated Equity Incentive Plan of BdEnAdamilton Holding Corporation
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to@mmpany’s Annual Report for the year ended Margh2814 on Form 10-K (File No. 001-
34972))
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10.27

23

311

31.2

32.1

32.2

101

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated asayf M 2014, among Booz Allen Hamilton Inc., as Barer, Booz Allen Hamilton
Investor Corporation, Booz Allen Hamilton EnginegriHolding Co., LLC, Booz Allen Hamilton Engineggiservices, LLC, SDI Technology
Corporation, ASE, Inc. and Booz Allen Hamilton Imtational, Inc., as Guarantors, Bank of Americd.Nas Administrative Agent, Collateral
Agent and Issuing Lender, and the other Lenderdiaadcial institutions from time to time party tie¢o (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Company’s Periodic Report on Form 8lédfon May 13, 2014 (File No. 001-34972))

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registétablic Accounting Firm*
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of the Clitgkcutive Officer*
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of the Chitefancial Officer*

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer reqedt by Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) and Sect®B0D of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the
United States Code (18 U.S.C. 1350)*

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer reged by Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) and SecRB0 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the
United States Code (18 U.S.C. 1350)*

The following materials from Booz Allen Hamilton Hiing Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K fbe fiscal year ended March 31,
2015, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Repgrt.anguage): (i) Consolidated Balance Sheetd Baoch 31, 2015 and 2014; (i)
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Ifigears ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013;Gonsolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income for the fiscal years endedcMat, 2015, 2014 and 2013; (iv) Consolidated States of Cash Flows for the fiscal
years ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013; (v) @idased Statements of Stockholders' Equity forftbeal years ended March 31, 2015,
2014 and 2013; and (vi) Notes to Consolidated FiisiStatements.

*

Filed electronically herewit

T Management contract or compensatory arrangement.
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EXHIBIT 102
PARTICIPATING EMPLOYER DATA
Participating Employer:

Plan Effective Date:
Plan Anniversary Date:

Exhibit 10.14

Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation
8283 Greensboro Drive

McLean, VA 22102

October 1, 2014

January 1, 2015 and each subsequent
January 1%

Rate Guarantee: Except as stated in the Group Policy, MetLife will not increase Plan Premium rates for the first thirty-seven months (October

1, 2014 through December 31, 2017).

Premium Due Date: Cumulative monthly Premium is due no later than the fifteenth of the month for the previous month's coverage. The first
monthly premium will be payable on February 15, 2015. Subsequent premiums will be payable on the fifteenth day of each succeeding month,
Failure to remit monthly premiums by the due date will reduce employees' cash value. Any unpaid cost of insurance premium due at
termination of the GVUL or GUL contract may be collected from employees' GVUL or GUL certificate cash value.

Eligibility
Requirements:

Actively at Work
Requirements:

Initial Eligibles
Defined:

New Eligibles
Defined:

New Hires
Defined:

Eligible Class or Classes of Employees
To be eligible for GVUL coverage, employees must meet the Actively at Work Requirements on the effective date

of the coverage , and be a United States citizen or Permanent Resident Alien with a taxpayer identification
number (social security number) working in United States locations.

To be eligible for GUL coverage, employees must meet the Actively at Work Requirements on the effective date
of coverage in any other location and be approved by MetLife for such coverage.

There is one class of eligible employees. Class 1 consists of the CEO, Executive Vice Presidents and Senior
Vice Presidents.

Actively at Work Requirements: An employee must be in full-time Employment with the Participating Employer on
the effective date of coverage, performing all the usual and customary duties of his or her job. They must be
working at the Participating Employer's place of business; an alternate place approved by the Employer; or a
place to which the Participating Employer's business requires travel.

Members of Class 1 who are eligible as of the Plan Effective Date .

Individuals who meet the Eligibility Requirements and become members of Class 1 subsequent to the Plan
Effective Date .

Newly hired individuals who meet the Eligibility Requirements and become members of Class 1.

GPNP99 TRUST PLAN EFFECTIVE DATE: OCTOBER 1, 2014 Page 1 of 4




EXHIBIT 102

PARTICIPATING EMPLOYER DATA (continued)

Effective Dates of Guaranteed Issue and
Simplified Issue Coverage

Basic Coverage Definition:

Supplemental Coverage Definition:
Basic Coverage Amount:
Supplemental Coverage Amount:
Minimum Coverage Amount:
Maximum Coverage Amount:
Guaranteed Issue Coverage Amounts:

Individual Effective Date

For Initial Eligibles, Guaranteed Issue MetLife GVUUGUL Basic coverage will be effective as of the Plan
Effective Date . At the Participating Employer's request, Initial Eligibles who fail to actively enroll for the MetLife
GVUL Basic coverage will be passively enrolled for such coverage.

For New Eligibles, Guaranteed Issue MetLife GVUUGUL Basic coverage will be effective as of the first of the
month of date of eligibility. At the Participating Employer's request, New Eligibles who fail to actively enroll for the
MetLife GVUL Basic coverage will be passively enrolled for such coverage.

For New Hires, Guaranteed Issue Guaranteed Issue MetLife GVUL/GUL Basic coverage will be effective as of
the first of the month of date of hire. At the Participating Employer's request, New Hires who fail to actively enroll
for the MetLife GVUL Basic coverage will be passively enrolled for such coverage.

Employee Insurance Benefits

The amount of life insurance coverage the Participating Employer has agreed to provide to eligible class
members by paying them additional compensation to cover the cost.

Coverage in excess of the Basic Coverage Amount.

$2,000.000

N/A

$100,000

$3,000,000

For Initial Eligibles:  The MetLife GVUUGUL Basic coverage amount.

For New Eligibles: The MetLife GVUUGUL Basic coverage amount.
For New Hires : The MetLife GVULIGUL Basic coverage amount.

GPNP99 TRUST PLAN EFFECTIVE DATE: OCTOBER 1, 2014 Page 2 of 4




EXHIBIT 102

PARTICIPATING EMPLOYER DATA (continued)

Guaranteed Issue Definition:
Guaranteed Issue Requirements:

Simplified Issue Definition:
Simplified Issue Requirements:

Application Period:

Late Enrollment:

Coverage issued without Medical Evidence of Insurability (MEOQI), subject to the requirements set forth below:

*  MetLife must receive the enroliment form within 60 days of initial eligibility for any coverage which is not
eligible for Passive Enrollment.
* Participation requirements included in the MetUfe GVUL Proposal Summary must be met.

*  Underwriting approval is required for all participants over the age of 70 unless replacing existing
coverage.
Guaranteed Issue Basic coverage will not be withheld pending approval of any coverage applied for in excess of
Guaranteed Issue amounts,

Coverage in excess of Guaranteed Issue coverage.

Simplified Issue requires underwriting approval. No person shall be insured for Simplified Issue coverage until such
person has provided the required Medical Evidence of Insurability (MEOI) and coverage has been approved in
Writing by MetLife. MEOI requirements apply to any coverage in excess of the Guaranteed Issue Coverage
Amounts described above. Minimum MEOI requirements include completion of an authorization form and a medical
guestionnaire. In some instances, MetLife may also require the completion of an additional medical questionnaire,
ParaMed exam, and/or any other information as may necessary to evaluate insurability. Required tests and
ParaMed exams will be scheduled at the convenience of the applicant. Parameds conducted in the United States
will be paid for by MetLife.

An employee who is eligible for Guaranteed Issue coverage other than Basic coverage must submit an enrollment
form to MetLife no later than 60 days after the date of initial eligibility. If the employee fails to submit an application
for such coverage within the specified Application Period, but subsequently applies for coverage, it will be deemed
a Late Enrollment subject to Simplified Issue rules.

If an eligible employee actively declines life insurance when initially eligible, but later requests coverage, MEOI and
underwriter approval will be required for all coverage amounts. Minimum MEOI requirements include completion of
an authorization form and a medical questionnaire. In some instances, MetLife may also require the completion of
an additional medical questionnaire, ParaMed exam and/or any other information necessary to evaluate
insurability. Required tests and ParaMed exams will be scheduled at the convenience of the applicant. Parameds
conducted in the United States will be paid for by MetLife.

Late Enrollment coverage will be effective as of the first of the month following underwriter approval, subject to
the monthly underwriting cut-off dates. Enroliment forms approved by underwriting after this date will be
effective as of the first of the next following month to avoid retroactive payroll deductions.

GPNP99 TRUST PLAN EFFECTIVE DATE: OCTOBER 1, 2014 Page 3 of 4




EXHIBIT 102

PARTICIPATING EMPLOYER DATA (continued)

Employee Insurance Benefits (For Spouse/Domestic Pa  rtner, Dependent Children)

Accelerated Benefits Rider:

Will Preparation Service Rider:

Estate Resolution Services Rider:

Name/Address of Subsidiary,
Affiliate, Division, Branch and
Other Similar Entity

N/A
Certificate Number
Certificate Form
Applies To
Effective Date

Certificate Number
Certificate Form
Applies To
Effective Date

Certificate Number
Certificate Form
Applies To
Effective Date

Certificate Number
Certificate Form
Applies To
Effective Date

Certificate Number
Certificate Form
Applies To
Effective Date

GPNP99 TRUST

PLAN EFFECTIVE DATE: OCTOBER 1, 2014

N/A

Additional Benefits

This rider is part of the certificate for all eligible employees.
This rider is part of the certificate for all eligible employees who elect GVUUGUL insurance.

This rider is part of the certificate for all eligible employees (services provided for both employee and
spouse) who elect GVUUGUL insurance.

Effective Date Under the Plan

1

G.24300(2003) As amended by GCR08-1 — Employee GVUL Ce rtificate
All employees of Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporati on

October 1, 2014

2

G.9704(2009) — Employee GUL certificate

All employees of Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporati on
October 1, 2014

3

G.24300-6 — Accelerated Death benefit rider

All employees of Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporati on
October 1, 2014

4
CRO05-1 I/wil Will Prep Certificate Rider

All employees of Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporati on
October 1, 2014

5

GCRO07-28 ERS Certificate Rider

All employees of Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporati on
October 1, 2014

Page 4 of 4



Exhibit 23
Consent of Ernst & Young LLP,
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference irRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 No 333-171288ppeng to the:

« Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan of Bdten Hamilton Holding Corporatic

e Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation OfficerRollover Stock Plan, ai

* Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation Employe®&t Purchase Pl
of our reports dated May 21, 2015, with respethéoconsolidated financial statements of Booz Atlemilton Holding Corporation and the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting of Boéllen Hamilton Holding Corporation, included inis Annual Report (Form 10-K) of Booz Allen
Hamilton Holding Corporation for the year ended tha81, 2015.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

McLean, Virginia
May 21, 2015



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUA NT TO RULE 13A-14(A) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

I, Horacio Rozanski, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 106fBo0z Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or eondtate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstancesmunwtieh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this report.

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respectsfihancial
condition, results of operations and cash flowthefregistrant as of, and for, the periods present¢his report.

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined ih&hge
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internatrobover financial reporting (as defined in ExcharAct Rules 13a-15(f) and 18d(f)) for the registrat
and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoitge designed under our supervision, to enbate t
material information relating to the registrantliding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made kmtoaws by others within those entities, partidylduring
the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financggarting, or caused such internal control ovenfaia reporting to be designed under our supemidio
provide reasonable assurance regarding the rétjabilfinancial reporting and the preparation imfancial statements for external purposes in accure
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratfisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisi report our conclusions about the effectiwseaf the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the &titegeriod covered by this report based on swetuation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtgnt's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the registrant's most redenaf
quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quartethia case of an annual report) that has materitfidgted, or is reasonably likely to materially affethe
registrant's internal control over financial repagt

5. The registrant's other certifying officer antthlve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal control over financial reporting, teet
registrant's auditors and the audit committee efrélgistrant's Board of Directors (or persons parfiog the equivalent function):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are reasonablelikto
adversely affect the registrant's ability to re¢qmacess, summarize and report financial inforomtand

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a simiifiole in the registrant's internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: May 21, 2015 By: /s/ Horacio Rozanski

Horacio Rozanski
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUA NT TO RULE 13A-14(A) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

I, Kevin L. Cook, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 106f8o0z Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatoriny untrue statement of a material fact or eondtate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstancesmunwtieh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this report.

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respectsfihancial
condition, results of operations and cash flowthefregistrant as of, and for, the periods present¢his report.

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined ih&hge
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internatrobover financial reporting (as defined in ExcharAct Rules 13a-15(f) and 18d(f)) for the registrat
and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoitge designed under our supervision, to enbate t
material information relating to the registrantliding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made kmtoaws by others within those entities, partidylduring
the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financggarting, or caused such internal control ovenfaia reporting to be designed under our supemidio
provide reasonable assurance regarding the rétjabilfinancial reporting and the preparation imfancial statements for external purposes in accure
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratfisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisi report our conclusions about the effectiwseaf the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the &titegeriod covered by this report based on swetuation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtgnt's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the registrant's most redenaf
quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quartethia case of an annual report) that has materitfidgted, or is reasonably likely to materially affethe
registrant's internal control over financial repagt

5. The registrant's other certifying officer antthlve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal control over financial reporting, teet
registrant's auditors and the audit committee efrélgistrant's Board of Directors (or persons parfiog the equivalent function):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are reasonablelikto
adversely affect the registrant's ability to re¢qmacess, summarize and report financial inforomtand

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a simiifiole in the registrant's internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: May 21, 2015 By: /s/ Kevin L. Cook

Kevin L. Cook
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the report on Form 10-K of Badien Hamilton Holding Corporation (the “Companyfgr the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, as
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned Presdidad Chief Executive Officer of the Company
certifies, to the best of his knowledge and bgligfsuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedipnt$o Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 6220
that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgfeAct of 1934.

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@alition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: May 21, 2015 By: /s/ Horacio Rozanski

Horacio Rozanski
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to Booz Allemitan Holding Corporation and will be retained by
Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation and furnéghto the Securities and Exchange Commission staf§ upon request.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the report on Form 10-K of Badien Hamilton Holding Corporation (the “Companyfgr the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, as
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned Seviioe President and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company certifies, to the best of his knowledge lagltef pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as tdbpursuant to Section 906 of the SarbaDriey Act
of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgfeAct of 1934.

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@alition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: May 21, 2015 By: /s/ Kevin L. Cook
Kevin L. Cook
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to Booz Allemitan Holding Corporation and will be retained by
Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation and furnéghto the Securities and Exchange Commission staf§ upon request.



